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SUBJECT:

UPDATE OH THE PROPOSED SCE-SDG&E MERGER-IS THE PUC RUSHING TO JUDGMENT?

1990

HEARING

THIS COMMITTEE HEARING WILL FOCUS ON WHETHER THE SCE-SDG&E
MERGER CASE PENDING BEFORE THE PUC HAS BEEN FAIRLY AND PROPERLY
MANAGED TO ENSURE THAT THE RIGHTS OF THE PARTIES TO PARTICIPATE
EFFECTIVELY AND HAVE THEIR LEGITIMATE CONCERNS FULLY EXPLORED
HAVE BEEN PRESERVED.
AS EVIDENCED IN THE ATTACHMENTS TO THIS MEMO, THIS PUC MERGER
PROCEEDING HAS BEEN PRIMARILY DRIVEN BY THE ASSIGNED
COMMISSIONERS' GOAL TO REACH A FINAL DECISION BY YEAR END 1990,
PRIOR TO THE CONCLUSION OF THE TERMS OF TWO EXISTING PUC
COMMISSIONERS. A NUMBER OF PARTIES TO THE PROCEEDING MAINTAIN
THAT THE SERIOUS BURDENS ASSOCIATED WITH THIS INFLEXIBLE
SCHEDULING DEADLINE HAVE CROSSED THE LINE FROM EXPEDITIOUS
REVIEW TO A VIOLATION OF THE BASIC RIGHTS OF THE PARTIES.
THIS HEARING WILL ALSO FOCUS ON THE PROCESS USED BY THE PUC TO
DEVELOP THE ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT (EIR) ON THE MERGER,
AND THE RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE PUC ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW
PROCEEDING AND THE PROCESS USED BY AIR POLLUTION CONTROL
DISTRICTS TO NEGOTIATE AND APPROVE MERGER AIR POLLUTION
MITIGATION PLANS DEVELOPED BY SCE.
MEMORANDUM ARE PUC EXCERPTS CONCERNING THE
======== TAKEN FROM
I.

COMMENTS MADE BY THE PUC COMMISSIONERS ASSIGNED TO THE
MERGER CASE (PRESIDENT WILK AND COMMISSIONER HULETT)

II.

COMMENTS MADE BY THE PUC ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGES (ALJ'S)
TO
CASE ( ALJ 1 S CAREW AND CRAIG)
BY THE PUC DIVISION OF RATEPAYER ADVOCATE
MEMBERS
ON THE MERGER CASE

ALSO ATTACHED TO THIS MEMORANDUM ARE DOCUMENTS DESCRIBING THE
RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE PUC MERGER PROCEEDING AND LOCAL AIR
POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT EFFORTS TO SECURE MITIGATION
COMMITMENTS FROM SCE. THESE DOCUMENTS WERE DEVELOPED BY:
IV.

THE VENTURA COUNTY AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT, AND

V.

THE SOUTH COAST AIR OQALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT.

A HEARING AGENDA ALSO ACCOMPANIES THIS MEMORANDUM.
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the concerns
some
hearings undertaken

that he does

,
has
Assigned commissioners' decis
the merger case based on a desire to
by December 1990 may have seriously
ability of the commission to comply with all of
SB 52 (Rosenthal) (discussed
merger case.
The Assigned Commissioners have repeatedly stated on the record
that
SCE-SDG&E merger schedule must be maintained so that
the Commission
able to decide the case by year end 1990.
The Ass
Commissioners "instructed" the ALJ's to make all
compliance with this December
,
turn, informed the parties to
that
"there will be no flexibility on that point." We
the impact of this inflexible Commission schedule on the
fairness
of the merger
disruption to a case pending before
the merger case were excused
However, the Chairman has
ALJ's back to testify at a later
The Chairman is
deadline
scheduling
case may add to the evidence that ALJ's at the
authority to make sound judgments independent of
luence of the "assigned" commissioners.
new ground not
the intent of

PUC
to limit

explaining
already made by the PUC and other parties
schedule and procedures used to manage the
case ..
attachments to this memorandum offer a
starting point for this focused exploration.

-3-

B

1)
2)

no

2)
3)
)
5)
6)
)
8)

the
the

See

I, II

II

-4-

As the
case
,
required an Environmental Impact
concerning the proposed SCE-SDG&E merger.
is intended to:

prepared
CEQA, an EIR

1) provide a
environmental impacts,
2 increase
awareness
participation in the review process,
3) alert decision makers to the effects of the project
and suggest measures to mitigate impacts.
In April
1990, the PUC released a Draft EIR (DEIR) for
comment. A number of parties, including the South Coast Air
Quality Management District (SCAQMD) and the Ventura county Air
Pollution Control District (VCAPCD), criticized the DEIR,
maintained that the proposed air pollution mitigation measures
were inadequate, and urged the PUC to recirculate a revised
DEIR for comment before certifying a Final EIR (FEIR).
Rather than recirculate a revised DEIR, on August 24, 1990, the
PUC circulated for comment a "Supplement" to the DEIR. A Final
EIR has not yet been issued.
The PUC ALJ's generally directed the parties, including the air
pollution control districts, to focus their environmental
concerns in the CEQA EIR process, rather than in the the PUC
evidentiary hearing. The ALJ's said that:
"First, because of the limited time available for
evidentiary hearings, it
more efficient to take
advantage
process authorized by CEQA.
second,
parties
participate through the CEQA process,
rather than through the evidentiary hearings, should
not be made to feel that their observations are less of
a contribution or are entitled to less weight than the
evidence taken through the evidentiary hearings. We
strongly disagree with the suggestion, implied in some
1
positions, that the CEQA process is lesser
or secondary to the evidentiary hearings."
direction from the ALJ's, SCE convinced a
number of air pollution control districts to side-step the
ongoing PUC EIR process and jump quickly into the abbreviated
PUC evidentiary hearing with executed mitigation plans.
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On
10, 1990, before the 1'Supplement" to the PUC DEIR was
published, the SCAQMD determined
:
"1)
the
District can fully determine the adequacy of various
[SCE] mitiqation proposals. * * *
2) A proposal to
impacts
electrification of internal combustion engines may be
acceptable provided it can be demonstrated that the
emission
go beyond what would otherwise
occur.

3) In view
the uncertainties in forecasting, PUC
should consider the feasibility of encouraging at least
some mitigation through repowering or other on-system
emission
measures. S
specific analysis is
to
these measures may be
appropriate."
TWo days later, followinq ex parte contacts by SCE to SCAQMD
Board members, the district reversed itself and directed staff
to inform the PUC that SCE's proposal was technically sound in
mitiqatinq significant air quality impacts described in the
EIR.
With regard to the rationale for this sudden change in
position, the SCAQMD district staff stated the following:
[with SCE] the nature of the PUC's
adjudicatory
on
benefit
Merger.
Friday, July 13, is the deadline for written testimony
in this part of the proceeding. Based on the
importance of this testimony,
was decided
the
District's
quality concerns would be best served by
indicating what type of mitigation would be acceptable
to the agency. The
approach of seekinq more
data and deferrinq thedetarmination to a later date,
could place the Basin in a position of not obtaininq
adequate mitigation. I am also advised that yesterday
at the PUC hearing
san Diego, althouqh requests had
been made that the parties have the opportunity to
present further testimony after the July 13 deadline,
the administrative law judges indicated that althouqh
the final decision on hearing schedules would be up to
the assigned PUC commissioners, these requests should
be considered for practical purposes denied."
Thus, the SCAQMD endorsed the SCE mitigation plan with
insufficient information on hand because of its view that the
PUC process would not accommodate a more deliberate approach,
and to delay further could risk the loss of adequate pollution
mitigation.
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and
plan

EIR

See

IV
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PUC PRESIDENT WILK
[1]
"In the final
, however, the
we apply [to
the merger case] is no more important than the process we use.
* * * * Obviously, it's going to be
and deliberative.
We're not qoinq to rush the judgment .. " (Emphasis added)
(October 24, 1988, testimony before the Senate Energy and Public
Util
.)

ASSIGNED COKMISSIONERS RULINGS IN THE MERGER PROCEEDINGS
(Commissioners Wilk
Hulett)
[2]
worked closely with
assigned ALJs to develop a
workable schedule for completing this proceeding in a manner that
accommodates both the rights of the many active parties and the
decisionmaking needs of this Commiss
Their reports to us
concerning the unsatisfactory pace of discovery make it clear
that litigation of the legal issues underlying these discovery
disputes will make
virtually impossible to render a decision
by year-end 1990.

* * * we wish to ensure that all Commissioners who have followed
this proceeding from its inception are in a position to vote on
the final outcome. (Emphasis added).
Obviously, delays
turning over documents to other parties who
are attempting to conduct discovery for preparing their
evidentiary showing threaten these goals and the underlying
schedule."
(Nov. 7 , 19 8 9)

[3] While there has been some slippage in a portion of the
schedule related to the Commission's request for a 90-day
extension of time to complete and certify the Draft and Final

EIR, the existing schedule will be maintained, so that the
commission is able to decide the merits of the proposed merqer
before year-end 1990.
In conclusion, we are committed to meeting our oriqinal timeline
and we have instructed the assigned ALJs to allow no slippage in
the existing schedule that would jeopardize our goal. The ALJ's
will make all necessary rulings in furtherance of this goal.
(Emphasis added)
(December 11, 1989)

."

on

here
1

we

,

[7] 19
decision
made on the [merger] before the PUC loses
two members whose terms expire Jan. 1, panel President Mitchell
Wilk plans to put the question to the remaining three members.
His statement opens the possibility that the utility merger * *
could be approved with as little as two commissioners• support.

*

'Even if we don't get a decision (before Jan. 1), it will be
decided by the remaining people,' Wilk said.
Wilk said the [gubernatorial appointment and confirmation]
process could take up to one year, and he is unwilling
delay a
decision that long.
schedule holds, the PUC could make a decision on
late December.

However, Wilk admitted yesterday, •we•re up against the wall' on
the schedule .. "
(Emphasis added)
September 7, 1990, San Diego Tribune
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ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGES ASSIGNED TO THE CASE
at
the assigned
(ALJ Carew]
"Speaking
ruling, I think
1 are aware that the
commission--the matter of the schedule is to be decided by the

p. 63 1

that the filing of these motions
stayed any due dates established by prior
and that the ALJs and assigned
prepared to take appropriate steps to
schedule
the event ORA's motion is
denied.

ruling on DRA's motion, we do not intend to allow any
changes (if any are authorized based on the parties•
)
threaten the Commission's goal of reaching a
on the merits of the proposed merger by year end 1990.

to make
to the
19 0

the OEIR
testimony.

[
and

three-week extension of time
in this proceeding" [and the]
parties is due five weeks after release of
weeks after the release of ORA's opening
extensions were in response to delays caused by
disputes
SCE, and other matters).

Since
revisions adopted
not alter the date for ending
evidentiary hearings (August 3, 1990}, they will not impact the
•s goal of reaching a decision on the merger by year
1990. 11
(Emphas

added)

January 8, 1990

[4] "As IBEW and APCD/County note, we also allowed almost two
months between the publication of the DEIR and the submission
third party testimony, although this interval was subsequently
compressed when the DEIR publication date slipped .• "
January 8, 1990
[5]· "The requested slippage [in the DEIR schedule] is necessary
in order to re-do portions of the DEIR analysis impacted by a
recently detected error in the underlying ELFIN computer program

* * * we intend to deviate from the 45 day period set
Rule 17.1(g) (3), and keep the current public participation
hearings schedule intact. This means that the first DEIR related
public hearing will commence 29 days after the April 9th DEIR
release date."
March 21, 1990

[6]
"Because of the large number of witnesses expected to
testify in this case (perhaps as many as one hundred) and the
limited number of hearing days (68), it will be necessary to
allocate the time available for cross-examination among the
various parties.

* * * the schedule just outlined is far from ideal. One of the
most glaring, if unavoidable, defects is that it calls for
discovery to be conducted on some testimony while hearings are
underway. The potential is great for discovery-related delay to
disrupt· an already precarious schedule, but the assigned ALJs are
determined to take all steps necessary to keep this case on
schedule.
Because of personnel limitations, many parties will not have the
ability to conduct or respond to discovery while the evidentiary
hearings are in session."
(Emphasis added)
March 12, 1990
[7] " * * * we expect all attorneys conducting cross-examination
to be focused and thoughtful in their interrogation. we will not
hesitate to question the purpose of vague lines of inquiry, to
halt "discovery" on the stand or to take all steps necessary to
maintain the pace of the proceedings. In addition, attorneys
will be responsible for ensuring that their witnesses have been
briefed on the procedures for the hearing. Witnesses will be
expected to be responsive and concise in their answers, and we
will be active in keeping a witness's answers on point."

, 1990
-2-

ATTACHMENT II:I
DIVISION OP RATEPAYER ADVOCATES
[1] "DRA is fully mindful of the desire of the CPUC
bring
this proceeding to a fair conclusion at the earliest possible
time. DRA 1 s * * * motion proposes a slightly revised schedule so
that this extension will not interfere with that goal.
specifically, DRA does not believe the additional time now
will itself affect the ability of the CPUC to complete this case
by the date currently scheduled, i.e., the end of 1990.
Absent this extension, DRA believes that the quality of
testimony and reports being diligently prepared by the
its expert consultants will be so compromised that the
and the other parties to this proceeding will be denied the
benefits of the tremendous and valuable effort undertaken to
date.

ORA believes that granting this extension will not compromise the
CPUC's goal, as articulated in the Assigned commissioners• Ruling
of November 7, 1989, to reach a decision in this matter prior to
the conclusion of the terms of any of the existing commissioners

* * *
DRA is merely seeking to avoid having DRA penalized for Edison's
obstructive efforts.
ORA's request is for the absolute minimum amount of time that DRA
believes will be required, while at the same time making the most
concerted effort not to adversely affect the CPUC's goals*'**
DRA has agonized over the need for this request and has only
brought it forward when it became clear that no alternative was
possible."
(Emphasis added)
December 19, 1989
[2]
[DRA Director declaration in support of ORA motion to modify
schedule]

"I requested that our counsel not file a motion to change the
schedule until such time that I became convinced that no amount
of increased staff effort could offset the increasingly severe
problems being encountered in meeting the January 16 due date.

The time we were given to perform this merger analysis has been
eight months from the time any significant information was
provided on the merger, this commencing with [SCE's filing] in
April 1989. This is less than one quarter the time available for
the SONGS 2 & 3 reasonableness review and less than one-fifth the
time for the review of Diablo canyon. It is less time than for
the average general rate case, including the HOI phase.
(Emphasis added)
December 19

1989

[8] "Phil Weismehl, who represents the PUC's Divison of
Ratepayer Advocates and is opposed to the merger, said by
turninq the bearings into a 'forced march, we feel the commision
will be sbortchanqed.'
He also said his staff is sufferinq from fatique, and extra hours
or days would reduce their ability to fiqbt the merger."
(Emphasis added)
July 12, 1990, San Diego Tribune
[9] "Phil Weismehl, an attorney with the PUC's Division of
Ratepayer Advocates, the * * * organization that represents the
public in the merger, described the six-day workweek as
unprecedented in the PUC's history.
'My staff is already suffering from fatique,• said Weismehl, who
was home sick with a cold Friday.
'This is incredibly burdensome
to our staff •••. We'll have to see what happens. As everyone
gets very tired, the quality of presentations may go down.•
Fatique will hurt the DRA, which has six attorneys working on the
case, more than the utilities, which have mustered a legal force
that includes mora than two dozen attorneys, Weismehl said."
(Emphasis added)
July 14, 1990
Los Angeles Times
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ATTACHMENT IV

Statement of
Richard H. Baldwin
Ventura County Air Pollution Control Officer
Before the Senate Committee on
Energy and Public Utilities
October 26, 1990
I appreciate the opportunity to present this statement to your committee today. I regret
that I am unable to testify in person. Unfortunately, I have a conflict in my schedule. I
want to infonn you of my concerns about the Public Utilities Commission public review
process, and describe our decision-making process to resolve the air quality impactS
expected from the proposed merger of Southem California Edison Company and the San
Diego Gas & Electric Company.
First, I want to express my total frustration with the PUC process. Throughout the merger
proceedings, environmental review time has been consistently shortened to guarantee
achievement of the PUC schedule. This schedule calls for a decision by the PUC on the
merger by the end of this year. The PUC seems determined to meet this schedule
regardless of the time needed by interested parties to thoroughly and intelligently
participate in the public review process.
I can only draw one conclusion from the PUCs determination to meet this schedule. The
conclusion is that the PUC intends to approve the merger. My conclusion had a great
effect on our District1s attempt to find a way to mitigate the air quality impacts expected
from the proposed merger. I believed that it was incumbent on us to find a solution
because, under the circumstances. I did not believe I could rely upon the PUC to solve it
for us.
Following is my response to your request for "... APCD comments describing the manner
in which the District's decision-making process on the SCE mitigation plan was coordinated
with ~e PUC merger deliberations."
Our decision-making process was driven by the PUC schedule. In effect, there were two
schedules. One for the Environmental Impact Repo~ and one for the case-in-chief.
Nearly all our efforts were focused on the EIR. This is because the Administrative Law
Judges decreed that all environmental issues would be dealt with ~in the EIR. Factors
related to environmental issues, such as the cost of pollution controls, could be argued in
the PUC hearings. While I find this procedure strange, and very different from local
government's consideration of environmental issues in hearings, I had no choice but to
follow their direction.

Our decision~making process began when the Draft ElR was released. The Draft EIR
identified some emission impacts in the later years as not significant. We disagreed with
those determinations. Also, the Draft EIR did not propose measures to fully mitigate the
significant impacts of the proposed merger. We submitted comments on the Draft EIRt
and our Board took a position to oppose the merger unless all air quality impacts are
mitigated. The Board position has not changed.
After release of the Draft EIR, SCE representatives initiated discussions with us. They
expressed hope that we could develop an agreed-upon mitigation plan. Those discussions
began 5 weeks before the signing of the agreement. Edison presented us with a draft
ail'eement on May 31, less than 3 weeks before the agreement was signed. Our
negotiations with Edison continued up to two hours prior to the deadline for flling a Board
letter on the agreement to mitigate the impacts.
Most of this time was spent by District staff trying to determine what would be required in
a mitigation agreement to satisfy our concerns about the expected impacts. We also spent
substantial time modifying the agreement's language to ensure that the mitigation proposal
would work as proposed.
We were under a deadline to submit a mitigation agreement to the PUC before they
released the final EIR. Edison urged us to fmalize the agreement in time for the PUCs
consultant to analyze our agreement, and publish the agreement and analysis in the Final
EIR. We believed that the final EIR would be released on June 29, just 10 days after our
Board's action on the proposed agreement. Including the merger mitigation aweement in
the final EIR was important to us because it would give the public an opportunity to review
and comment on the agreement and the consultant's analysis of the agreement.
Unfortunately, our schedule allowed just five days for public review before our Board took
its action on the agreement. While not require~ as a courtesy we invited representatives of
several local environmental groups to meet with us to be briefed on the agreement and to
answer their questions. This meeting was held June 18, the day before our Board debated
the mitigation ail'eement in its regularly scheduled meeting.
If the process had allowed more time, I believe our Board would have delayed its action on
the mitigation agreement to provide more time for public review. SCE had stated to~
and I stated to our Board, that if a decision on the agreement was delayed a week or two,
the agreement would be off. Edison indicated that the agreement was needed that day so
that they could calculate the financial impact of the agreement for the EIR, and submit
testimony on those costs in the PUC hearings on the case·in·chief. The PUC hearings were
scheduled to begin at about the same time that the final EIR was to be released. Edison
representatives tried hard to have the Board hearing a week earlier. However, that was not
possible because the agreement was not acceptable to me.

Much to our surprise, the PUC did not release the Final EIR as announced in their original
schedule. Instead. on August 24. 1990, nearly 2 months after the fmal EIR was due, they

issued a "Supplement to the Draft EIR." The mitigation agreement was analyzed by the
consultant in this supplement.
The Ventura County mitigation agreement requires Edison to offset the merger's nitrogen
oxide emission increases by 145% between now and the year 2007. As currently proposed.
reactive organic compound emissions will be reduced about 2300% and carbon monoxide
emissions will be reduced about 500%. A subsequent analysis of the project by SCE
determined that the NOx offset could be as high as 171%. SCE has not changed its
commitment to the mitigation plan.
To put the agreement into perspective~ it is important to realize that SCE could (and does)
provide additional electricity to San Diego Gas and Electric. This can be done without any
change to SCE's APCD permits, provided SCE does not physically modify its generating
units to supply that power. The APCD permit does not require additional offsets for any
source after the permit is issued so long as the source complies with its permit.
The PUC determined that the merger is a project for purposes of the California
Environmental Quality Act. Under CEQA, the PUC is required to mitigate significant
impacts to the maximum extent deemed feasible by the PUC. This provision mm require
offsets from a project which already bas an APCD permit.
As I indicated earlier, the Draft EIR did not identify all emission increases from the

merger as being significant. Also. with the PUC apparently determined to make a decision
by the end of the year, I was concerned that even those impacts deemed significant would
not be fully mitigated.
The mitigation agreement provides for more than 100% mitigation for all of the emission
increases, except sulfur dioxide. Since Ventura County is in attainment of all S02 air
quality standards, this is not a problem. The agreement provides far more than is required
by CEQA or the APCD permits held by SCE. The emission offsets are greater than those
required by the District in its rules and Air QualiJy Management Plan. And, the agreement
carries a tough penalty provision.
In su~, we had a decision to make. We were very concerned about the PUC's process
because of the short time schedule for public review, the uncertainty of the merger's
mitigation by the PUC, and that the hearings on the merger would be conducted without a
final EIR. However, we made the most out of it, and negotiated more mitigation than is
required by law.
I appreciate the opportunity to provide you with this information. Hopefully. the process
will improve in the future. We will try to answer your questions today. If there are any
questions which we cannot answer today we will get the answers to you as soon as possible.

ATTACHMENT V

OR\ rl.J'\\\ l~ .'""\' iL

SOUTH COAST AIR QUALITY 1'1ANAGEMENT DISTRlcr

omc£ OF D1S11UC'f COUNSEL
MEMORANDUM

DATE:

July 10. 1990

TO:

SCAOMD Govem1ng Board Members

FROM:

Pat Nemeth, DEC, Planning &. Rules ~a;t-

SUBJECT:

Applic.ation o! SC&orp ior Authority to Merge San Diego Gas &.
Efec:tric Company into Southern California Edison (CPUC
AppUce.don 88.. 12..035)

Pursuant to t."'le Board's direetion, Chairman Younglove and I met
tooar with a number of interested parties to receive comments re&arding mitigation
of au quality impacts associated with the mer&er. Board members Ber&_ and
Morsa.n were also present This memorandum summarizes the direction staff will
take m preparing our testimony to be filed July 13, 1990.

2)

A proposal to mitigate merger impacts through electrification

of internal combustion engtnes may be accepta.bre pmVlded it can be demonstrated
that the emission reductions go beyond what would otherwise oca1r.

3)
In view of the uncertainties in forecasting. PUC shouJd
consider the feasibility of encouraging at least some mitigation throuJh repowerin&
or other on·system ernis,ion reduction measures. Site-specific analysts is needed to
help determine where these measures may be appropriate.
cc:

Mike Herte~ Southern California Edison

South Coast
AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT DISTRICT
9150 FLAiR DRIVE. EL MONTE. CA 91731

(818) 572-6200

July 12. 1990

TO:

SCAQMD Board Members

FROM:

Pat Nemeth

Subject:

Edison-San Diego Gas & Electric Merger

~a.:r

As you know, at its July 6 meeting, the Board directed the Chairman and the
Executive Officer to determine and prepare testimony regarding the mitigation of
air quality impacts caused by the merger. This is a progress report regarding the
DistriCt's testimony. As a continuation of discussjons with interested parties, Edison
requested the opportunity to address the concerns raised at the meeting on Tuesday.
Therefore. by telephone call on Wednesday. Chairman Younglove and_L further
reviewed the Distnct's testimony on the Merger. Councilman Braude, Bob Dietch,
and Mike Hertel also partici~ated in the C'~ll. Attempts were made to include Larry
Berg; but, he was not av&lab e 4t the nme.
We discussed the nature of the PUC's adjudicatory hearing on the benefit of the
Merger. Friday, July 13, is the deadline for written testimony in this part oi the
proceeding. Based on the importance of this testimony, it was decided that the
District's air quality concerns would be best served by indicating what type of
mitigation would be acceptable to the agency. The alternate approach of seeking
more data and deferrin~ the determination to a later da!e, couJd place the Basin in
a. position of not obtaimng adequate mitigation. I am also advised that yesterday at
the PCC hearing in San Diego, alrbough re'luests had been made that the parties
have the opportunity to present further tesumony after the July 13 deadline, the
administrauve law Judges indicated that although the final decision on hearing
schedules would be up to the assigned PUC commissioners. these requests should
be considered for practical purposes denied.
Accordingly, the staff's testimony will indicate that the District finds Edison's
proposal to be technically sound in mitigating the significant air quality impact
described in the draft EIR. However, we will support the need to assess site·specific
impacts in the final E1R and state that Edison must be bound to mitigate any of
these impacts that are subsequently found to be significant. (Edison has agreed to
this second point.)

-2 The Chairman noted that Edison's mitigation package is consistent with the Board's
stated objectives on the Merger, namely;
0
0
0

All NOx increases must be mitigated
Mitigation must be accomplished for each year, and
Due to some uncertainty in forecasung. the mitigation must
significantly exceed the most likely forecasted emission.

The actual proposed agreement between the Board and Edison will be placed on
the Goverrung Board's August agenda. Staff was directed to contact the Board
members who attended the Tuesday meeting and review the testimony with them on
Thursday.

PN:sh
cc:

Mike Herte~ Southern California Edison Co.
Gladys Meade. American Lung Association
Marc Josep~ IBEW Local47
Su:,an Durbin, Deputy Attorney General
Mark Mead. SDAPCD

CHAIRMAN
Russell

HERSCHEL ROSENTHAL:

was going to be here.

I'm

I was delaying for a few minutes the start.

Senator

He must have run into some traffic problem, but we will

Senator Herschel Rosenthal, Chairman of the Senate Energy and Public Utilities

Committee.

The committee is

here this morning

to hold an

oversight hearing on

the

in which the Public Utilities commission is managing its hearing on the proposed
between Southern California Edison Company

and the San Diego Gas

and Electric

will also look at the relationship between the PUC environmental review process
for

the merger, and the process

used by air pollution control

districts to negotiate

and approve merger related air pollution mitigation agreements developed by Edison.
This hearing will focus on procedural issues concerning the merger.
to

debate whether

reduced

the

or worsened.

rates will
Instead, I

go

up or down,

or whether air

want to know whether

We're not here

pollution will be

the parties have been

given a

reasonable chance to argue their case regarding these critical policy issues.
personal concern today is to establish whether the process has been fair.
I

do not always

agree

with the PUC or

air pollution districts, I

While

do expect them to

that the due process rights of the parties are fully enforced.
Last
which

year the Legislature worked long and hard to craft a new law, Senate Bill 52,

I authored, regulating significant utility mergers.

undertake

a comprehensive

goals such

as

review

of proposed mergers

rate benefits, fair

That law directs the PUC to

to ensure that

certain public

competition, and pollution

mitigation are

before a merger can be approved.
The

Edison-San Diego merger proceeding

is an enormous, complex

and controversial

If this merger goes through, the new electric utility will be the largest in the
It was my intent to make certain that the safeguards in SB 52 were applied to
merger before
extraordinary

it

was approved or

task facing

testified before

the
this

rejected by the

Commission to review
Committee and

PUC.

In recognition

this merger, PUC

stated:

of the

President Wilk

"We're not going

to rush the

Regrettably, I fear that commitment may have been broken.
President
"deliberative"
and

Wilk

also

declared

to

this

Committee

that

the

process

would

be

-- which in my dictionary is defined as thoughtful and lengthy, careful

slow, not rash

or hasty.

That

reasonable standard of

review has been

ignored.

over the last year, the merger schedule dictated by the Commission called for
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the case to be run as fast as possible, but just short of making a legal error that, on
, would invalidate the Commission's decision.
Not
those

only does this
with

limited

successful
parties.

standard appear to

resources

but

in avoiding the legal

be unfair to

I'm

not

the parties --

confident

pitfall of violating the

that the

particularly
Commission was

due process rights of

the

The Attorney General's Office has stated that it is increasingly worried that

whatever the Commission decides may be negated in court because of procedural errors.
We are witnessing a PUC proceeding where every critical stage -- discovery, DRA and
intervenors'
hearing

response to the merger application, the

environmental impact report, the

schedule, the time for opening and reply briefs, and even the time for issuing

the ALJs' proposed decision -- is being driven by one immovable goal:

the Commission's

insistence that a final PUC decision be reached by December of 1990.
We are witnessing a proceeding where the Commission has ordered in the words of the
ALJs,
a

"an unprecedented and burdensome" hearing schedule, that DRA has characterized as

"forced march" which reduced their ability to contest the merger.

Because
for

the Commission wants to make a decision by

two of

reason

Governor

for

Deukmejian•s appointees.

compressing

the

controversial as this merger
Many
state

schedule
cas~,

December 1990 before the terms end

I

a

believe this is

proceeding

I'm
of

Commission's rush

to decision

by year

air pollution control districts

stated

agreements with

"throughout

consistently

and

end has

They

candid enough to

the "suggestion

of

have the votes, so why hear

I hope this is not the case.

equally concerned that the PUC's rush to

mitigation

important, complex

the Attorney General's Office was

They've already made up their minds.
the evidence?

as

a highly improper

and it's suspect.

have begun to think what
that the

of

And why the rush?

the

judgment has tainted the proceedings

seeking to negotiate merger

Edison.

As one air

merger proceedings

related air pollution

pollution control district

the environmental

official

review time

shortened to guarantee achievement of the PUC schedule".

has been

We will explore

this issue as well during the hearing.
Let

me describe some of

session
merger

we will focus on
case.
and

the ground rules for

the process used by

the hearing.

the PUC to manage

I have agreed with the PUC's request

then

depart

so

he

will

In our

first morning

the Edison-San Diego

to allow President Wilk to testify

avoid violation

of the

ex parte

contact rule

icable to the Edison-San Diego merger proceeding.
Next, at the request of Mr. Wilk, I've excused the PUC ALJs from testifying at this
time.

I

concerned

intend
that

commissioners,

to call
the

ALJs

them back
in

after the

this case

merger case

have had

and have lost their authority
-2-

is decided.

their hands

tied by

I'm deeply
the assigned

to make independent judgments on

how to

the case

ensure that it is justly decided.

In the absence of the ALJs I'm

hopeful that Commissioner Wilk's testimony will candidly deal with this issue.
our second morning session, we will review questions concerning the adequacy of
the

process used by the PUC to develop the EIR

process

used

by

air

pollution

control

on the merger, and we will examine the

districts

to

coordinate

with

the

PUC

environmental review.
Finally,

we will close the hearing .with an open microphone session

to take brief

comments from persons whose views were not represented by the witnesses.

Those wishing

to

speak at the open microphone

session should place their name

on the sign-up sheet

which is available from the Committee Sergeant.
At

this point I would like to request each witness

no

more than 10 minutes, with the exception of

to

answer some

summarize

of

the questions.

them and not read them.

And

to limit his or her remarks to

President Wilk, who may need more time

if you have

written comments, I

urge you to

We will include the entire written statement in the

record.
Let's

begin then.

Let me first introduce on my

left, Michael Shapiro, who is the

staff person to the Committee; and Patti on my right, the Secretary of the Committee.
Let's begin with the PUC President, Mr. Wilk.
MR.

G. MITCHELL WILK:

positive

note.

I'm

Good morning,

obviously

Mr. President, welcome.

Mr. Chairman.

very pleased to

It's nice to

have this opportunity

start on such a
to address the

Committee's interest and concern regarding the procedural aspects of the application of
southern California Edison Company and San Diego Gas and Electric Company for authority
to

merge their two utilities.

reaching

This application and proceeding is perhaps the most far

and consequential of any California Public Utilities Commission decision that

we've ever had to address.

And I'm here once again to reassure this Committee in every

possible respect that this case has been and will continue to be the most carefully and
thoroughly
would

be

evaluated of
an

open

any

litigated before this

invitation

to subsequent

Commission.

Supreme Court

To do

anything else

reversal on

due process

, a result that my colleagues and I are committed to avoid.
Furthermore,
existing

law,

the final decision in this matter will be in full compliance with all
including

the

criteria

enumerated

in

your

SB

52,

Mr.

Chairman,

legislation which, as you know, I personally urged the Governor to sign into law.
In

short,

isi.on.

None

Mr.
of

Chairman,
these

we

want a

objectives

is

full record,
inconsistent

all the
with

facts, and
protecting

a timely
ratepayer,

, or other interests as required under SB 52, and we will achieve them.
One

only needs to look at the imposition of the ex parte rule in this case to find

an example of our care in managing the proceeding.
for

this case, to restrict parties

That rule was specifically designed

from engaging commissioners in discussions
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of the

about

because
could

not

evaluate this

such issues as

merger
merger

utilities,

ications for
of
criteria that I

in

two years

our Commission's commitment in
law be
unless
all of California

carried out
and

I

are

is better off as a

to an
which to
been almost
first filed

with

And

our

hours of
the

held
to
customers

shareholders,
issues

by law.
would

all,

the r,ecord to date

in length.

Why

we, after all of this, jeopardize the final decision by creating judicial review

opportunities on the basis of target dates?
Like
might
of

is almost 10,000 pages

any other responsible government

We haven't and we won't.
agency, including the Legislature

itself I

add, the Commission has set deadlines and timetables for the parties in the form

an adopted procedural schedule,

since

the beginning.

changes,

all parties have been

Naturally, like most time tables

most all of which

restrictions.

all of which, and

to my knowledge have

Time tables and

deadlines,

litigation can be

enrichment

of

lawyers,

and schedules, there have been

resulted in extensions of

schedules are required

this extremely complex litigation.

private

and

special

of

And in the absence of

and generally of little

consultants,

time, not

for responsible management

People respond to deadlines.

unending

aware of

value, except for the

interests, whose

narrow

actives are somehow curiously satisfied by this laxity.
I

and my

created

for

the

applicants.
these

colleagues

are well aware

parties, especially

we acknowledge the

parties in particular,

interests

with

distinction

of the pressures

those with

leas extensive

professionalism and the

and
and

that these schedules
resources than

quality of participation

believe that they have
thoroughness

have
the
of

represented their views and

despite the

challenge imposed

by the

complexities of this case and the procedural schedule.
As

custodians of the public trust, the Commission's obligation here is to promptly

decide this issue in the best interest of the utilities, the ratepayers, employees, and
shareholders.

In less than 60 days

since

this case was

shape

and

democracy.
some

filed with the

complexion

proceeding,

process

Eastern

Commission.
Europe has

two years -- a full

In the

in local press

changed towards

I

get the

prevailed in Europe at

and the criticisms

feeling that

had the

the time, the Berlin

two years

intervening time the
a market

How long should this merger application take to decide fairly?

of the columns

merger

of

it will be a full

entire

economy and
In reading

elsewhere that criticize
same opinions

the

about government

Wall would still be

standing as

bureaucrats and politicians bickered over where to put the concrete.
Mr.

Chairman and

Utilities

Commission

Members, this
takes

it~

is serious

constitutional

business, and
and

the California

statutory

obligations

Public
to

the

ratepayers and utilities very seriously, not in this case, but all of them, from simple
complaints to massive new applications, and investigations.

we urge you to continue to

do as we must, to balance and put into perspective the many conflicting things you hear
and

read.

that
timely

Reality, it

seems, has many

different meanings.

enough time, effort, and expense will
decision will be in the

The

Commission believes

be incurred by all of the

parties, that a

best interest of everyone, especially

those interests

that you have identified in SB 52.

-5-

the

a

in all

to prepare
intervenor

groups

, the

1990.

Commission
conferences as a result,

and held a record number of
the

set, for

The schedule

intervenor
assist

In

that to prepare their

additional two months
had almost a

To

few

issues of

the

denied

Rather

than

to
for

the

a

fast-track

March of 1990.
of the
several

and

matters,
on alternatives to

the same

a merger

the Commission
additional comment

we
documents

to

directed

the

intervenors,

that up

the

the few

to

all
had

to

not

other

administrative
at

who is also our chief

PUC,

and

even our
over

the local

of this merger
both minimize the cost

this

active intervenors in
-6-

in
of

traditional PUC pi:oc:ei90Lngs

and

also to

assure that

the citizens

of that

community had

full, convenient,

and

knowledgeable access to our proceeding, the record, and the filings which are a part of

it.
For

example, we established a full-time PUC office in San Diego to help assist the

public.

We established a telephone

hotline for use by

area to obtain information about the proceeding.

all those interested in

that

And finally, and very importantly, we

held all evidentiary hearings in San Diego to encourage public access in that community
to

this proceeding and ease the cost of that

and

inform the general public of the

program

and conducted

over

a half

access.

And finally, to further involve

merger and our procedures, the PUC
a

dozen public workshops

had a formal

throughout the service

territories of both of the utilities to encourage public participation.
Frankly,
demonstrate
the

Mr. Chairman, I can't imagine what more our Commission could have done to
our commitment to a fair and open proceeding.

criticisms of our process are

And I believe that some of

more hidden criticisms of what

they anticipate the

decision may be.
In
Have

summary, have we set

we pursued

judgment?

a

strict timetables?

timely decision?

we have on

sought expeditious hearings?

all counts.

Have we excluded needed testimony or evidence?

court challenge on due process?
And

Yes

Have we

Have

we rushed to

Will we dare risk successful

The answer is absolutely not.

a final matter, Mr. Chairman.

You alluded to

this

proceeding in your opening statement.

once

again, your implied suggestion that

And I'd

the independence of the ALJs to
like to make it abundantly clear,

somehow the ALJs decisions and

actions have

been inappropriately influenced by the Commission, is, I believe, without evidence.
would

be fully expected in

any proceeding, the assigned

As

commissioners have consulted

with the ALJs about various problems that threaten the Commission's ability to keep the
case

on schedule.

sound

As I have stressed this morning, there were and continue to be many

reasons supporting our desire to bring this case

to a timely conclusion.

It is

entirely appropriate for the assigned commissioners to work with the ALJs in addressing
problems affecting the schedule.

And in each instance we were able to jointly work out

ways to resolve problems and keep the hearings on track without compromising the rights
of

the parties.

complete
and

Apart

independence.

from these consultations
On matters affecting

on the schedule,

the ALJs have

other procedural decisions in

most importantly, on anything touching the substance

had

the case,

and the issues in this case,

the assigned commissioners have not attempted in any way to influence the ALJs.
In
case,
process

the final analysis, however, regardless
it is the Commission, not the staff, that
as well as

the final decision

of your opinion on the

is responsible for the quality of the

in this case.

insist on such accountability.
-7-

merits of this

Indeed, you, among

all, would

To
full

conclude

the merger

benefit of

has and will continue to have the

due process, staff

and independence, and an

resources and commitment, appropriate ALJ

unwavering PUC commitment to

SB 52 and all other
to

and

shareholders.

balance

the

fulfill the letter

constitutional

interest

utilities

of

You should not

less of us, and

and

will deliver.

Thank you.
CHAIRMAN
ex

ROSENTHAL:

Okay.

parte rule as

I

have a number of

You indicated about the

to this case, which I

commenced

months after Edison announced its
month

there when

In other words

merger

there was

rule

no ex

you had with Edison officials

March of 1989

can you

March

a

it was about a
describe the

89

the merger

and have you disclosed these conversations in the record.
WILK:

MR.

would
that

Wel , if

there is any

be the

to disclose it

goes back almost two

parties

-- I can recall

still procedural.
recall --

disclosure needed under

years ago
my

and

the ex

not the Commissioner's.

Senator,

any conversations we had

with the

conversations with

How long would this thing take?

rule, it

were in

fact

We never discussed, as far as I can

know it's been alleged in various media articles that somehow or another we

I

commitments about how the benefits of a merger

might be split up, and frankly, I

found moat of that -- those press articles just to be
CHAIRMAN

ROSENTHAL:

So

the

newspaper

without merit.

reports

that

Edison

to the

PUC

Commissioners ..• (Gap in
MR.

WILK:

•.• about sharing

that this is even in the
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:

of anything.

For one

it's

to

be proven

• best interest.
I want to make sure I understand who's in charge of this case.

December of 1989 the

commissioners

stated, "We've instructed the assigned

ALJs to allow no slippage of the existing schedule that would jeopardize our goal.
ALJs

will

thereafter

make

all

necessary

in December

the

rulings in

ALJs told

the

furtherance of
parties

changes that threaten the Commission's
merits

of the

merger by year end 1990.

this goal "

"We do

The

And shortly

not intend to

allow any

of reaching a decision

on the

There will be no flexibility on that

And from that point on every ruling that affected the schedule of the case was
driven by your deadline instructions to the ALJs.
MR.

WILK:

Commission?
obl

Who's in

charge of the

Isn't that so?

Commission, Senator?

The Commissions's in charge of the Commission.
to

make

sure

that

this proceeding

to ratepayer interest and

is decided

Who's

the

I am held constitutionally
in a

appropriate to statute.
-8-

in charge of

timely fashion

That's

clear.

and

I mean

the

fact is is
target

B90

reasonable

you're right.

date.

At that

target date.

not

time, and

And

and I know, and it's
firm -- and we all

We did instruct

we

to this

the ALJs that we wanted a year-end
day, we

said we want to

still think

be firm with the

been certainly my experience at

use tone and language to

that that's

parties.

a

Now you

the Commission, if you're

make sure that are firmness

is well

understood -- that in fact there will be a slippage.
And

so I

think

what you

need

to do, Mr.

Chairman, especially in

hand-out

this morning, is that it's clearly possible to

and

of

all

statements
through
the

the

press

that serve

clippings

and

a particular

individually

purpose.

the same rulings and the same press

opposite.

And that is

But

light of the

go through all of the rulings
select

those quotes

the fact

is I

and those

could probably

go

clippings, and demonstrate to you exactly

that. our Commission is

committed to an open

and fair and

yes, expeditious resolution.
CHAIRMAN
speedy

You

have told

the parties and the

but balanced hearing on this case,

balance
days

ROSENTHAL:

was struck on your decision

and Saturdays in order to

pointed

press that you wanted

as you indicated.

Can you tell

to change the hearing schedule

meet the December deadline?

In

a

me how the

to include longer

particular, the ALJs

out that this resulted in "unprecedented and burdensome hearing schedule which

particularly strained those parties with limited resources."
MR.

WILK:

process

the

fact

parties

Saturdays.

of the

were

matter

asked

to

is, Mr. Chairman,

work

I don't know about you, but

unreasonable.
thought

The

The ALJs were

on

three

that as a

Saturdays.

I work every Saturday.

concerned

about the burden and

result of that

That's

I don't

it.

Three

think it was

the precedent.

If they

that having to move to that schedule would have created inappropriate burdens,

would have told us, and we wouldn't have done it.
Now,

one of the alternatives as

a practical manner, •cause I

remember discussing

that with the ALJ.

One of the aiternatives was this allocation of time, as recommended

and

requested

suggested and

opportunity
to

by Edison.

We

That

was certainly an

to do that, but we didn't think that was fair to the parties.

spend a couple of Saturdays to wrap this

certainly,

dismissed that.

To ask them

up, I think was absolutely reasonable and

in my personal judgment, although I'm not a

lawyer, it's far from any kind

of basis for a procedural challenge to the Supreme Court.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
which a number
didn't

Well, it seems to me that instead of having to work six days a
of people including

the ALJs and

give them enough time, you could have extended

intervenors all indicated

it

the deadline three days or four

days.
MR.
ended

WILK:

Well, what's the difference though, Senator?

up working three Saturdays.

As a practical manner we

I don't think that's too much ask of the parties in
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I
We ended
it.

don

're

see --

if we knew it was

to take three

But the fact of the matter is, at the time we didn't.

CHAIRMAN

10

we could have done

We

tremendous pressure,

this is

pages

from hundreds of

witnesses

and there's

several hundred

of
the decision.
"consistent

In their own words,

with the Commission's desire to issue a decision

a

Is
what
decision?

normal amount

role

MR. WILK:

of time

will the

Will you seek to
I don't know as

-- if

is

submitted

seems to be sufficient.
it

I

answer

I

seek

it.

We

that.

is issued?

back to your

think

I

first

is sufficient.

ninety days to get

think it can be done.

, we haven't

, once

this

drafting the ALJ

in

let me go

they only have

don t know what their current status of

to your second

records of

it's

sufficient?

once a case

ALJs with

commissioners

Is

on

you

time to be

at the end of the year.

the draft decision before

come and

Afterall,

curtailed their

it out.

And

The ALJs have been

the writing is.

provided any guidance

We have

and the

to them at

all on

will go back to what I've been saying

I

Commission, not the staff, that is responsible for this decision.
must make this decision

We're

the ones you will hold

We are the ones

accountable

you

't

this decision.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
take

As you

a number of motions have been filed to reopen the

additional evidence

between Edison and

San

MR.

WILK:

costs and

, this could

the commissioners take
decision be a factor

on environmental

in

on these

motions?

on a

recent power

delay the case.
And will

What
in the

your role?

Those

are

that at all.

before the ALJs, and we

The ALJa will

have not

have to make their determination.

to
They're

most familiar with the record as to whether or not additional testimony or hearing
time will be
CPAIRMAN

and we will abide by whatever their recommendation is
ROSENTHAL:

Will

the Commission

hold an

oral argument

after the

ALJ

decision is released?
MR. WILK:
After

We're not planning to at this juncture, Senator.

000 pages, I think we pretty much know where everybody is.

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
WILK:

In

Is that because of your concern about the schedule?
In

it's also a question of whether we want --whether or
-10~

not there's

need

Again, it isn't just schedule, it's need.

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL·:

Okay.

And finally, you recently stated that "We're up against

the

wall on a schedule," and that if you

don't meet the December deadline you'll take

the

decision up next year with the three

remaining Deukmejian appointees, two of whom

were

not even assigned to the case.

since

the

intention

two

commissioners you

of waiting for the

So all this rush to judgment
were rushing

for will

be gone.

next Governor's appointees, who

may be for naught,
And you

have no

could be seated at

the

Commission as soon as January.
MR. WILK:

If they are Senator, we would welcome them with open arms.

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:

MR. WILK:

Oh, I'm sorry.

CHAIRMAN
urge

During

ROSENTHAL:

I'm sorry.

the next Governor to

During the post-election transition period I will

make immediate PUC appointments.

So, why the rush

if you

miss the December deadline?

MR.

WILK:

established
be

I mean, we have a December

a long time ago because we felt we could make it.

able to.

that

Well, as I said Senator,

deadline.

We still think we might

But as I said, if we're not going to make a December deadline, if we feel

certainly first and foremost there

is any chance of jeopardizing

the quality of

that record or the fact that it may jeopardize people's due process rights.
that
for

barring the appointment of two additional commissioners,
the appointment

possibility

It was

of

two new commissioners,

of confirmation.

I've said,

we're not going to wait

much leas wait

a whole year

for the

That would delay this thing for possibly a whole •nother

year Senator, and frankly, I don't think SB 52's interest would be served by that.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:

MR. WILK:

Yes sir.

CHAIRMAN

ROSENTHAL:

Okay.

Mr. President •.•

.•• you know

that a commissioner can

sit for a year

before

confirmation?

MR.

WILK:

That's true.

But Senator, what

I think we

would be under

pressure,

realistically, that if they're not confirmed, the next level of criticism would be, why
are you having commissioners decide this that aren't confirmed?
project
having
in

the

that.

If we had new commissioners on board in January, although my experience

worked in the Governor's office -- not
past

appointments

Now, I'm not trying to

there
may

not

are a
be on

lot of
the top

just this Governor, but we've obviously

appointments that
of the

list.

And

have to

made, and

I don't

think it

the PUC
would be

appropriate for us to wait for two additional commissioners.
Now,
doesn't

the fact that Commissioners Ohanian
mean

that

they haven't

and Eckert aren't assigned to

been following

They've had to deal with

it.

They're

familiar with

issues relating to these two
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this case
the two

companies that are

are

I

defer

welcome.

to this,

in a little

late after

an hour and a

me, you

is

It seems
has
I

hear seems to

which takes
wish on the

of the
context

know your

seems to me
and so forth
and that sets

a

because in
t

What

the

influence

this

decision.

that

the parties have been complaining about, and

would

be

to

California

But in the final analysis, we're going to be driven

have

gone

judgment

lawyers.

that's due process.

entire effort

Supreme Court to reverse our

will not permit that.
their

through this

the same things

to provide

How foolish it

an opening

decision baaed upon due process

for the

grounds.

We

And the one thing we have always said to the judges and defer to

they're

both lawyers, and

neither Commissioner Hewlett

nor I are

This is one advantage -- maybe a single advantage -- of being a lawyer.

But

the fact is, is that they have always been told to let us know if we are creating a due
process

issue; that we have always

eventually

when you call these

deferred to their judgment on

judges before your Committee,

that.

And Senator,

I am certain they

will

tell you the same thing.
CHAIRMAN
the

merger

ROSENTHAL:
case

Well, you've told the

speeded

up,

but

not

parties and the press that

at the

risk of

having the

you wanted

merger decision

overturned in court.
MR. WILK:
CHAIRMAN
me.

Yes.
ROSENTHAL:

And I appreciate that comment.

Does it mean that you

present

their case?

give the parties as much

But, explain that standard to

time as they reasonably need

to

Or instead, does it mean simply the absolute minimum time you can

get away with short of, in your view, of violating their due process rights?
MR. WILK:

Well

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR.
mean,

WILK:

Yeah.

What's the standard?
Senator, the standard is like every

you hear what their requests are, the parties

I

requests, and you deal with their

requests

to see whether

or

believe,

is reasonable.

Now, there are a lot of parties who will come before you this

morning
fast.
I

our rights have been

know that SB 8, that preprint

feel

Our

standard of reasonableness, we

violated.

It's been, you

We ve heard this, not only in this proceeding, in every other one.

telling

you that they feel

bill with all the special interests

we're rushing too fast.

more concerned about what the final result may

mean,
to

and say, you know,

not it's reasonable.

thing else we deal with.

be.

enough time.

Have

We believe

we've done that.

the parties been

pushed?

Yes.

You know and

up in Sacramento

Because a

lot of them

And I share that concern.

I don't know where we're going to go with this merger.

balance those requests.

ample

And why?

know, too

I

The point is, our job is

We believe
Nobody

we have provided

likes to work

on a

saturday, but I don't think three Saturdays is too much to ask.
CHAIRMAN

ROSENTHAL:

about two year's time.
MR.

WILK:

Well,

Okay.

One other --

just a final comment.

You

keep talking

The application was submitted to the PUC in April of 1989.
the

first one was

submitted in December,

wasn't complete.
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and we told

them it

CHAIRMAN
its

ROSENTHAL:

Okay.

And so the fact that they submitted the application in

final form, as far as they

beginning

of the

case.

were concerned, in April, it seems

So it's not actually

you -- that there was something

to me that was the

I mean, the fact they didn't give

in their application; or the fact, for example,

that there were disovery disputes about whether or not the company provided information
that

was needed or wanted by all
of time that we re

about.

were delays because of discovery.
MR. WILK:
CHAIRMAN

of the parties also left people

Yeah.
ROSENTHAL:

you

have to take

WILK:

Well, Senator, we

final

all

was provided.

gave our ratepayer
the other

that out

it

seems to me#

from that

about.
can talk whether it's

knew about the formal int.ention to merge.

We

til January in which there

Now, so •••

that you're
MR.

It was from April

hanging in terms of

intervenor groups

I go back to my comments.

nine months to prepare testimony.

two months

all the

We can talk about precisely when the

But in the final analysis,
branch

provide -- to prepare

been two years since

beyond that.

And we gave

That's almost

a year

to

Now, Senator

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:

But the information wasn't provided to them.

That's the point I'm trying to make.
MR.
the

WILK:

I'm saying -- I'm saying the year started

from May of 1989 when all of

, the final filings of the applicants were made.

almost year started in May of '89 to April.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR. WILK:

WILK:

Okay.

Yes.

But it's

that's

not exactly a

the

CHAIRMAN

I think that's right •••

•• I've forgotten exactly.

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR.

The year started -- or the

business.

ROSENTHAL:

year, but it's

almost a year.

That's after,

But, I think .••

I just want to make sure that it wasn't really two-years that

had all the information to deal with .••
MR. WILK

No, I recognize that-- and I'm not trying to play .••

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR.

WILK:

Okay, okay.

any particular game here with the timetable.

All I'm trying to say

is, is that we feel very comfortable when taken in its whole -- not just in the context
of

some

quotes

and bold

underlining --

but when

you take

proceeding, we believe very strongly that enough time is taken.
but we think it's --we think enough time.
SENATOR RUSSELL:

Ask a question?

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:

Yes.
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a look

at this

entire

It's been a burden for

SENATOR

RUSSELL

On

any

particular case,

is

there some sort

of a guideline,

-- in terms of days and hours and months that you have to come to a decision?
MR. WILK:

No, every case, Senator Russell, is different.

SENATOR RUSSELL:
MR. WILK:
SENATOR

Well, that's what I thought.

Yeah.
RUSSELL:

So whether it's a year and a half here, or three years there, or

six months, it depends upon the case and how it progresses
MR.
and

WILK:

Absolutely.

Absolutely.

I know that Chairman Rosenthal
issue.

three years.

Correct?

For example -- I'll just give you an example,

is just as concerned about

this investigating the

That's been over three years we've been involved in that.

was a lot of concern,

different

This •••

And there

still is, that we're moving too fast in that.

It s a massive investigation.

than an application to merge.

But that's

And obviously an investigation is a little

But again, what's reasonable is in the eye of

the beholder
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
SENATOR RUSSELL:

.•. let me finish please.

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
SENATOR

Why is there no deadline on that case?

RUSSELL:

I'm sorry.
It would seem to me that you're responsible to the public and to

the ratepayers and to us to make sure that every case, whatever it is, is handled in an
expeditious
discovery

manner

the timelines

and all of this and that

politically
going

in

within that

context are

and the other thing is given.

met so

that all

It would also seem

that whatever side feels that they're losing is going to complain.

too fast.

You're not

fast going enough.

And

the

I think that's just

You're

part of the

process
MR. WILK:
SENATOR
and

Absolutely.
RUSSELL:

and that's what I gather we're hearing today, or have heard,

that's probably the purpose of this committee hearing

to get this out and to make

everybody as satisfied as possible, which it won't do, because those who feel it's been
too

fast are going to say it's too fast, and those

say

that.

who want to go faster are going to

So you have to continue to take the slings and arrows of everybody and just

continue to do your job, and we hope that the Supreme Court will agree •••
MR. WILK:

Well, I hope

SENATOR RUSSELL:
MN.

WILK:

••• that

is was well done.

I hope they will too.

I'll just mention one thing. I was mentioning to

the Chairman before we started this morning, that this is just such a lovely job.
you

find out is, is

that you can't please

anybody.

Because, regardless of

What

what you

decide, it ultimately comes down to a yes or a no, or with conditions, or whatever, but
you're

going

to

obviously,

in

every

instance,
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find people

who will

object very

to what you do.
we

Our job is to try to balance those interests

succeed as best we can.

I think our record's

good before the

And we are going to continue to do that.
And
dates

Senator, if I
in that case?

could

go back to what

We did.

you

We did have dates in that case, and

dates for these kinds of conclusions.
time that I started that

1988

for everything.

SENATOR RUSSELL:
MR.

WILK:

that

is,

for target dates.

Most of the time we don't.

can.

you'll

But,

date of

in any event, you

(Laughter)

Yeah, I didn't want to say that Senator, but ••• (Laughter) .••
is

that

we

all

have

to

live

us, and some of them know the process, are

those

You'll recall

And sometimes you make them, and sometimes you

there is a wide variety of parties
before

've

investigation, I had a conclusion

So much

You all set them.

said about

time constraints better than

with

under

constraints.

that appear before you,
capable of being able to work under

And we try

others.

those

to be as compassionate

as we

Sometimes •••
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR. WILK:

Mr. President, thank you.

Thank you for coming

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR. WILK:

••• before the Committee.

It's my pleasure.

CHAIRMAN

ROSENTHAL:

And I understand

that as part of

our ground rules, you

now •.•
MR. WILK:

Thank you.

CHAIRMAN

ROSENTHAL:

••• so that

you won't be

involved with ex

that follow.
SENATOR

MR.

RUSSELL:

WILK:
in

Does

he

have

We need to be careful

this

case

is

complied

to

telling

leave?

that the spirit of the ex
with.

And

again,

I

him to

parte rule that we'

do

thank

you

for

of that, and thank you very much for the opportunity this morning.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR. WILK:
CHAIR~

Member

Very good.

Thank you, sir.
ROSENTHAL:

Thank you.

of the Southcoast

Air

Next, I • d li.ke

to call Sabrina

Quality Management District.

We've

Schiller 1 Board

placed her here in

this position because she requested the need to leave shortly thereafter.
MS. SABRINA SCHILLER:
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
• SCHILLER:

Yes.
Welcome •

Good morning.

Senator, thank you very much for this
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the consideration, because I do have to be in the City of Industry to chair
a conference on emissions trading and offsets.
There
process

occurring.

received
clearly

are three points to
First

testimony from
I heard this

the procedure that I'd

of

a

all,

during the

hearings for

representative from the

representative

like to address, as

I saw this

the merger,

our Board

Attorney General's office.

tell us that it

was the law that

Very

we must first

examine all of the impacts, and then decide whether or not feasible mitigations were in
place.

It was necessary to do that because if we

had adopted the merger based on the

fact that additional impacts were yet to be discovered in the final EIR and we were not
able to arrive at whether or not those mitigations were feasible, we would be placed in
a

position of having to accept a final decision

statement of overriding considerations.

without actually being able to make a

And this was a very serious procedural problem

with the California Environmental Quality Act.
Secondly,

our Board has a policy based on BACT, best available control technology,

that

we will carry

What

that means is that there

basin.

out

the air quality management

plan to the best

are essentially no excess emissions

of our ability.

in the air quality

We have to do everything that we can to get every gain possible, and even then

it's

questionable whether or not we are going to be able achieve clean air by the year
It means all 127 of our rules and anything

2007.
don't

know what

lies

ahead of us

else that comes our way, because we

in tier three.

So when we

did receive testimony

during the hearing that the mitigations that·were being proposed by Southern California
Edison
the

were in essence the kinds

of things that probably would

electrification of stationary internal combustion

engines.

occur anyway, meaning
The thought certainly

occurred to me -- and I expressed it as it must have occurred to other Board members
whether

or not these emissions were

procedurally

for our Board, as

excess.

And were we following

to acceptance of any

the policy set up

kind of trading or

offsets that

might not be excess.
You

know the thought certainly occurred

to me that if the

-- if we were able

to

achieve these kinds of reductions, naturally, because they were economically attractive
to

Southern California Edison to
and move on and negotiate

carry out, then perhaps
for some of the harder

we simply accept that
things to get.

On the

as a
other

hand we have to say, was our schedule for the Air Quality Management Plan too slow, too
weak?.

Should we

~n~.n,

The
session

have

stepped it up?

If, indeed, this

was feasible and

going to

where were we in the backwater, the backwash of carrying out the AQMP?
third thing that
we

did

have

concerned

some

me very deeply was

discussion as

to whether

that at the end
or not

we would

of our Board
proceed with

acceptance of the mitigations as proposed.

I'm not authorized to actually discuss what

went

was no specific decision made regarding the

on in that, but I can say that there
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I'm concerned because shortly thereafter, as we understood, our chair
with

a group of public citizens.

There was no change that

There continued to be no
However,

of the mitigations after that

I was told that there was a

a very high level
members.

Fol

phone call that occurred

member of Southern California

that, a

second

staff.

I'm not sure totally on exactly
ic was not invited

members, the SCE member and

And

And that

our

between two Board

who was on the

into that meeting.

there was a decision made.

Edison and one of

phone call took place

by a conference call with the two Board

lowed

occurred in that

at

that

at that meeting, this

decision apparently was to direct

the mitigations.
This

concerns me
by ex

instance

deeply.

parte

Because

discussions.

it's not

the first

It happened,

time our

as a matter

of fact, in

where

California
certainly

our

executive

officer

apparently

I don't

know if

you can

Edison and,

met

one

with the rule 1135, the

involving Southern California Edison and it occurred

ion,

Board has

with

members

characterize it

of

Southern

as agreement,

there was a change of heart of our staff and the approach to 1135.

but

I served

on a panel hearing that issue for nine days, along with several other panel members.
it was quite telling that in the end

I

the measure we adopted was voted

every one of the members on the panel.
SENATOR RUSSELL:
MS.
affected

SCHILLER:

Say that again.
In other words, when 1135 -- which was a Southern California

measure -- was finally adopted.

that which was proposed
SENATOR RUSSELL:
MS. SCHILLER:

SCHILLER:

manner that was weaker

the panel that had conducted nine

of

What was the vote on that?

I can't remember exactly, frankly.

SENATOR RUSSELL:
MS.

It was adopted in a

We .••

How many votes were against it?
I believe

there were three

there were three against it.

against it.

All the members of the

I'm

sorry -- three

panel voted

-- I
it

believe they were the only members, but I'm not exactly sure of the numbers.
SENATOR RUSSELL:
MS.

SCHILLER:

Now, this vote vote was on the mitigation agreement?
No,

no.

between Southern

This

was

another

California Edison

rule

that

involved

representatives and

an

ex

members of

f.

SENATOR RUSSELL:
MS. SCHILLER:

And that was repeated to you by some member of the staff?

Yes.

SENATOR RUSSELL:

That's true.

And that staff person was the one that was contacted, or
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this

MS

SCHILLER:

It was not hearsay.

SENATOR RUSSELL:
MS.

SCHILLER:

occurred
and

That received the phone call.
No.

They're

are two incidents

relative to the merger.

possibly both of them,

call.

It was a person involved in the meeting.

I did receive

-- instances.

The

telephone call

that information personally from one,

but certainly one I

directly questioned on the

telephone

It did occur ••

SENATOR

RUSSELL:

The one

you

questioned was the one

who received the telephone

call?
MS.

SCHILLER:

Who made the telephone

call.

Yes

he received the

call

from Southern California Edison and made a telephone call as well
SENATOR RUSSELL:
MS.

SCHILLER:

conversations
member

And he

told you about that?

He reluctantly told me.

by law must be recorded, that

of the public in that

right

pointed

naturally pointed out that ex parte

not

am I a Board

I represent the public on

to know what information

involved

But I

goes into any Board

him.

Under those

that Board.

By law I

member's decision.

in the decision regarding the merger, I had
that out to

member, I m also a
have a

Since he

was

a right to that knowledge, and I

circumstances he reluctantly

agreed -- or

he

reluctantly told me had been involved in a conversation ex parte •••
SENATOR RUSSELL:
MS.

SCHILLER:

occasion
about
came

How did your questioning of this person come about?
We found ourselves sitting

shortly after this event.

the conversation on the
about.

We had gone to another event.

telephone.

learned about the original Board

confronted that person.
SENATOR RUSSELL:
MS. SCHILLER:

MS. SCHILLER:

a bus on another

I had already heard

I'm hazy on exactly

how it

called one of the Board members, and

I frankly really don't remember.

member, a second Board member

But obviously

being involved, and

And I have a very clear memory about that.

And this was not the regular mitigation, it was another •••

No.

SENATOR RUSSELL:

issue?

This was the mitigation issue that I'm addressing now.

SENATOR RUSSELL:
MS.

Because, as --

I believe I heard about it and then

he may or may not of told me about it.
I

next to each other on

SCHILLER:

Oh, I see --but -- and the vote on mitigation issue was what?
We didn't vote on that in

public.

The decision on the mitigations

was made in private in that telephone conversation.
SENATOR RUSSELL:
MS. SCHILLER:

Well, this •••

SENATOR RUSSELL:
MS. SCHILLER:
SENATOR

What did you vote on?

Isn't i t - - wasn't

there •••

We didn't vote on anything in public because it was a legal matter.

RUSSELL:

Oh.

I thought

that there
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was some

agreement that

was made

Southern

California

Edison and

to what ever that was
SCHILLER:

It was not

SHAPIRO:

in order

to encourage

wanted and that that was voted upon?
voted upon.

It was

not voted upon.

The

Senator Russell, just for point of clarification.

Five which are two

memoranda on the internal

tell the PUC that
issue.

the Commission

In your

decision of the district

endorsed a

That was not a

That was a decision made based on comments that the witnesses
RUSSELL
SHAPIRO:

referencing.

There was a later vote

discussion deals with the
SENATOR RUSSELL:
SCHILLER:

a month later.

But the ex

period.

What was the vote later on?

What was that for?

I believe I may have been the

person who voted against it.

was to confirm it, as I remember.
SENATOR RUSSELL:
MS. SCHILLER:

Well, this was a confirmation of what was decided •••

I think so.

SENATOR RUSSELL:
MS. SCHILLER:

•.• beforehand?

I think so.

SENATOR RUSSELL:
MS. SCHILLER:

•.. and that's the public vote?

I think so.

SENATOR RUSSELL

And that was unanimous, except for your vote?

. SCHILLER:

think so.

SENATOR RUSSELL:
. SCHILLER
I'

I think so.

Okay.

I did not review any of these matters before I came to this

speaking from memory.

SENATOR RUSSELL:
MS. SCHILLER:

I understand.

That's okay.

Well, finally I would just appeal to this panel to consider the need

believe our Board has for some regulations regarding ex parte conversations.

I

to a dozen instances where members of industry have visited our Board members
individual
icant

and
at the

ial

ion

it
time

almost sounds

like a

that we're hearing

cacophony of
a rule and

you can almost look around the room

support for

someone has a

an individual
special need

to see the hands popping up to

in favor of someone they may not of ever heard of before their meeting with them.
this concerns me, because the members of the public do not have access to this
information.

If they had-- if this occurred in open process, it's quite possible that

information is
of view.
and

delivered
And

to the Board

member would be

then the Board member

what proper decision should be made.
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would be in a

counter balanced by
better position to

By the method that we presently

flowing

information
because
Board

the arguments are

privately to Board

very

the right decision.

need

some

legislative

I do not

assistance

commitment in believing that they're

believe that's the case.
to

restrictions on the private process.

bring

decisions

consequently I'm sure the

good, being one-sided, and

members are acting with integrity and with

making

They're making

members.

about

a

more

And I
open

believe that we
process

and more

That concludes my remarks.

SENATOR RUSSELL: Can I ask another question?
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
SENATOR
it's

RUSSELL:

Sure.
We've had some

hearings on ex parte

really for me a troublesome issue,

understand
People

from your perspective on

'cause I can see both sides of it.

your Board, how does

come to us, special interest

matters with the PUC,

me to

that relate to what

groups, sometimes both sides, sometimes

side, and they give us their views on an issue.

and

we do?
just one

And we go into committee, and then the

public meeting and whatever is discussed is discussed, and we vote.
How
ever

-- if we were -- if the

do would be

would

to

ex parte rule applied to us, the

have whatever is presented

seem to me from the

job that we have to

to us in the

only thing we could

committee hearing.

do would cut off some

It

valuable input.

Help me to understand why that is not the same case with you, as a member of that Board
seeking information, trying to digest mounds of stuff.
MS.

SCHILLER:

ours.

There are

quality

issues.

Um hum.
a

There are

lot of

What's the difference?

certain similarities in our process,

differences.

Invariably, these issues

First of all,

yours and

we deal exclusively

are extremely technical and

in air

very difficult

for many of the Board members to understand, unless they're chemical engineers, none of
which
just

are chemical engineers.

We do

have some members who are

happen to have technical background as

well.

elected officials and

It's very helpful to all

of us to

have this expertise shared.
When
their

a Board member is lobbied, invariably they're not lobbied by mothers who want

children to have good health,

have

the economic resources

to

because by and large mothers

go out and do

that these days.

aren't the ones who
They

are lobbied by

members of industry who have very powerful technical backgrounds and speak very well on
extremely
by.

complex issues that an

individual Board member's frankly

often overwhelmed

So, to the extent that you -- your constituents speak to you about issues that are

common

and deal with everyday things, our Board members can easily be overwhelmed with

technical information
Now,
every
things

I believe that this can be solved.

Because

there are obviously two sides of

technical argument and obviously if it were brought into the public light, these
could be discussed openly.

If our normal process

of talking to people

about

issues was not impeded at all up until the point when something was set for workshop or
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hearings,
people
way

I think that would

be a fair way

of dealing with the

who have sort of general complaints would come to

issue.

us or bump into us along the

and feel free to talk to us about these issues, and we to them.

an

issue is written and has technical language

Because then

At the point when

presented for discussion, change, fine

tuning, I believe this is the point at which Board members should not be discussing the
fine tuning in private.
SENATOR
interests,
interest,

RUSSELL:
if you

I

will,

understand your

point, but

the lobbying crew

I think

of times

in Sacramento who

when special

are paid by

a special

will come into my office and discuss a proposed piece of legislation or some

amendments, some of it which may be technical, but which gives me an opportunity to dig
into

their knowledge

side.

of

the issue, knowing

Sometimes the other side will seek

balance.
But

of course that

they're representing one

to see me and I'll see

them also and get a

That doesn't happen all the time.
I understand what you're saying, but I think somewhere along the line-- and I

don't know where truth lies in this, but somewhere along the line, the information that
I

can

illicit

from those

special interest

lobbyists is

helpful to

me, either

in

determining that I agree with them or I disagree with them, for whatever reasons I come
to.
in

But it's a process which if were cut off would seem to me make my job much harder,
that I would

might

would be interminably longer.

MS. SCHILLER:

which I

MS.
process

SCHILLER:

the legislative process, most of

session where debate is limited, and there's

I don't know if that happens with you or not.

Senator -- oh, pardon me.

SENATOR RUSSELL:

it

perhaps technical material

And you know

work is done in the last part of the

not that opportunity.

our

more time reading

not understand without somebody there to help interpret for me, or our committee

hearings
our

have to spend

I don't know where truth lies in this •••
Well, we don't disagree with you, it's just we disagree on how that

should be implemented.

We believe that industry should take their concerns to

staff, because our staff does have the technical information and can evaluate what
is they're being told.

matters
process,

so that they

can

We encourage industry to
be hammered out.

just as you pointed out.

And

come to staff and

in fact it is

discuss these

an extremely valuable

Often times staff discovers little

adjustments in

the rules that could be made and smooth out the hearing process, because there problems
can be identified and solved in advance.

And I think that's important to take place on

a natural basis.
But
weren't
they

it's only where perhaps industry feels that there are additional measures that
heard by the staff or

have raised an issue

that perhaps they feel they

that appeals more to

weren't treated fairly, or

a Board member than

to the technical

issue of the staff member, that's what the public hearing process is for.
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CHAIRMAN
FERC,

I guess it's not unusual

as a matter

of

a disclosure.
make decisions.
SENATOR
Board

fact, to have an

the ARB, the

ex parte rule.

It's

Commission,

not a prohibition, it's

And I don't see it the same as the legislator.

We are

RUSSELL:

of Education.

about

You're elected to

who are

I

was

cr.iticized

I

had an issue

intervening

before them, it

in a matter

before the State

related to my

district, and I

called some of the members to express my viewpoint.

That, some -- the president of the

commission,

Said

or

appropriate.
CHAIRMAN
whoever

the

board,

took

umbrage

ROSENTHAL:

Yea,

but

you spoke to, would have

then all the

it s

you

at that point,

-- the president

to disclose that that information

not

or

was being sought.

, nor should he have prohibited you from speaking,

he should have perhaps indicated

the members of the commission.
For

that

So, you know •••

In other words, you're not
but

with.

that that information would be

But that's -- it's kind of a disclosure thing.

example, when I complain about

times

with the PUC, I write it down.

phone

call to influence

a

available to all

what a commission is doing,
It's public

information.

member of the Commission,

as I've done many

I don't try to make a

because of who I

am.

words, I think the disclosure is the important thing, not a prohibition.

In other

I don't think

anybody should be prohibited from talking to anybody about anything.
One

of the things that we huve done in the

legitimate
members

is our

Brown

Act, for

of the Commission,
might be

example,

three of them

taking

And

past in order to make the process look
in which --

you know, if

can't be together
so,

you have five

in the same

it's what you

car because

to the

as

acceptable.
Thank you very much.
MS.
say

SCHILLER:

Thank you.

If I may comment on

that you receive -- you

appropriate
partake

out your comments

way of handling it.

of ex parte

other

discussions while something

lobbyists, I tell them I don't

is set for

hearing, but would
members.

be summarized in a sentence,

have the benefit of

You

I do think that is the

I can share it with Board

oral conversations is that they'll
Board members will not

in writing.

When I'm contacted by

write their comments to me so
with

your comments at this moment.

what went on in

they

The problem

and in fact the

that conversation.

So, I appreciate your suggestion that comments instead be placed in writing so they can
be

and completely shared.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MS. SCHILLER:
CHAIRMAN

Okay, thank you very much.

Thank you.

ROSENTHAL:

At this point I

have asked the Attorney General

had similar concerns as President Wilk did about testifying.
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to be here.

But they wrote me a

letter
long

declining to participate in
letter-- but I'd

hearing schedule.

difficult,
reason

like to read four

But I d

like to read--

paragraphs that the AG

and it's a

wrote regarding the

And there are copies of this letter in the back for those that would

to get a copy)

like

the hearing.

"In general, the schedule

which inevitably affects

set by the commission was grueling and

the quality of

the proceeding.

The

only stated

for the schedule was the desire of the current commissioners to decide the case

before year's end, a reason unrelated to the merits of the case or any notion of giving
the

merger the considered attention it deserves.

hardships
was

on the parties and the administrative

the appearance it gave of the

This

case has

driven

been

The commission's schedule inflicted
law judges.

Perhaps most troublesome

PUC willingly yielding to the demands

shadowed by persistent

rumors that the

by political considerations, and that any

of one side.

PUC's decision would

be

rush to meet utility-urged deadlines

only reinforces those rumors."
And

then I'm going to skip

concern
case.

that the

two

But changes

to another paragraph-- "We

assigned commissioners be

in personnel

this

case would involve an

issues

than

available

the

assigned

case

from the start.

in administrative

PUC

case.

If

would be ready
Neither

to decide the

agencies and

no

It took no prescience to foresee that

enormous volume of evidence

typical

when the

given the opportunity

are commonplace

grounds for abridging the rights of the parties.

appreciate the legitimate

and an even broader

specific commissioners
for decision, other

range of

are unlikely

to be

commissioners should be

the interests of incumbents

nor commission customs

should weigh more heavily than the needs of each party for adequate time to present its
case."
"The
effort

parties

generated

several thousand

to make sense out of the huge

record.

pages of

post-hearing briefs

in their

However, the administrative law judges,

must initially decide this case, have been allocated only 60 days to prepare their
initial decision.
careful
The

That simply fails to allow time for reading the post-hearing briefs,

review of the hearing transcripts, and evaluation of the hundreds of exhibits.

thoughtful deliberation to which the parties and

the public are entitled is being

sacrificed to the Commission's scheduled."
And

finally,

continuing
parte

as

regards

~x

parte

issues

need for a strong rule, written in

contacts.

Although

the

lobbying

by the parties, rumors

statute,

with clear

PUC

-- "This

illustrates the

the Public Utilities Code, governing ex

entered an

order restricting

of indirect importuning of

reporting requirements

case also

and sanctions,

behind-the-scenes

commissioners persist.
remains the

best way

A
to

protect the public and the integrity of the commission's process."
Okay,

now I'd

like to

California Edison Company.

hear from

Mr. Pickett,

Welcome.
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the senior

counsel for

Southern

MR. STEPHEN E. PICKETT:
note

at the outset

~nterest

that

MR. PICKETT:
CHAIRMAN
~ndicating

on behalf of SDG&E

ROSENTHAL:

MR.

Fine

Yes, that's acceptable.

I received a letter

from san Diego

that you would be speaking on their behalf.
And we

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
PICKETT:

Which looks like the parts were already in place.

Would that it were so.

We do appreciate, though, your invitation to

today and the opportunity to present our

voice,

as well, in the

••• of consolidating things and we •••

MR. PICKETT:

~tem

I'm speaking here

I'd like to

of •••

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL

speak

Thank you Senator Rosenthal, Senator Russell.

I'm struggling with a

cold.

comments, and please forgive my croaky

My comments this

morning will be limited

to the

on the agenda and the comments on the environmental I'll do in the second session.

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR. PICKETT:

Right

I was responsible for managing the cases that we presented to the PUC

and the FERC, and I've been actively involved in the process.
I've

been actively involved in the

Thank you.

process since the inception of

our merger, so

frankly I was a little surprised at the title of today•s hearing, is the PUC Rushing to
Judgment?

Because in our view the only rush there's

been has been at a snail's pace.

To provide some prospective here on the time that it's taken, I can only echo President
Wilk's
the

comments, that it's taken longer here to study this merger than it's taken from

fall of the Berlin Wall

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:

to unification of the two

Germany's

What's one thing got to do with the other?

Now, you commented

I don't understand

that comment, sir.
MR. PICKETT:

That was a merger in a much larger •.•

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR

PICKETT:

Okay.

••• sense, I think Senator.

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR

PICKETT:

commented
very

our

merger application

to President Wilk that

minor amendment.

was filed

nearly two

the application was amended,

years ago,

yes it was.

And really

is no good reason why the process should have taken that long in our view.
very beginning of

opponents

have

engaged

to relitigate

was a

So it will be, from the time of the initial

of our application until the Commission's decision, over two years.

the

It

And our testimony, our case in chief, which was a very complete

case in chief, was filed in April of 1989.

there

and you

this

case -- both the

in delaying
issues

PUC case and the

tactics, raising

that have been
-25-

From

merger case -- merger

issues of

recently decided by

marginal relevance,
the Commission and

in burdensome and abusive
the

of the Commission's decision for as
CHAI~AN

ROSENTHAL:

PICKETT
CHAI~AN

And Edison lost

think we

ROSENTHAL

MR. PICKETT:

a fair number

You lost almost

No, I

of them.

with that.

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR.

PICKETT:

a minute

time

gotten more than

And by and large the

the
intervenors

But the

unreasonable

in the case

for

time

The

and

demands of

discovery

Commission

D~

had to

that our testimony was filed until the time
additional two months

the

to intervenors.

had

in.
And

as you

pursued

those that

disagreed
that
the

out,
we

number of

just turn out cartons

And some are going

more time to

But

real issues in the case
the tree

So it's

was

merged company, and how many
district

inconceivable to me
have the information
unrelated

needed, stuff that s

should also

out that with the

the PUC case were also

FERC case.

to the

the

of

issues,

considered all of the same
the same

prepared

and the

from which to work.

And

before

the FERC

had

the same

So in terms of

what amounts to

trial run of

even started.

would think that would

Not a chance.
Even

the

DRA

in the

had access
FERC

to the

trial

so, in

inconceivable that anyone can come up here and
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The

But

of information between the

the

argue to you, the people didn't

And

of information

to come up and argue that

will there be at the South Orange

more than

unreasonable.

We wrest thousands of
of the

and on and on.

battles,

-- that were

We produced over a million pages

PUC proceedings.

required

thought were fair

with us and said

discovery.

yes, we lost a

and the
the circumstances
maintain

that volume

a

reasonable

to

or are
Now

ready for

a half after

we filed the

commenced, but the

continue.

The 61

unfocused,

il

evidence

or that

they surprised,

for the issues involved.

a year and

f

the

days

initial application, the

tactics, the

of the

hearing

tactics of merger opponents

record, those

are replete with

rambling, and utterly meaningless

of that I

would invite you

PUC hearings

to look at

cross examination.

how little of

And as

the cross-examination

testimony was cited in the briefs of many of the opponents.
In

some --

in

a few cases

the briefs of

the parties could

have been submitted

without one day of hearing and cross-examination for all the use of the parties made of
what

they did.

The time they spent

in the hearing process was for

one purpose only:

delay, and more delay, forestalling the day of decision.
Now
the

eight weeks into the twelve-week hearing schedule we realized that the pace of

hearings had been so

delayed by the kinds

of behavior that I've

described, that

with the number of witnesses remaining we simply weren't going to make the Commission's
schedule.

And we filed

Senator,
days

a motion for

in your questioning

of President Wilk,

for the last three weeks.

six-hour

hearing

Saturday

and

applicants

day

they

consideration of it.

restricted the

to 20 hours of cross

the Commission expanded

They added an hour

Monday through

And you mentioned

this,

the hearing

to the hearing schedule, made it a

Friday, and

added a

applicants

Edison and

examination time of our own.

five-hour hearing
SDG&E --

day on

and only

the

Everybody else had all

wanted.
Now, I'm sure, and I've read in the press and the materials that were
morning,

that people are going to tell you that that was an unprecedented step, it was
it was burdensome, and it
and

you

that the

is

this

made it utterly impossible for

in the
facts

people to prepare

I sat through those hearings, and I can tell
last three weeks

of the

the extended schedule, the hearing schedule was so slack that 24 hours

that

four full days

utterly belie

of

that

claim.

time out of

During the

the 18

of

extended hearing

went

unused.
We were willing
not

at

unwil

of
that

great

inconvenience

to schedule

available.
the

that time to make our witnesses available on extremely short

the

to the

witnesses because they

witnesses.

But

some parties

claim their attorneys

were

couldn't be

After all the weeks and months of notice that the hearing was taking place,

attorneys couldn't be available.

But in order to

due process of any kind to any one, the
they have the

patience of Job

assure that there was no denial

Commission's ALJs -- and I have to comment

here -- they

tolerantly bent over

even that form of outrageous conduct on the part of an attorney.
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backwards and
Conduct that

no court would tolerate, and frankly
SENATOR

RUSSELL:

the PUC shouldn'

have to either.

The court continually gives -- grants continuances all the

It's the same thing.
MR.

PICKETT:

When they get into a hearing though, Senator, I would submit

the judge is conducting a trial and an attorney says he can t be at a trial and doesn
have good cause, that attorney iv going to be sanctioned.
SENATOR
that

RUSSELL:

Got to

be

, I would

in either case I think it's outrageous what

I

m

attorneys do in terms of the process

of justice.
MR. PICKETT:

I -- I

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:

Well, I -- I don't disagree.

may have one attorney.
own and outside?
MR. PICKETT:

Edison had how many attorneys on this particular case, of their

A dozen,

PICKETT:

resources
They
of
the

two dozen, more?

We had two attorneys inside and I think sixteen outside attorneys.

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR.

My concern is that an intervenor

Uhmmm.

And they

And so -- and so

were assigned to

to attack this issue properly,

we think.

But the PUC

yes, we had

the

allowed the conduct.

They rescheduled the witness for the benefit

didn't say no, you have to be here.

And still in that last 18

the attorneys who couldn't be there.
time went unused.

And

different issues.

need it.

The parties didn't

They

days, 24 hours of

weren't restricted in

the

amount of cross examination they could do. They came to an end.
Now I've gone through the procedural history of the case in the detail that I have
because

reasonable
obtain
the

the information they needed, more
filed.

their own case.

they have abused

to challenge our

ample hearing time

The parties of the case have

and frankly in our

used

RUSSELL:

Yes.
I was reading this

"Edison Pushes for Limits" and

reflecting on what went on before in the discussion this morning.

and

case and

Can I ask a question?

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
SENATOR

And they had

judging

information than they ever used,

their opportunities here to the fullest.

SENATOR RUSSELL:

members

of us, to

opportunity to fully participate in the case, engage in

briefs they

present

have had every

it demonstrates that the parties to the PUC's merger

appointed, day one, when the new Governor, whoever

the other two are out.

In your opinion, would

going to have to go back to ground zero?

so forth and

If there are two new

he or she may be, comes in

it be correct to say that they are

And if they are, would they be then put in on

this case as new Commissioners or Commissioner?
MR.

PICKETT:

understanding

I hesitate to comment on the Commission's internal processes.

that in the past, though, new Commissioners
-28-

To my

have come in and cases that

voted on cases that were pending.
sma1ler

records

Commissioners

and

have

coming

in

here

been
are

And most

able

faced

to

of the PUC's cases, I think, have

go

with

back

read

the record.

the daughting

task to

assimilate the record and provide real meaning to almost thousands

So new

under

to

pages of material

and effectively understand and vote on it, if they haven't been kept apprised and up to
speed

throughout the

fairly

up to speed

process.

And we're talking,

to vote about

a very extensive

I think, in

order to get

delay in order

people

to render a

fair

decision.
SENATOR
it

RUSSELL:

to a conclusion

So perhaps some of the impetus on the Commission's
by

December would be to

avoid a continuation of

to bring

the process for

whatever length of time it will take to brief new Commissioners.
MR. PICKETT:

I think •••

SENATOR RUSSELL:
MR.
read,

PICKETT:

Is that unreasonable?

That's not unreasonable, and I think

both President

Commissioner

in public statements that I've

Hulett, and I believe

Commissioner Duda have

expressed that very thought.
SENATOR RUSSELL:
MR. PICKETT:

Okay, thank you.

In summary I -- after going through all the procedural nightmare that

we've been through here, I think it's clear that no one's been denied the right here to
participate fully and effectively in the PUC's process.
And

in closing

Rosenthal,

I'd li};e to note that two

you

SB

52

the

in its consideration of this merger.
with

you, and after

dispute
on

the

it, and

some modifications to

that

And

we

now the

law.

And we can

PUC must

in the

the bill, and

of some of the provisions, we
it's

years ago, I think it was, Senator

process

even though we

continue to

moved to a position of neutrality

all debate as

a matter of

interest the

of any provision of a piece legislation, but it's clearly beyond question in
our

view

that

it's

a

fair and

of matters like
But
assumes

reasonable legislative

--to

provide for

mergers that have an impact on the public interest.

it's also important to remember that when
a concomitant

act for

responsibility

government chooses to regulate, it

here, to regulate

and carry out

its functions

expeditiously,

such that the the process of regulation itself does not become a burden

that

legitimate

prevents

reasonable time.
weighing
review

and

beneficial

activities

Clearly a balance has to be struck.

the need for the

public interest and the

that goes with it, with the need for

from

going

forward

within a

There has to be a weighing here,
extent and burden of

a regulatory

expedition so that commercial matters can

go forward reasonably.
And

where the balance lies in a given case is obviously a matter of judgment.
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But

I have to tell you that after slogging the way through this process from the beginning,
for the last two or more years now, I find it hard to believe in my heart that any real
deference

have been

to the need for expedition.

say, so what
But

And I know that some people are

big issues, big company, they can wait.

I think it's important that we remember

•re down

too, SDG&E's employees.

there in a company that has an uncertain future, and they perceive the uncertainty that
this

merger has created for their jobs

and their livelihoods.

And to all

of us, our

and our source of livelihood, one of the most important things in our lives.

And

have unnecessary regulatory delay here is just unconscionable with those people out
an uncertain future.
And

I think

we

know too

that

motivated attorneys --

and I agree

with Senator

'a comment about attorneys -- motivated attorneys can engage in delaying tactics
indefinitely if they're allowed to do so.
Commissioners

to discipline all parties to

Utilities

to be as disciplined

And it takes tough minded judges and

PUC proceedings, and I accept

by the process as the

intervenors.

the burden.
In order to

cut through the delaying tactics, the irrelevant issues, the procedural smoke that gets
thrown up in these things, and get to the real issues that affect the public interest.
And
been

our view, and it's

very unfortunate I think,

applied to the process in this

the

much too little discipline

merger case to date.

Commission exercises more discipline in the process
, hopeful

And we

has

fervently hope that

to bring it to an expeditious

by the end of the year.

Thank you.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
. PICKETT:

You suggested that the same thing was heard by FERC .

Yes, sir.

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR.
issue

PICKETT:

FERC did not have to deal with some of the things in 52?

Not specifically.

They did

not have to deal specifically

with the

benefit, or burden on employees, t.hat's correct.

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
PICKETT:

That' correct.

Okay.

That's a good question.

When is the FERC decision expected?

The ALJ has had the matter under submission

some time now and should
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR.

PICKETT:

How long?

He's had

serves, it's
CHAIRMAN

it

under submission since July

-- if a date

is -- if my

29.

ROSENTHAL:

Are -- the ALJs and

the PUC have only had 60

And what is the rush to the end

days.

Tell me

of this year when FERC will not have

their decision until next year sometime?
PICKETT

I

think that

of the differences

FERC will

have its

is the FERC had
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decision out

early next

one ALJ assigned, the

year,

PUC has two.

PUC
of

divided

issues between

time in Commission

And 60

for turning out decisions.

is a normal

Frequently, major general

rate case decisions are turned out by ALJs in that period of time.
CHAIRMAN
has

been

ROSENTHAL:

going

complicated

on

The President indicated that the case on the

for

three years.

in many aspects, so

Now,

is your

issues

case, which

limited that it's different

is much

than the way the

more
PUC is

dealing with telecommunications?

MR.
when

PICKETT:
you're

The issues

carrying

out

an

with external realities.
maintain

a

deal long

the

But
commission

get it

through the

to put together

regulatory process.

That

external reality is something that's very much on the minds of any enterprise
conduct

business.

deadlines,

And

that's

one reason that

so that parties trying to carry out

to

regulatory proceedings ought

to have

a commercial transaction can have some

in when they'll get through the process

certainty

an

But in a merger case, you're

You're dealing with companies

enough to

starts

future utility practices should be

in a different way, there's no immediate deadline.

deal
and

when

investigation

practices or whether

of
done

seve+al reasons

are different for

and get done, whatever the outcome.

If this merger doesn't succeed, SDG&E ought to be thinking about how it can go it's own
way and succeed.
CHAIRMAN
it

ROSENTHAL:

It seems to me that FERC, which has also had this case before

for almost as long as a period of time, perhaps maybe even longer, does not see fit
the ALJ or the Commissioners in terms of a

to

deadline you -- Edison has

decision.

reach this

some strict constraints:

to

limit discovery; you opposed time extensions for ORA and the intervenors; you asked for
the

scheduled to be shortened; you proposed

workweek;

you

an elimination of the rebuttal

longer hearing days and a six-day
phase; you oppose reopening the

for new evidence; and you proposed a shorter time for ALJ s decision.
seems

to me

that

Edison was much

more concerned about

Commissioners then in
SENATOR
business

RUSSELL:

is to

direction
into

I

would say

that the purpose

their job done as quickly as possible.

of a utility

or a

Now, whether what they were

or not, I find no fault with either side trying to move in a

that's

consideration

decided by

an adequate record.

Mr. Chairman,

was

having this case

Now, it

to benefit them.
and

do

the

The

function of the PUC is to

people's business

as best

and as

take all that

expeditiously as

You know, we've got so much bureaucracy, and the people are fed up with bureaucracy
and
job.

politicians and all of that, and I

just think that, you know, let the PUC do their

Let's not beat up on Edison because they want
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to get the job finished.

The PUC

and all these issues are

to

know, he's just doing his
don't

with you.

there's

lot of time

that

1

wanted

But when

but a

which

isn't that the

you say that so

weren't

to

to

of the PUC, is to say you

ROSENTHAL:
'd like to comm:entt, Senator.

this

of time between

time was lost which wasn't real
comment on that

of '
because of

Senator.

We

the PUC establ

conference every two weeks during
had informal
ies

in front of

them and made

a
if we had an
over

the

ection.

course

to

time.

Yes, we

So

there

wasn't

raise them

words

any great

given the mass of discovery,

, have
asked the FERC

would

got an answer

delay in

we have

getting
that

the PUC.

we

the PUC

and resolve them

that

ROSENTHAL:

the

information flowed to the

for a decision

ections

They had

So when parties

discovery period, they

had objections, and when

to hear
could,

into

And thousands of pages of

of

, we're

discovery conferences.

decisions fairly quickly.

maybe late

of the

much of what was at

best

could argue as

you taken the
ALJ, or the

same position before

FERC Commissioners for

FERC?

In

a decision

the new FERC Commissioners came on board?
PICKETT

Wel , let me comment in direct answer to your last

concerned about a
concerned about

decision by present Commissioners.
a decision

had

We're concerned and

We think it should

have been

-- we thought we could have this done
lines

to the ALJ direct

him to expedite it, and

the
earlier.

that no,

issued
the ALJ forced the parties to that

process a lot quicker than

And, yes, there the ALJ has

March of

the PUC did.

They

it

not turned out his decision yet, but

is still there, and we would like very much for the FERC to issue
ALJ to

his decision out and have the FERC issue a decision
~32-

year end.
CHAIRMAN

The Edison quote: "It

ROSENTHAL

doesn't make sense to have

a decision

made by people fresh to the Commission" -- end of quote.
MR.
we're

agree with that.

I

And as I commented to

now nine months past when we originally thought

coming
you

PICKETT:

up on a time at the end of this

get two new Commissioners

while

new Commissioners

voluminous

we could

a decision.

We're

year when there will be new Commissioners.

i.n

trying

Senator Russell earlier,

and we • re
to do a

going to have a

diligent

are

So

much longer delay

to have

to absorb a

the

of

record.

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR. PICKETT:
CHAIRMAN

How is that different than FERC?

can t

I

ROSENTHAL:

which

has

and

will

commissioners?
MR.

PICKETT:

have one new Commissioner on, and it isn't different, they have

a difficult job to do at FERC too.
SENATOR RUSSELL:
MR.

PICKETT:

a vacancy on.

How many members at FERC?

There are five members, and there are currently -- I believe there

No, excuse me, the vacancy was just filled.

SENATOR RUSSELL:

How many new members are we talking about?

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR. PICKETT:
have

been

been

Two of the Commissioners who were on the panel when we filed the case

replaced,

Commissioner

Since the time of the beginning of FERC?

but

they

fairly early

Stallon have left and have been replaced.

sitting there had been on the panel for most

heard.

I will also comment

very strict set of
not

were replaced

know to what

SENATOR

Hesse and

So the Commissioners that have

FERC are different.

They

have a

a multi-tiered process, and I personally do

the Commission involves itself

it to a

Chairman

of the time that this merger's been

that the procedures at
that

on.

early on in the process.

They

who has more extensive powers under the federal regulations.

RUSSELL:

Well,

to

put

it

in

a context

that I

would understand,

I

understand that December -- in January there will most likely be some new Commissioners
in the PUC.

Is there an analogous change of chairs in the FERC in January?

MR. PICKETT:
SENATOR

Not that I'm aware of, Senator.

RUSSELL:

When did the change --

when do the changes come up

in FERC, if

you could tell me?
MR.

PICKETT:

I don't know.

The terms are staggered

and I don't know

what they

are.
SENATOR
PUC where

RUSSELL

And do all five members of FERC

assign certain ones to help?
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decide this case, or is it like

All five decide it,

vote

and

don't have an

that I m aware of.
RUSSELL:

process

a little

it' 8

which allowed

the process
over a

and that•

of

little different

finished and then

in and it

up to

think

doesn't sound like FERC is

and

-- from

that way.

has

dec

staff

review of
PUC
written.

which

There's

ALJ decisions

modifies
staff

a

devoted

to

at the FERC with decision writ

the

assistance

, and

of

're covered

rule.
RUSSELL:

, what you're -- sounds like there's --where there's a lot of

similarities, there's some
MR. PICKETT

There are major differences, procedural differences, yes sir.

SENATOR RUSSELL:

Okay.

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
. PICKETT:
CHAIRMAN

or differences.

Okay, thank you very much •

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

ROSENTHAL:

Mr.

MR. ERIK B. JACOBSON:

Jacobson,

Deputy

Division

be

the

Ratepayer

here

as

ORA's Deputy

on vacation now.
before the Commission.

Director, with

the interests of consumers

DRA

We

the opportunity

case

priority

number one energy

have devoted an
this

to present our

merger

has been ORA's

attention

responsibility for

for Ed Texeira, who

in

issues raised

We

in order

amount
to
team

consumers the
of

We are

for consideration

most effective

than

, Senator Rosenthal,

your
for

this

in every phase

very proud of the testimony

the Commission.

in showing we've

This is made possible

efforts which provided the CPUC

monumental
-34-

effort.

for the

of staff resources and

consultants, and attorneys to
's

My

Advocates here

Division of

And I'm fill

a half.

of

Thank you very much, Senator Rosenthal, Senator Russell.
And

to

Director,

And

I

want

in large part,
with
to

thank you

advanced

While
stretched

to the

relevant
made

very
this

limit

to this merger

analysis of the merger, we were

and

and

process,

the

due to the

large scope of

the process DRA has

schedule.

every effort to meet the Commission's schedule and goal of

the end of this year
able

to

meet

challenge

schedule,

an
basic

were

have

enabled

within the

time

We have, under the Commission s

amount of evidence
As

SENATOR RUSSELL:
you

have had to deal with.

More time would

However, we've been

consumers

and

constraint that all the
merger.

a decision

Meeting this schedule has been a challenge.

this

the issues

to the

supporting our
amplify our

us to further

staff DRA s procedural and sdubstantive

Excuse me.

On that

, you were able to

that while

it sounds like you re

done and you didn't need any more time.

the

Is that what you re saying?

MR.

JACOBSON:

saying,

but

,

use more time to elaborate and support what you re

You could

think we did a vary

I

said.

support what we ve

been able to

and we would have
So I think

we have been able

to devolve the

record fully from our position.
SENATOR RUSSELL:

Thank you.

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR. JACOBSON:
CHAIRMAN

Let me, let me break in there.

Uhhmm.

ROSENTHAL:

At one point you asked for

with Edison
that?

over

caused

an extension, after
Do you want to

and

comment on

At •••
Sure.

You're talking about the

30-day extension that we requested

to file our case in chief?
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
SENATOR RUSSELL:

Did you

JACOBSON:
of
we

you know, there s

So we got, I guess, the

Obviously, you know, because

things that we

would have done

that we

on balance, I feel that we were able to present our case in chief

But

amount of evidence and that we were able to effectively represent

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:

are

weeks.

of what we were asking for.

-- or 75

an

MR.

it?

three weeks instead of four

We

didn't get everything,
't do.

I mean .••

That ' s

JACOBSON:

Okay, continue please.

As advocacy staff, DRA's procedural and substantive recommendations

not always adopted by the
where DRA

Commission.
more time

In this merger proceeding

there have been

than the Commission was willing
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to

us

fact of life in
allowed

say that the

schedule relat

case

rate
those

were

witnesses, and

prepare briefs.

Was

as a reason for these
think

that

this

case.

one of the factors that
there's also a

There,

felt it was more

to expedite this
you're

find out,

reason that the
to those other

case as

about a merger that is

you know, one way

or another whether it

and
should go forward

have a lot less time then the other cases that you cited.
months.
then we

this

three~week

of

As

We

extension that I

How much time did you have on the Diablo case?
it.

D

I

my
like that, to review

that

and one half years, it's my understanding.
cases more
re different.

There

And

So

icated than this?

It's difficult to

forecast of what

case.

make a

you think is
studies

a lot of

you're

on reasonableness of construction of a

so

of

like that, but
t

-- I

you

so •••

wasn't even involved in those

Could it also be there's a difference,
Commissioners I think.

ive, Mr.

The Commissioners were different
in

of

~~~~··~·s

rush,

business

how much time is

rush, and get

differences

it

needed, forever and a day,

done as quickly as

possible.

as against this rush,

So I think

while there may be

between the two Commissions and the amount of time they, it may be because

of,

as the

has said, a

difference in the type of case,

the

philosophy of the Commissioners.

So

and also as I said,

maybe this Commission, if they

were judging

that case, would have pressed it also.
MR.

JACOBSON:

I

didn t

want

to underestimate,

you

the difficulty

and

challenge that we had in this proceeding to meet the schedule.

But, again, it was --it

did

balance we were able to

take its toll on staff, and we
the

-- but we do feel that on

done, so to

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR. JACOBSON:
SENATOR

Thank you very much, Mr. Jacobson.

You're welcome.

RUSSELL:

Thank you

That

is what we're all here for, to make sure that

job is done as well as possible, I would think.
CHAIRMAN

ROSENTHAL:

Okay.

Debra Berger,

Deputy City Attorney, Office of the
MR. LESLIE GIRARD:

Girard,

Welcome.

It doesn't matter.

Good morning, Chairman Rosenthal, and Senator Russell.

I am one of the Deputy City Attorney's for the

worked on the

My name

of San

that

merger of SDG&E and Edison.

SENATOR RUSSELL:

I ask a question before you start?

MS. BERGER and MR. GIRARD:
SENATOR RUSSELL:
MS. BERGER:

Sure.

Is your Mayor still opposed to this merger?

Last I heard, yes.

SENATOR RUSSELL:
MR. GIRARD:
but

Attorney, City of San Diego.

Shall we proceed, as you've decided.

DEBRA BERGER:

is Debra Berger.

Attorney, Leslie

Thank you.

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MS.

Deputy City

Thank you.

May I comment, Senator Russell?

the city itself has taken a position

The Mayor has her own personal views,

as a body in its briefs to

both the PUC and

FERC, that is opposed to the merger.
SENATOR RUSSELL:
MS.

BERGER:

Thank you.

I have

prepared

an outline of the

some of the matters

would be pertinent to this Committee's review of the various issues
the merger proceeding.
are

any questions on what I

I don't intend to go

present, I'll be happy to

I'd like to cover that I

that I felt

procedural issues,

through all of that.
answer them.

If there

There are a

feel are important for this Committee

few

to hear and to

respond to some of the comments that were made by previous witnesses who testified.
One of the difficulties in going back through the record -- both the transcript, as
well

as

the

ALJ

-- and

attempting to
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recall and

present the

logistical

and issues that
in

were

raised

these

is

issues were off the record.

constraints that we

the
that

of the

the

discussions

to recall all of them after

And in

ficult.
that

of

discussed

various

a year

was filed,

irom the time

the time the

time if it took

was filed

for the Commission
done is to

rate cases

to render a decision

in context what

the

in this case.

that Edison

schedules for

decision in

had

've attached a

period of time has been afforded in this particular case

involves a decade

One

minus 60 and

general rate case that starts at

Clear

I

of time is involved as

all took far in excess of a year and a hal ,

502.

at

in

the most

of

, numerous contracts,

is, two

and numerous

of the crucial things, I think, to understand here is that the proceedings did

start out with a certain
that we would be
have

for that.

schedule to which we were

apprised of to begin with

40 hours instead of the

usual 25 hours, such that

That was -- that

we

decision was done as issue group three

which deals with net benefits and environmental

issues, the heart

not covered to the extent the 854 delineates it at FERC.
25 -- the extra 15 hours a week that Mr. Pickett said
an extra three Saturday's.
an extra three Saturday's.

I

would have been
That's

incredible numbers of hours, when

responses
to prepare
issues.

time.

to data requests
test

We're suppose to consult

examinat

hearing time.

with

your exhibits

were going on.
in boxes.

literally 75, one
s

and in the

and be coherent

It

It's a fact that

while the
in literal

that was

it had

We were working seven

It's preparation time.

tasks to

written

thrilled and chilled if

we were at 25 hours of

ust the time, it's in the hearing room.
with the

and other witnesses

We

were

hundred pages

on

meantime prepare
that 40

ime.
the cooperative effort of many of the
case.

That does not offset the fact that

game.

Had we known we

we managed to
the rules were

were going to be doing 40

At the time I was it.

in the middle

hours, perhaps we could have

Issue group three was my
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a

the

Mr. Schafren assist me
time.

terms of

some of the

But basically we have many -- from many of the parties, one attorney up

at least two dozen

that I'm familiar with

involved for the applicants.

of it was in an issue group that was crucial for the
examination
the

is more

to intervening

applicants are

take

I

to

the comments

more then
was not the

That
that

because

they've

decision,

decided

obviously there

was

form prior to that period of

that were

's

or the issues

already

, because

made that

the

were

when they requested time for various matters.

of San

the discovery

Cross

than it is to

their testimony in written

The

intent.

While the

that we care

what

felt

may feel

to pursue were

was

irrelevant

in rendering
We felt

a difference of

that we needed

this
to

explore the issues that we did.
And

it was not intervenors that were

Rather,

it was

the

applicants.

chastised throughout that discovery process.

There is

a specific ruling

which the Commissioners

commented on the fact that applicants were requesting reconsideration of a
ruling
they

that was quite clear.
finally interceded.
in this

It was after months

of attempting to get documents that

As your honor, Senator

case

for themselves.

Rosenthal pointed out, the discovery

The discovery rulings

were not against

intervening
SENATOR
flavor
and

RUSSELL

that there•

I

that

and

a

that will

this

that

re

Yet what you re saying would indicate to me that PUC is doing
over backwards as it relates to what Edison wants,

not fall

re tell

the

help me understand?

some criticism about the PUC's

so forth and so on.

a

ask

them

to

up.

And that sounds

like to me,

you know, that

justice is being meted out, and the hearing process is going on, and it is fair.
BERGER:
when

we

That's true

down to the eleventh
deadline was not

asked

that's true.

the

hour.

That is entirely the case.
is when they

The

to happen.

And it

to waive, or limit cross examination

were

and a lot of battles
wasted and

time, or unless they did -- as
We spent a lot of time

back and forth, that I'm sure

dilatory tactics on

realized that their

wasn't going to happen unless they

did -- which was to extend the hearing hours by 15 hours.
on

The problem was

either side, and

both sides will say
that's the attorney

business.
The
because
submittal

problem is that at the tail

end it was intervenors who had

to pay the price,

it was during their cross examination, during their filing of testimony, their
of data

and getting responses to
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that, with limited resources, and

funds,

made it

SENATOR RUSSELL:

difficult.

Were the extra hours and the extra days, didn't that tend to take

that
. BERGER:

of the

tasks at the same time.
on this.
't

at the expense

We didn't have the

on Saturdays and Sundays.
SENATOR RUSSELL:
BERGER:

of

There are so many hours you can put

around on Saturday and Sundays on

able
on a

in in a

At the time, we

San Diego's beach.

we were

And when hearing time ...

Glad to hear it.

The public will be pleased, I'

sure.

Your tax money, your tax dollars are well spent.

RUSSELL:
BERGER:

So when

the beach.

were

for

That removed us from time that

that needed to be undertaken.
SENATOR RUSSELL:
MS.

BERGER:

Exact

, exactly.

and the Commissioners

were

rendered early on, which I've
want the parties

want

doing

originally.

attached to my outline, they

multiple tasks during evidentiary

In rulings

That
that

specifically said we
hearings.

to disadvantage parties, which is

We do not
exactly the

where they realized the year-end decision

And then all of that went out the window.

SENATOR RUSSELL:
BERGER:

bureaucratic

one thing that's happening.

acknowledged those concerns

it proceeded, until we got to the point

MS.

the

As I've just said, data requests •.•

That's not just

demanding schedule that's going

threatened.

we wanted to

As it related to this

ALJs

don't

, that did not remove

Thank you.

I wish the year-end date had just been a target.

slowness either.

I'm not thrilled at sitting

sure all of us found less than fascinating at times.
ies that were
more test

attempting to delay

I'm not thrilled at

in months of hearings that
And I don't think there were

without reason, that

we're just going

in

to be filed, or to litigate an issue just because they wanted to
There were many issues, there are many things that came up that could

foreseen.
back on it with 20-20 hindsight, sure, I would have not pursued some of the
that I did, but I didn't know until I looked into them that
However, it is, you

know -- originally

icants

all these unreasonable, irrelevant issues.
the
commented
us

self-deal

issue originally.

on the fact that this needed to be
irrelevant issues.

But they
presented.

But

were not worth

said that we were,

you

didn't even want to

were ordered

to.

The

So it wasn't just a question

Some of those issues that they felt were irrelevant

relevant in the ALJ and Commission's mind.
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It's

been

discussed

Commissioners as to why a

already,

various

decision was necessary.

reasons

by

the

We've already discussed the

issue of the change in Commissioners, and it s already been out that this is -- this is
not

unique

to

Commissioners,

this

case.

General rate

cases and

doesn't drive the proceedings and

other decisions,

define what is

to

The concern for the uncertainty of the company, and the
I

think you need to note first of all

company

were also asking for

these issues

once

that

the

the

you need to
would have a

part

of

decision.

it in the proper

decision

the negotiation

That's

of the

felt was necessary to

of time

fully explore

the

this

context.

was

and part

conclusion

of

ion.

of the
my

to
it,

For them to

the time that it's

cases already discussed, is not a legitimate
been

take place.

outweigh their concern over the
concerns

take,

of

of the employees --

the

the time that they

which

or change

taken on

That uncertainty should have

consideration when

testimony.

I'll be

they made

happy to

their

answer any

questions.
CHAIRMAN

ROSENTHAL:

I

have no

further questions.
Let me -- let me

Thank you

very much.

ask you a question, then,

Mr.

Girard.

Oh, you have no statement.

Mr.

Girard.

It's my understanding that San Diego is represented in the FERC proceeding on

the merger.
MR.

GIRARD:

That's correct.

I represented the City

of San

back before the

federal Commission.
CHAIRMAN

ROSENTHAL:

The PUC has said

that the December deadline is

necessary to

influence the final FERC decision.
MR.

GIRARD:

comment

I

really

don't have anything

to say in

regards to that,

except to

that I know it won't have any influence on the administrative law judge.

What

effect it will have on the Commissioners there I do not know.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR. GIRARD:
CHAIRMAN

Has the FERC/ALJ issued a proposed position yet?

No, he has not.

ROSENTHAL:

In

of past FERC

merger decisions, how

soon might we

a final FERC decision following the ALJ decision?
GIRARD:

I

don'

way of

I can't give you an estimate in regards to this case.

me

you,

contrast, the immediately preceding merger

handled

with the Utah Power and Light case.

give

you some insight into that

1987.

In December of '87 the
hearing

conducted

and

set

proceeding.

And

~nuQru,

final

The application was filed

decision

and issued a
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case that the FERC

I have the relevant dates which will

Commission issued its hearing order,
a

Let

date.

The

in October of

which ordered an

administrative law

decision a little over six

judge

months later,

seven
October
there

months

later.

of 1988,

The

Commission issued

one year after

its

decision in

the application was

filed.

However

were two rehearing decisions and one final order that was just issued in June
year.

In

a

of their

with that case

FERC

declined

date to reach a decision in this case.
ROSENTHAL:

MR. GIRARD:
comments

Do FERC Commissioners tell ALJs how to run their cases?

They do so in what's called a

after the hearings have commenced.
when

the

ion is

with the Commission,
are.

The Commission

order.

The FERC process differs sl

filed, the

applicants and

not the ALJ,

to tell

issues an order

case, Mr. Pickett

do not do so

the intervenors
the Commission what

which defines the

the differences.

There were much narrower issues in the FERC
And in that decision -- that

in this

issues.

And in

the
this

However, the differences were

proceeding then there were in the

pre-hearing order -- the Commission

the ALJ whether or not they should -- he shall have a decision out by "x" date or
whether the process should be expedited.
SENATOR RUSSELL:

May I ask a question on that point?

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
SENATOR RUSSELL:
MR. GIRARD:

They can if they choose to.

Yea, yea.

Is it commonplace for FERC to establish a target date?

I am not terribly experienced before the federal Commission.

It is my

that the Utah Power and Light case was really the first major merger, if
1, or merger

of that size

that

've addressed,

at least in

recent

, and that was unusual for them to do that.
SENATOR RUSSELL:

set a deadline

. GIRARD:

set a deadline ...

SENATOR RUSSELL:

on that one?

. GIRARD:

yea.

SENATOR RUSSELL:
GIRARD:
•t

speculate.

Do you know what the reasons were?
don't

know what the

reasons, quite frankly,

I was not involved in

that case, obviously.

were.
But I do

And I
know that

order, in this case, referred to the Utah Power and Light decision and
experience with it, and specifically declined to set a similar date.
CHAIRMAN

ROSENTHAL:

Final question.

Did

FERC/ALJ cut off hearing

testimony and

time as the PUC has done?
MR.

GIRARD:

No.

I -- the

for a lot less issues.
slow.

He

hearings before the FERC/ALJ

took approximately 90

Towards the end he indicated that he felt the proceedings

threatened to

do

a number of

without setting a specific date.

Based on
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things to try

to speed up

his comments, all the parties

the

some
witnesses and the like,
SENATOR

RUSSELL:

of

Let

me ask

We have two houses, the

committee

that hears a

of cross

question as
and the

it relates

will

pass it out without a

side where

both sides,

different

, different
GIRARD:

To

similarities,

"no" votes.

issues and

be

Is it

be

and the PUC, different
that it

so

is not

, different timelines,
honest

Our house

also differ,

The

the two houses.

to say that there s some similarities between
different

you have

I've seen some bills

there will be 20

vote, and vice versa.

different

legislative

And you take a

Senate,

the same issue

because there are different dynamics of

MR.

examination of

to our

You have different results in the two houses

over from the

fair

you a

particular issue, or

come

simply

to

that occurred towards the last few weeks of the hearing.

process.

different results.

agreement

with

Senator,

there are a few differences.

unusual to

have

or "nay"?
there are

a

the main

in my

opinion, is the fact that the issues that each Commission addresses are different.
FERC
of
They

, if you will, is limited
whether the merger is,

interests", closed

"consistent with the

rates are wholesale

The

the Federal Power Act to a determination

do not make decisions based on rates to

jurisdictional

few

to ratepayers per se.

Their

across state lines.

They

rates, or transmission

also have jurisdiction to consider the effect on competition.
And

those were

the

issues that

Commission

did

assessment

be performed, but that was a

and

have

we addressed

and

in fact

we did not address environmental issues
have a

conducts

little different

in

cross examination in

room

FERC

an environmental

direct

that

per se in the

regards to

the

The

in our

their staff.

we had.

They

Their staff

that

to the DRA

is not analogous

in this

are not an advocate for
SENATOR

RUSSELL:

and deadlines to be set, or not
GIRARD:
differences

that I have

and,

, senator, would
I think

discussed.

not be the result of those

any differences in timelines are due

of the Commissioners, and in our
administrative

the

be set

Differences in my

to

, to differences in timelines,

Would that result, in your

Power and
I may say,

he

rushed to j
RUSSELL

, who was the same
case.

So he had

enumerated not a few

case, the personality

administrative law judge who sat on
with a

merger proceeding

times, on the record,

in the Utah Power and Light case.
Who -- the Commissioners were

him to

Utah Power and Light case, he felt so, yes.
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his displeasure with

RUSSELL
and

SENATOR

It occurred in 1987-88

RUSSELL:

So, he

in this case?

I just wonder if

1 this

stuff.

But

that i f

there

he felt
I'm stumbl

seem to be
the

so there

was

around in the

me that if

for example, the

FERC is not, that's

is

that would mean

else is the same, FERC would have a shorter timeline than the PUC.
The

GIRARD:

with

initial
it took

the

had

two

or
that

that

was

it would

environmental issues and

MR.

ago with the Utah

case?

MR. GIRARD:

pressure

And in this case the Commissioners -- how

FERC,

a

Senator,

to prepare

excuse me

one

had a duty, although

continues to disavow their duty to conduct

merger.

But

did --

took a rehearing

set up a parallel procedure to do that.

is

that

refused

an environmental assessment
for them

request for

there's at least one Commissioner

environmental review for the proposed
for them to acknowledge, and therefore

And

they're in the middle of that right

now.
SENATOR
decide

RUSSELL:

It just seems to me that if there are 100 points that PUC has to

and only 50 that

-- or a 150

that FERC has to

decide, the timelines will

be

different.
MR.

GIRARD:

Well, in this case you had it backwards.

there were only 10 for the FERC to decide,

SENATOR RUSSELL:
MR. GIRARD:

That's government for you.

If there was a 100 for PUC

and they took almost as long to do

Thank you.

Thank you.

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
SENATOR RUSSELL

Thank you very much.

I should say federal government for you.

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
SENATOR RUSSELL:

Appointed Commissioners.

We're not talking about government.

Well, they're part of government.

ROSENTHAL:

Michael

Shames, Executive Director

Action Network and Audrie Krause, Executive Director

of UCAN,

of TURN.

Will you both

please?
. MICHAEL SHAMES:
ROSENTHAL:
SHAMES:

SHAMES:
I guess

Mr. Shames, if you want to go first, or how ...

Certainly, I'll do that.

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR.

Howdy.

Okay.

Thank you.
ile

that have been

Good morning,

Mr. Chairman, Senator.

(?) testimony, so to
raised

the city, and
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I have

speak, that will cover

prepared a

all the various

by the Attorney General

-- the

other
Now,

upon

served

as

the lead counsel

merger
sole

for UCAN --

the

counsel

not have counsel
San

-- during this

So in many ways I was the

advocate in

the

as

the press

SENATOR RUSSELL:
MR. SHAMES

as many
business

How many did you attend?

What

, or how • •

About

SENATOR
MR. SHAMES:

SENATOR RUSSELL:

How many were there?
then

, etc.

It

took about two years.
SENATOR RUSSELL:

The

SHAMES:

MR.

the hearing s
SENATOR RUSSELL:

You were

for

Ninety

of all those?

those too?

MR. SHAMES:

SENATOR RUSSELL:
MR. SHAMES:

No. I was

SENATOR RUSSELL:
MR. SHAMES:

SHAMES:

much

In other hearings 90

Thank you.

All

What I'd like to

the events that occurred in
that,

Before
final

what is

It

not
answer

can

I

to be

between now
a decision

, a

a

to be issued

j

upon

the past,

you, you have a Commission that
date

process.

correct.

SENATOR RUSSELL:
MR.

full-time in that

November 26th.

and the end of this

December 26th, which is its

decision

It has

year.

administrative

to be in order

for the Commission to

render a final decision.
So

within a month

written

decision for

comments
of

the

the
final

the

the ALJs must come

Commissioners to
That

briefs

complete

their staff to

the judges all
to

out with a

prepare this

60

and have

from the date of

final decision,

this
about

is

a
SENATOR

decision are

rate case . •
RUSSELL:

Excuse

me.

These

are --

these

are

making this

SENATOR RUSSELL:
• SHAMES:

.•• the judges who heard all of the testimony and everything.

Who heard some of the test

Most of it is in written form •

had 79 days for hearing, so they couldn't hear a lot of the cross examination
SENATOR RUSSELL:

But they were there for the 79 days?

MR. SHAMES:

were there for the 79

, correct.

up a storm.

SENATOR RUSSELL:

but

up a -- well, they couldn't read much during the

SHAMES:

SENATOR RUSSELL:
SHAMES:

Well •••
subsequent to the

hearings they were reading up

a storm, as you

to prepare a final decision.
Now,
PUC,

a general rate

case, which is another

kind of proceeding before

a standardized proceeding far less complex then this one.

the

The administrative law

that's assigned to that case who hears all the hearings has 100 days in which to
prepare a final decision -- far less complex case.
Now

Senator Russell, you talked about,
that the PUC generally uses?

is there a timeline?

Is

there a standard

The answer is, yes there is.

The general rate

case plan that took two years to develop delineates a timeline on which these cases are
heard,

decided, etc.

propose

-- to write

I'm just

comparing what a general

a proposed decision

rate case affords an

versus the pressure

ALJ to

that is being

upon

ALJs to issue a decision within 60 days, almost half the time in a GRC with a far

extensive record then an ALJ would see in a general rate case.
I

think it's important that the Committee comment, or press upon the Commission, to
the ALJs the time they need, as opposed to impose this 60-day timeline.
you

these judges are
They will.

very competent.

And within

And I can

60 days they will

come out

But I can assure you it will not be reasoned; it will not

thought out; they will not have the opportunity to seriously consider the
fications

of all the conditions they may propose,

SENATOR RUSSELL:
. SHAMES:
SENATOR

Let me ask you on that point •

Yes.

RUSSELL:

If

time.

no

do these

"Look guys, we're just not

We can't"

allowed to do that?

is

what flexibility

that's

or to the PUC

MR. SHAMES:

or the decisions they are going

all the things that you

judges have

to say

having enough time.

said are going to take

We

place.

Or what?

I don't know of any rule that prohibits them from doing so, similar to
rule that

an employee

can --

can't do it in the amount of time
-46-

is prevented

from telling

you've given me."

an employer,

And I don't think any

an
you re
think

that

have.

And of course, you can

set

Mr. Boss.

is unreasonable,
will

they're

It's

do it.

I won't

difficult for an
can

to do the best

the

do it.

ALJ to do

that.

I

But

what

look at the standard of reasonableness that the PUC has
rate case

forth in the

the PUC has

That

are

is the standard of reasonableness that

standard

here

these

other comment that I think this Committee needs to deal with now.
the ALJs

Nove~ber

on

decision

and

then

are

in which

to review these comments
which

to review this

extensive

to the Commissioners

The

before issuing a decision

That

transmit written comments

the Commissioners all of 10 days

After the

if in fact it occurs, the

-- have 20

Commissioners

What

circumstances

that out when you discuss the

of

One

't

I

to review the comments of the various

ies, as well as to review the extensive record and the proposed decision to come up
with

a decision in 30

a position where

These Commissioners are

them

days to issue a decision on

very carefully the
This

Commission

decision if

needs

need one 196

SENATOR RUSSELL:

Was that

time,

needs

Same

Commissioners.

make on

accountable
be

gone.

will

President Wilk I think reasonably asserted

And most

Well, the

a year-end decision is, in fact,
be making at this

this merger, because

two of the five

be accountable for any

will be

will

will not be accountable to this Committee.
Wilk's desire

to leave

expect that

s not made a secret

the Commission
after this

of that.
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So, in fact,

that

at least two of

oh, at least

a decision on this, will no

to the
President

other point

Commissioners make the final decision

me about this press to get

decision

I

Now, there's one

are accountable to the public and to this Committee.

will be

case.

same Commission?

Same Commission.

three Commissioners who

a

well thought out reasoned decision in 30

the Commissioners are

the

to review

days on a very small and

I'd like to address that concerns me.

concerns

and took

ramifications of a

don't see how they can possibly issue a

SHAMES:

The KRCC

the proposed decision was issued by the judge in

196 days to

Edison

that

This same Commission took 196

decision submitted in the Kern River Cogeneration Contract case.

case, they got that

just

themselves in

have to issue a decision within 30 days.

just relate back.
the

to be

early is

not be

They will

no secret

to

he will also

be

there would be three of

the

members of this Commission who would no

be available to be accountable

this Committee or to any other committee, or to the public after this decision is made
That concerns me.
After the decision is made, if they're

RUSSELL:
?

to be around for

They made the decision.

MR. SHAMES:
SENATOR

RUSSELL:

Committee like this.
MR. SHAMES:
SENATOR

And now, I guess

we could bite the men

and beat them up, in

a

they are Commissioners.

I

Or, what else could happen to them?

I'm sorry, if they're no

RUSSELL:

you're

No, no,

no,

no.

Commissioners
Let's assume that

that's an issue of some importance here

and then flee to the

and

're going to make

sector.

Uhhmmm.
RUSSELL:
would

be

If they stayed

them here before a

here, the most we

could do to them,

forum and cross examine them, and

I presume,

say that we were

with their decision.
MR. SHAMES:

No, there's a lot worse.

SENATOR RUSSELL:
MR.
and

SHAMES:

What else could we do?

There's a lot worse.

the impacts

of

their decision.

They would
They

have to live with the ramifications

would have to

-- a state energy policy -- that would

deal with a

company, and a

be affected by this merged company, and

'd have to make decisions, given the restraints that was -- the possible restraints
was

upon them by the merger decision.

with their mistake and have

(?

want to

get

irrelevant.

So, no.

to deal with it, if

into whether it --

In fact, they would have to

in fact it's a mistake.

how they're going to

And I

decide or not.

It's

That fact is, they will not be around to have to deal with whatever

ications there are from their decision, whether it's for or against the merger.
SENATOR

RUSSELL:

Then

you're

saying that probably

any lame duck

should not be

in any kind of a decision because they won't be around?
SHAMES:

I

think

ions that

it's --

I

think, in fact,

you'll find in

most political

reasonable and concerned decisionmakers will not make decisions
impact knowing that they're not going to be accountable.

RUSSELL:
SHAMES:

At

How are you voting on 140? (laughter)

I plan

to still be

around in California

any rate, so those are our special concerns.
It's difficult
ions

of Edison, so

to

sit here and bite

after that, how

ever it's

I guess there's a -- there's one
my lip while hearing

some of the

we talked a little about ex parte contacts.
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I should

reflect
violations
Edison,
I

identified

none

that

the

in

the other

would

exist.

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL

this case.

a

the

other state agency

The AlJs and DRAs stated that

force

rules,

I 11 open up for

schedule would hurt the
muster

committed

ex

PUC process, as well

Thank you.

two ex

Both violations were

There is a need for more

encourage it in the

processes that

there were

the

an accelerated

more

Should the relative

be a factor in the

decisions?

SHAMES:
Commission was sensitive
had

four

end

of the

consider
that

the

rules

But I think
the

as well.

us

we

wish

I

a

I

like

could have

million dollars in which

It would have been

enjoyed.

near the

the

various

the Senate would have

DRA

the AG's Office

, while Edison had 26

the resources

testimony

fact that UCAN had one

to prepare our

nice for UCAN to have that

didn't

And

think

I

the

that the

Commission

acknowledged that.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MS. AUDRIE KRAUSE:
said,

so I'll

concerns
to

just

raised

the merger.

Thank you very much.
Thank you.

don't want to duplicate anything that Michael has

I

say that TURN

Ms. Krause, Executive Director of TURN.

shares a lot

the

of UCAN s concerns,

from San

I m

to

as well as

and some

address some

concerns about

the

witness
merger.

hearing process that took place as part of the consideration of this
In our

and in

attended

of

I

outside of San Diego County, as well as the first
And the comments made by supporters of this merger, who

elected officials or other
words in

of

leaders, in many

their support.

the administrative law
merger to

office in Sacramento and

the same comments and

one

raise new issues.

there were so many

I

officials

who

so few members of the

found the answer
at Edison's

and June of 1990 Edison contributed
ROSENTHAL:

used the

This became so obvious that at one

favor of this merger, and outside of San
attended these

cases

instructed the witnesses who were

isn t hard

even

as a forum for

so has

all of the

in
were

used them

Edison used these

sel

the

of State s

to the
donor file.

Between

,840 to various

Well, let me break in.
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I d

like to

who

with the

of 1987

extraneous information, which
KRAUSE:

Well, I'm raising these

witness

issues because part of the

in this decision.

Edison, and

ROSENTHAL

Well

RUSSELL

even

up.

And this
the concern

that I

doesn't restrict the
I

want to

address

from participating.

Mr. Chairman, that

political contributions.

of

of the procedure was

made a contribution, political contribution

She's

because

this is

whether

whatever, in my opinion doesn't

You also

these

said that the

Well now, is that Edison's fault?

Well, in one sense you can wonder why Edison
l

procedure is the

That's the only opportunity where the average ratepayer has to

a comment or have a voice

SENATOR

'm not sure affected the procedure.

about a third of a

dollars over a three-year period to influence elected officials and .•.
RUSSELL:
MS.

Oh, no, no, no.

KRAUSE:

I'm not sure how their spending

it is they plan to do.
SENATOR

You said the public.

RUSSELL:

In San

D~ego

to make the public aware of what

there is ..•

Well, if there's such an outcry of the public opposing this,

wouldn't they show up?
MS. KRAUSE:

In San Diego County where there was wide publicity about this proposed

, the

did show up in large numbers.

express their

opposition

communities that

to this.
are

In

Los Angles County

affected by this

involved made any effort to see
ications of this decisions.

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:

And many average ratepayers showed up
and the other

Southern

decision, neither Edison

nor many

that the public was adequately informed

And I think that

is an issue that needs to be

Would you go on to the next issue?

Other than that, I just want to reaffirm ...
ROSENTHAL:

Okay .

... that we share the concerns of the other opponents.
ROSENTHAL:
KRAUSE:

Fine.

Thank you very much.

Thank you.

ROSENTHAL

We'll now go into
Director

. THOMAS O'LEARY:
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
O'LEARY:
RUSSELL:

the environmental process.

the Commission Advisory and

Pardon me sir, could I make a suggestion?
What's that?

suggestion is .•.
Could you identify yourself, sir?
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Division

I'll
the

name is
is as follows:

Thomas

All of

'Leary,

and

the

'm

that conduct these

and

conventions and so on, have pointed out repeatedly

the

human attention span is such that

in

any

from Redondo

you.

want

I

two

have said that

to remind you all

you
and the
CHAIRMAN
minutes.

to do

ROSENTHAL:

Thank you.

SENATOR RUSSELL:

and I want to
Of

do have the

m
We will break for five

(Five minute
Is Pickett
Just

-~

back
yea, to talk about the environmental process

Oh, okay.

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
SENATOR RUSSELL:

So I don't want to offend any

Sir, I take it as a

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
SENATOR RUSSELL:

I

years

that

want to have a break.

my

seminars, meetings,

should

And the top

And

over a period of 15 years that

the breaks should be more frequent than every two hours.
of

Beach.

We won't have any -- I won't have any questions.

Okay.

Let's give him his chance.
CHAIRMAN

ROSENTHAL:

Just give him his shot.

Director of the

Okay, Mr.

Commission Advisory and Compliance Division of the PUC.
MR. KENNETH K. HENDERSON:
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR. HENDERSON:
the

Good morning, Senator.

Welcome.

Good

Senators

One of our duties is to

CACD.

name is Ken Henderson.

process environmental documents and

and technical assistance to the Commissioners.
several

time-out, to let the field

And
is,

I'm here

started

the

I

think that

kicker get real nervous.

to

to explain

first is, how the Commission has met its CEQA responsibilities.
process

However,
most

Before I will

advice

members of the audience have commented to me that we can view that last recess

as the
And

Director

the Commission

used to

evaluate the

first of all, I'd like to

a

operations of

of the

environmental

out that the merger has

complex environmental analysis ever conducted by the

And the second

Commission.

been one of the
It relies on

the involved utilities for the

1990
SENATOR RUSSELL

Kind of like a

MR.

Yes

HENDERSON:

undertaken,

I

it

is.

under the
at the

ball, huh?
And the

additional seven

economic case

in chief,

of several of the

-51-

years analysis

but we

did do

different

was not

it for

the

We have

that there is a lot

of passion on

I

staff to make this process the most open and
the Commission.

seen here

than a

taken

in
act

And our consultants have often noted this

open process.

been
has

lot of

EIRe.

goes

toward 12 months.

with a three-month extension.

RUSSELL:

months

It'

is

to

but

which

ic accessible that I

Not

a 12-month

And CEQA itself

absolute deadlines, but sort of

in

You've been 17 months?
Seventeen months to date.

RUSSELL

Does that mean that those other two items you mentioned

in this case

MR.

HENDERSON:

not

and

were

The -- we've determined early on

to this case, and the CEQA deadlines,

SENATOR RUSSELL:
• HENDERSON:

that the permit streamlining act
targets, we have not been able to

Not that we're aware of at this time.
's just sort of an encouragement?

Yes.

It --

CEQA envisions a 12-month

ion of time at the
and

couldn't meet those

Is there any penalty for not making them?

RUSSELL:

icant

or you

or

the

concurrence of

the lead
a

Could

one

at

request and concurrent

staff

RUSSELL

period to do that,

agency, which

engage.

of time.

Back

in

And Edison

since

those statements that

reasonably deduce from

and you took 17 months, that

of the

the

we did

three-month extension

with a

there has been plenty of time to do

been euchred out of whatever?
feel that the process has been
we have

that the process has been good.

open and accessible to all
And realiz

that there will

on the substance and the outcome, the contents of

of

the process has allowed full

on

mergers

ion.

the Commission -- there

merger was a project subject to CEQA.
because many

and

were not and are

was an initial decision
at

And that is not a

not determined to be

to the

ion did that.
this environmental

analysis open to all, we
-52-

decided

on

~-

the

of the

ies other than the applicant --

chore to use a
icants.
allow

model that was

And that caused a

all the other

ies

familiar with and that

ittle delay,

There s
process.
We

had

We

workshops in
technical

parties and
in

Ventura 1
dealing

in

various

LA, and San

with

locations,

the

and

we've put out

of '89.

environmental cost.

several documents

this process.

The

document that the project was

We

released

put out a recommended

public documents

going to encompass in

a draft environmental impact report

that we

thinking

as we're going through this process.

wanted

the

to

know.

It was

sort of a

We wanted

refinement of our

to allow the parties to know

what the staff was thinking as early as we could, and so we put out some extra

documents.

And that was issued in June 29 of '90.
we issued a supplemental draft environmental impact
Now the

concurrence,

of that, I

is that once

is we wanted to allow all the

to know and

comments at

where
did

the staff
not

was

We did

We

going and what

disclose any new

were not

wanted

in April

plan, which is not a CEQA document, but which is a

document

of

the

draft

we've issued is the

exactly

were

merger.

conducted in late

September

that

to use

contact and consultation with

four

the

it in order to

for

environmental

that

model

could afford and have the

five

to the

Also

to a

been

We ve held

D

different than those used

but we felt it was worth

to have full access

staff has had continual

to use for this

to to

them another shot

we were

on this.

have additional analysis, but no
to

ies another shot at

environmental

with the

significant impacts, so

were not

At

it.

24th

on

The

technically we
new significant

issue the supplemental, but we

And soon to

come we will have

a

in time we re

this month.
The
process,

process to
the

Commissions,

the

integrate the environmental
rules,

the CEQA process with the
this

the

's

gone to

case in chief.
comments, fil

overall

have done

of written

and the scheduling of briefs.
the ALJs

and the

ALJs have

economic

of the

of oral test

milestones

and the

impacts into the

have

of

or
a bit

between key CEQA

tried to keep a
other milestones

of slippage
-53-

in the

in the draft

case in

chief.

document, but in

to various milestones

've

and made a

at

the same.
I

conclusion, I could

state

that

ies

that in my

with both CEQA and

process conducted in

, we have

Senate

the most open

52.

manner possible.

and will bu differences
final
that

environmental

these differences should be honest

believe
I

realize and

contents

the various

But it is

my intention

and well understood differences, and

I think

achieved.
available for any

ions.

Are
costs were

not

or not to
end

aware

ions that some

that there've been some
reviewed

reopen the

was

and that

your
influenced

the

the

to reach a
were

the year, even though it's been suggested that some

covered?
MR. HENDERSON:

I can say that the decision whether or not to open -- to reopen the

will be up to the

And I know that

the judges are very aware

of what

need in the record to issue a decision and what they have in the record currently,
that if there
current

is

something else required for

their decision that is

I would think that they would recommend
ROSENTHAL:

not in the

the

received a copy of the Coastal Commission comments
that?

MR. HENDERSON

I have not read those specifically.

ROSENTHAL:

conclude

are

inadequate.

ion

for on-site cool
ications

towers,

that could

cost

that the fisheries
They

go on to say that

fish return systems, and

hundreds of

and

millions

there may be a

other coastal power plant

of dollars.

Would

you like to

on that?
We are in the process, as I have said, we have not issued the final
environmental

report as yet.

ROSENTHAL:

Should the

We will
-- should

fishery mitigation measures and

costs be considered?
HENDERSON:

Well

there

in the record, not
re-evaluat

and

certain

isheries mit

all of those that

ion and their costs

were suggested in further

continually evaluating

those comments

of the

comments.
Coastal

Commission.
RUSSELL:

Mr. Chairman

be additional

are -- I'm not that close to this as you are.

faci ities built, or are
-54-

we

about the

Are

be
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL
SENATOR

It may be both.

RUSSELL

don't

is that
have to set out

have now and this

we

there

We don't know what s •••

were

added.

mean, are

seem to

the

to be

I

is what is -- what

to do?
to

is

additional that's

the merger that

the merger

is what we're
that

of

it would be

Now wouldn't that be

that

because there s
in the

Wouldn't that be disclosed?
MR.

HENDERSON

're

to disclose that.

the merger, there
that

did have

an

and

We ve

There are different

SENATOR

those

ways to

some

in the

received comments of the parties

are other ways than what we ve recommended

and we're

, and

at various

we've received -- we've

in the initial draft.

there

be

on fisheries.

We have

What the process

on suggesting that

initially to mitigate those impacts,

those.
RUSSELL:

So you have -- there's an

existing facility that is discharging

water

-- hot water or whatever -- into the

waters that is now affecting fishes.

This

would

indicate that there's going to be more water, more hot water being released, and

so you need to look at that.
MR. HENDERSON:
SENATOR RUSSELL:
MR. HENDERSON:

And you have looked at that • •
Yes.

SENATOR RUSSELL:
MR. HENDERSON:

and that's in the
Yes.

SENATOR RUSSELL
MR. HENDERSON:

there's disagreement about what you're
Yes.

SENATOR RUSSELL:
MR. HENDERSON:

There is

That doesn't seem to be unusual in these kinds of
Correct.

SENATOR RUSSELL:

Thank you.
the

we'

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR. HENDERSON:

initial
because

that's correct.
Is

the final?
they

made

there a
I mean,

their decision

in

the fisheries

in other words, did you look
based upon

the

in the final
Well

the various

But the final EIR has not been released as

Issued

CHAIRMAN

comments of

we haven't issued the final plan
-55-

concern between

the

at it after the -Has

something

Oh,
We're
ROSENTHAL

considering that.
You can't say.

that'

one of the things that -I

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:

Okay.

let me back away

that I

venture over into the substantive.

No, I don't want you to-- no •
• It's

ust process.

I don't want you to --

process.

wanted to be careful.

It's really hard in the environmental

two.

RUSSELL:

You're

you've looked at these issues.

You're aware of the

ism as to what seems to be the direction you've been going.
issued

your final

, which may

or may not mitigate, do

You've not

away with, or exacerbate

concerns

RUSSELL

Thank you.

ROSENTHAL

So

the ALJ, on

the basis of

these questions, could

deadline?
ALJ --yes.

ROSENTHAL:

And what I'm-- okay.

Yes.

The ALJ could extend

Could extend the deadline.

Or it could -- there is a motion to re-open.
ROSENTHAL:

I see.

And that motion will be decided at some point.
ROSENTHAL:

I see.

Okay.

Thank you very much.

Thank you.
ROSENTHAL

Mr.

Pickett again,

Senior Counsel

of Southern

Cal Edison

s on the environmental process.
you,
brief.

I think

process

Mr. Chairman.

My

remarks on the

a good part of what

I said this morning applies

to the

well, and I concur in a good part of what Mr. Henderson said.
environmental review

al

environmental section

of

its direct case in
-56-

process

in April

chief testimony, filed the

of 1989

when

Then

it

was

the

Commission
out

that
the

elected

to

follow

statute that

the CEQA

procedures and

the

way
had the

own environmental

Commission

under the CEQA process for consideration to

the EIR to

our

and

the

to the environmental process than

normal

f

transmission

we

would
a

were

actual

power

or

would have

a

been less

for
we don't believe that it's
for time.
one

And

was very

for a one-year

Senator Russell

is

But the ALJs,

and then the

penalty,

so we're just going to keep on going.
for

and

beyond the one-year

extension that we had

Nobody's been

with

There's no

in

deadline

time.

about

that anyone can

Part of the CEQA

extension.

Henderson

fair

well, there s no

acceded to,

And we want (?) more and more and more

time here in terms

of what a normal

environmental

review would do.
SENATOR RUSSELL:

Yes

I

There was a

was

behind it, and it was what I mentioned this
process,

that

and
the

in the

to build

to go forward or

some certainties.

In

Was that

The time factor was a legislative time factor in

their resources in order

process you -- a given power

to be certificated

or transmission line is not
Alternative

And

that

have to be made.

the

mandate,

deadline, which has been
think

was an

to go forward

considered

blown away here.

understandable reaction

to the

a bureaucratic

to a

the
And

I think

constraints
And

I

think

said
that
it was

will move
Leo

's

that,

towards.
bill.

-57-

He

a

we ve

And so that
had some

to

some kind of

was done with that
bills that

would set

idea.
some

it's a
We're

talking

idea.

about

It's part

balancing

need versus the burden

the

the balance that I mentioned this
need

for

environmental

that the process

terms of the PUC'

is

and

But the

on

that's

review

the

have

could legitimately need.
mentioned the
power

forecast

, you look at a 30 or a 40-year life.

it may be even

than that.

And at the risk of
here.

sl

come to the

or a transmission

This merger

We're not

be looked at.

of the two utilities.

We acceded to look at it.

effected air qual

When you

ing into the substance, I

in the generation patterns

Yes, it needs
faith to

and so forth.

We've tried it

agencies and work

to deal with that slight change in generation.

out mitigation

But this isn't a huge thing.

very small.
And

in terms of the complaints of some

they need to re-open the proceedings to

more data in and look at this and take

environmental

more time.

I would just comment that this

the economic part that was handled

in the hearings as well as the

is a forecast of the future.

environmental impacts here through 2007.
best

and

j

l

we

stand by

As Mr. Henderson said, they're looking
And yes, it's a crystal ball.

them.

But

there isn't

We've made

anybody here

or any

who's going to tell you exactly which power plant is going to
which

hour

some

of every day

Commission

for the next

has got to draw

We've got to come to a point,
And that's
ust

what

It's

just not feasible

the line and say,

look, we've

analyze the data we've got, and make a

the Commission has

that

15 years.

done here.

ive mandate and

time to match the decision that comes

I

think it's wrong

blown on by it.

But if

that

they get a

from the ALJs and the Commission on

case, it won't matter that much.
concludes

comments.

ROSENTHAL:

Thank you.

I guess -- the

thing that concerns me in

make a decision before there's a final EIR.
say.

And

in

, not so

the process is how

We don't know what that final EIR

much as far as

Edison and this merger

are

the concern I have is how you relate to the air quality districts in terms
And

can't

talk about

mitigation if

they don't

see the

final

So that's the reason that I have the concern about the environment.
isn't that there wasn't enough time.
inal

EIR

at which time

If there

there could have
-58-

was enough time, we should have

been some comment

from whoever was

concerned

that

else was needed

on

that

don t have a final
and creates
I'

we didn

MR.

not

don't

that there wasn t

a final EIR before a decision is made as

Senator,

to

to

whether we're

to

That's my concern.

PICKETT:

decision

a final

that this

EIR.

at

CHAIRMAN

EIR,

to look at kind of skews the whole

that there s a rush to

In other words

or not.

a decision

ROSENTHAL:

we re

the

the final EIR, sometime soon.

November.

Sometime.

an

And then there needs

to be some response to it.
MR.

PICKETT:

for

with that

I

a final EIR.

And that is

Senator.

The

CEQA process

to the decision of an agency.

have

had the opportunity to

They

may not be happy with the decision, but when the final EIR is

to that by

way of comments all through the process.
it's the

final decision on the environmental matter.
CHAIRMAN

ROSENTHAL:

environmental
the

Okay.

The ALJ

That's

the districts

the

air districts

concerns in the EIR process, which is still

limited

lobbied

directed the

what the

to focus

And not in

going on

ALJ said.

their

Edison

In

rush ahead and file

process before additional EIR

information
in

The LA Times noted that the Edison executives wanted
the

and that your successful air

efforts gave you a

district

more EIR data

Did Edison tell the air districts that if
and deferred action,
PICKETT:

would risk not
t

I

that

of
as

was sound

sure that we -- that our benefit

me ask a
We

we

can benefit
which

that cost to factor
RUSSELL:

me

that process, were

not?
No

or

very small
we needed

factor in

understand this, the EIR

These hearing judges
The ALJs were

The

these

we can

measure

our minds,

been issued as a final report.

MR.

process, was to

be, because

wanted to

SENATOR RUSSELL

SENATOR

in time for the

the

what the

, and

PICKETT

because I'm not involved with the air

of the

ALJa presided over an
-59-

that's

the ALJs --

has not
were a part of

on the EIR?

ition, benerits
directed

all the other

issues related to the merger.

the environmental

environmental

and the

considered in the
at

But

measures to

CEQA process

and

Commission.

And do the ALJs have
direct

to do with that

It's my

better than
and

I

but it's

I

the

of

and the mit

think Mr. Henderson could

my

that the

final

the environmental
measures, is the

of

Division, which Mr. Henderson heads.
it

mean that then the

to the Commission will
Henderson's

ALJs who are

to issue a

not have access to that

EIR until that's

Is that ...

's my understanding, that
unt

is issued

SENATOR

RUSSELL:

MR.

to the final

Mr. Henderson's group.
Now

ideration as

no one will have access

the ALJs

, would

they not

have to

take that

into

consideration, and the

part

of the overall evaluation of the process?

PICKETT:

The

think

that they need

to take into

strove mightily to marry the

and

them

is

the

costs

CEQA process and the hearing process
of mitigation.

affect the economics of

Because the

doing the merger.

costs of
And

so

a process where the cost could be identified and considered in the
and the CACD Division could

the environmental

report

the Commissioners themselves.
of

the process, the ALJs, have

been familiar with

into consideration in their evaluations?
I
of

believe

the

But

specific

so,

yes sir.

They haven't

environmental

impacts

and

-- they

haven't had

the mitigation

the

measures

've been aware, at least from our testimony, of the cost that we
ld be necessary to

mitigate the environmental

that

had been

Thank you.
ROSENTHAL:
But
about.
PICKETT:

that

But Mr. Pickett, SB 52 did not
seems to

be

the only thing

just deal with coats in terms
that you're --

that Edison's

There're some who have other concerns other than cost.
Well,

it's

my

recollection,

the environmental matters.
think

But there's a

that the Commission
-60-

Senator,

that SB

52 did

not deal

whole list of things that

is dealing with

them all in

the

the

Commission as

Commission

to

how to consider

and the

environmental matters that

is

the

considered

process that

has mandated

CHAIRMAN

reviews.

read you

consideration,

take into

"matters

adverse

of
does not

mean costs

But it relates to coats.
relates

MR.

whatever

costs, and

include

you

that

the

Commission

to
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL

MR.
that

PICKETT:

It doesn't say that

the Commission

to

it

the

the CEQA process,

the environmental

process and

mandated CEQA process,

the

for its consideration.

So

m sure that the

Commission will consider it.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:

MR. PICKETT:
CHAIRMAN

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

ROSENTHAL:

ventura

Air

MR.

Thank you very much.

Keith Duval,

of the

Section of the

Rules

Control District.

KEITH DUVAL:

Senator

m

Rosenthal

the
District.
agreement

'a

I'

for the

merger

and the San

of Southern California Edison

Gas
was

of

I

Pollution Control Officer.
your

wanted
he

Committee

was
be here

has a

confl
the

you re
statement
into

me

from Mr. Baldwin that he asked

me to read

to assure you that we will

in your

into this matter.
a rule

I became involved in the merger proceedings because my section is
to

control

Because

oxides of nitrogen emissions from Edison's Ventura County power plants.
my staff
-61-

had the most

current

on

power

Fol

this, Mr. Baldwin's statement:
to present this statement to your Committee today

appreciate the
I

am unable to test

in person.

you
process

and

"First,

have a conflict in my

I

my concerns

describe our

decision

from the
San

I

process to

resolve the air

merger of Southern California Edison

Gas and Electric
I

want to express my

total frustration with the PUC
review

achievement of the PUC's schedule.
the merger

the end

of this year.

of

time

the
in the

process.
shortened to

time has been

The schedule calls for a decision
The PUC seems

determined to meet

interested parties

needed

the
this

to

and

ic review process,

draw one conclusion from the PUC's determination to meet this schedule

I

conclusion is that

the PUC intends

effect on our District's
from the
solution

to approve the

merger.

My conclusion

had a

to find a way to mitigate the air quality impact

merger.

I

believe that it

was incumbent on us

to find a

because under the circumstances, I did not believe I could rely on the PUC to

it for us.

Fol

is my response to your request for APCD comments describing

manner in which the District's decision making

process on the mitigation plan was

coordinated with the PUC merger deliberations.
the PUC schedule.

ision making process was driven
schedules -- one for

the EIR and one

were focused on the EIR.

for the case in

In effect, there were

chief.

all of

issues, such as the cost
Wel ,

I

find

decreed

This is because the administrative law

environmental issues would be dealt with only in the EIR.

Factors related to

of pollution controls, could be

this procedure

strange and

argued in the

very different

consideration of environmental issues in hearings.

I

our

from local

had no choice but to

direction.
process began when the draft EIR was released.

is ion
some emiss

s in the later years

determinations.

Also,

the draft

EIR

The draft EIR

as not significant.
did not propose

icant

of the proposed merger.

Board took a

position to oppose the merger unless

We

measures to ful

submitted comments

the

all air quality

The Board position has not changed.
"After release of the draft EIR, SCE representatives initiated discussions with us.
that we

could develop

an agreed

upon mitigation

ive weeks before the signing of the agreement.
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plan.

Those

Edison presented us

on
Our

s

for

of this

to

was

the

to ensure

would

work

to

PUC before

the

We

time for

the PUC's consultant to
EIR.

the merger

and

were

We believe that

after our Board s

it

the

in the final EIR

five

for

not

but

environmental

groups to

schedule allowed

review before our Board took action on the

While

we
meet

several

invited

with us to

was held

This

to

our

a

as

was

to review and comment on the

the

the consultant's

just

that the

released the

be

because

what would

substantial time

in
would

to the deadline

our concerns and the

also

inalize

was

District staff

in
We

two hours

lations with Edison continued up to

a Board letter on the
"Most

weeks before the

leas than three

be briefed on

June 18,

the

and

the
before our

to answer

Board debated

scheduled meeting.
f

the process

allowed more

I

believe

more time
stated

and

I

stated to

delayed a week or two, the
was

Edison indicated that the

could calculate the financial

EIR and

chief.

for

if a decision

would be off.

needed

for

Board, that

submit

on those costs
to

PUC

be released.

its

our Board would have

of the

in the PUC hearings

on the case in

at about the same time that the final

Edison representatives tried hard to have the Board hearing a
not

because the

PUC did not release the final EIR as announced in

24, 1990,

two months after the final

the draft EIR.

The

The Ventura
Edison to
now

the

2000

the merger s

NOX emission increases

As

proposed, reactive

145

between
emissions

and carbon monoxide emissions will be reduced
of the
~63-

SCE determined that the

as 171

SCE has not

into

ive, it

its

to

is

to

realize

Edison

to San

that power
for any source

does not

The

after the

so

is

its
nThe PUC determined that the merger is a project for the purposes of
Qual

Act.

Under

CEQA, the PUC

is

deemed feasible

to

the PUC.

has an APCD
indicated earlier, the draft EIR did not ident
as

icant.
the

icant

the year,

I

with the PUC apparently determined
was

concerned that

would not be fully mitigated.
mit

100

Since

end of

Also,

ion of

all the

The

Edison.

to make a

impacts deemed
for more

mitigation agreement

so 2

except sulfur

dioxide.

air quality standards, this is not a

provides far more than is required by CEQA or the APCD permits
The emission offsets are greater

rules and air qual

than those required by the District

management plan, and the agreement carries a

summary, we had a
because

even those

emission increases,

Ventura County is an attainment for all
The

all emission

decision to make.

the short time

We

were very concerned about

's

of the

schedule for public review, the

the PUC, and that the hearings on the merger would be conducted
a

EIR.

However,

we

made

the most

out of

more

it and

law.
the opportunity

to provide you

in the future.

We will

with this information.
try to answer your

which we cannot answer today, we will

the answers

(end of written statement).
to answer any
Yeah
ion

ions that you have.

I have a couple.

Does

the District have the

based on new information?

I don't believe so.
ROSENTHAL:
PUC EIR and the mit

Does the District intend to hold

a hearing on the

ion plan to receive public comments?

-64-

Hopefully,

you

has

to deal

that at

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL

much.

Thank you.

Air
MS.

like
views on

the

role

response to the
that

that you have

the
for the Public

In

a certain sense, our

although

we had

been

by

Mr. Baldwin's

discussions with

Edison

the California

the course of the
with

what

viewed to

merger

, we had

be

that would

And we were in the process of negotiating on that

time

However,

within

and

the Ventura,

sufficient.
frame.

left off in

Districts as well as

Commission informal
approached

Commission.

up where

Bernardino Air Pollution

been

for

has been carried out

and
us,

to thank

did not

reach

an

be

the same

that

frame.

as
issue an
mit

packages that

the Commission.
and we

intervene

were allowed

a

would not

from

The

the merits of

that we would oppose the merger
we

adverse air

for any

Commission,

the District's Executive

staff would prepare its
in
process

of the

in

because
the

of

our

view

not
of what

of the merger, and
-65~

be

that our

We felt that it was

in the CEQA comment

Section 854
any adverse

in

terms of

District,

f

sense,
The

win-win situat

mit

was
for us and for the residents of the

ion

assurance that

all adverse

, whether

or not

we

the Public

Utilities

was otherwise going to order that in response to the environmental
has not

been

The

that were identified
in most years, up
150 percent of

a

to the year 2000
does

It final

in response

to

Public
i f that

information that we discover

the

for the

total of more

not

an additional

from

to

the

the draft environmental

the

go back

ion

moment

in the final environmental

our concern, as

I

said, was to

ion for the merger would be carried out

•s decision would be.

the
sure

that we could file our
the District.

First

mitigation.
the

test

on July 13th.

accomplished a

This was very important to us because prior to that time, Edison had

ion that there was no significant
used as to

was the risk that

been identified.

impact to be mitigated.

what should be

the PUC would accept

ion, or what

Ju

It

was made in order to make

it assured that Edison's testimony would also be in favor of

that

As

The staff recommendation

felt

Based upon

the measure of

,

that

and we

would be without

be

That was a great risk at that time.

we were not able to recommend the
because the staff
that

of that mit
had raised some

occur as a result

in the process of

concerns

of the merger.

At

that

those impacts.

the Board directed the Executive Officer, who directed the Chief Deputy
Pat

Nru~eth,

direct

in

And in terms of that

Chairman

f

and numerous merger

measures.

And

as

that

you know from

to

1

whether

the

we met with -- between
to discuss the

memo that

with site-specific

information

determine

consultation with the Board

was sent on

lOth

we felt we did not
was sufficient

Edison was

not

that
next

Edison requested the opportunity to respond to some of those concerns.
conference call between Chairman
another Board

member.

Two significant
-66-

, Pat Nameth, and
occurred.

First

if

final

EIR

would
that

them.

failure to take a

the

basin.

demonstrated

any

that

And secondly, it was

at that

time

There was

We would lose the
I'd

like to also

mention

sure that any

that we

felt

any information that would be

that

be

would be

to file further

addressed.

in response

renewed that motion

our

which the Board was
we

feel

guaranteeing

When our

what

that

time pressures

sure

feels

is

necessary,

address

to

have succeeded

air

will occur

We also

according

I

a

because as

of the

PUC

that

whatever

information

the

issues raised

was somewhat

learned of

memorandum

we

will show, and we will also do that.

this

how

was the
to.

in the

that the District has

like to

Edison,

Since

of all adverse

environmental

earlier

the

that

it

I d

the

to agree, that was what Edison

through the
do

environmental

material

Executive Officer was to

So

motion

to the final

on

environmental

We

13

the

the

we still

that Member Schiller

conversation between Chairman

you have

attached to

sent to all Board

your Committee

members, as well as

the

in

that disclosed that that communication had occurred, and the results of that
communication.
And

the

results

of the conversation

included were disclosed to Edison.
a

I

could
1135, but

I

not sure that's

, it appears to me that

the

that

Committee
Ms.

received

Board

were

in the scope

informed
last year's hearing process on
of this Committee s

members

should be concerned.

wish to adopt
after

Edison

a

matter
-67-

That's

bad idea.

As I

consideration
that

there hasn't been any indication that

Schiller made is a

is that the Board

not

There was a short

to the concern about contacts

with which this
that

this

the concerns regarding

I think
time

on

But we feel that
some

where Edison was

So we feel that there really was not a situation of

failure to disclose what was
is true.

that we had

there

a

not to say, however
understand it, the

a policy, that if communications are

has been

set for

that

should be in writ
communications
the
And

and so we can make sure that the contents of those
're revealed

would be fully di.sclosed or accurately summarized when

ic record
I think that

the Committee wishes to

do that rather

any direct

would be to direct that to the Board and ask
wish to consider the
me

of

ing such a

It doesn't appear

there's a need for this Committee to take legislative action on that issue.
'd be free to answer any questions that you might have at this time.

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL

Board Chairman

agreement would be

wrote me a letter indicat

suspended and renegotiated

if new EIR

the

information was

ferent than the draft EIR.
That's correct.
CHAIRMAN

ROSENTHAL:

whether
MS.

BAIRD:
ion

Has

the

District looked

at

the

to

the DEIR to

iation is required?
We

have looked

at the

supplement.

in response to the

as to

on the merger

We

don't --

we have

made one

what additional conditions ought to be

, and that has to do

with the content of the fuel that

would be used.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MS.

BAIRD:

Does the District plan to hold a public hearing on this issue?

On
wil

in

the future?

Well,

BAIRD
two

need to

we'll have

to determine

what the

not inconsonant

with the

be after we see the final EIR.
And

MS.

I guess

then

what

I

if

the

suppose we'll

final

EIR is

have to

evaluate that

final EIR

and

whether we need to pursue renegotiation with Edison, and whether
pursue

the opportunity for

further testimony before

the PUC.

It's

not

me to comment on either of those things at this point.
CHAIRMAN

ROSENTHAL:

I understand.

I understand.

inal EIR is different in some of the

MS.

BAIRD:

Well

Okay.

But in your opinion, if

questions that were raised

if the final EIR is different

the District,

in the sense that it resolves our

then there won't be need for anything further for the district to do.

If the

is different in the sense that it raises additional concerns that we have not
addressed, then we will have to determine whether to renegotiate the agreement
to file further testimony.
CHAIRMAN

ROSENTHAL:

The

July

12th

Pat

Nameth

"Although requests had been made that the
further test

after the July 13th
-68-

memo to

the Board

states the

parties have the opportunity to

deadline, the administrative law

the final decision on the
assigned

PUC

Commissioners,

these

requests

schedules would be up to

should be

considered, for

purposes, denied."
MS. BAIRD:

Yes

CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MS.

BAIRD:

the
.issues.
would

Well

Can you comment on this statement?
that was information

11th

in san

indicated in

I

be

which -- at which

FAX that I sent to ALJ

the

on

and that

that was based on the

I

discussed some

and Carew

conference that I'd learned that
would at that time be

for an

our motion that we

additional

And

was my

the tenor of the comment
CHAIRMAN

ROSENTHAL:

I guess can you

how the PUC schedule

influenced

Di.strict s sudden decision not to seek more data, and defer a decision to a later
MS.

BAIRD:

There were

Edison s
would

that influenced

to

be

revealed

possibility
bore

two

in

, whatever
the

final

environmental

opportunity

no

mitigation should

to get our views before

be

the

was

, would push full

required, and that

the ALJs in time to

One
be, that

The

that Edison would withdraw its support for

ahead that

that decision.

we would

have the

make

because at that point the testimony was due on July the 13th.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MS. BAIRD:
CHAIRMAN
Electrical

Thank you very much

ROSENTHAL:

Marc Joseph, Legal

Workers, Local #47.

the
have

your

often stated that

to judgment,

we stated

represent, the 2,000 other

Workers Local

, and the several thousand

interested in a rush to
Moreover,

we have

The

for
or just

, Senator Rosenthal

conference,

of

up this merger case

As the

a rush

, as you

first

the merits

need to

clamoring for

the

of Edison that we

a question before you start.

utility employees.

clients been

JOSEPH

on

Counsel for International Brotherhood

Let me just ask you

faced

at the

Baird.

Thank you.

commissioners
remove

Ms

on behalf

the

In

of the

5,300

of Edison that
of SDG&E, that we

, that we wanted a full and fair consideration
recently

co-sponsored a

to re-open the

I think that s the most graphic evidence you can have that the employees are
not interested in

to a judgment.
I have your testimony.
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•ve heard

a substantial amount

fected the merits of decisions all

how the

this case.

between

I want to focus

between the environmental
At

several

other

stressed the

whose
merger was
nit

interest.

the Commission
two months after the

The

As

week

successive
for

ished.

be

We and the Commission

all
four times

it was still

reaction of the PUC?

due

was to

ion of the draft EIR was

final

be

It's

and would

turned

luded in the

time for

draft EIR was

would come out

ld

results could be

on its part in publishing
a week

later?

No.

and say

Did the Commission take the

That would

the draft EIR meant that our
jeopardize the

schedule.

With

each

delay in publishing the draft EIR, the commission tried to shorten the time

submitting testimony.

Time

and again we

for an adequate interval.
prepare and

test

had to file

Time and again

papers and make

arguments

we were offered inadequate time to

and the reason was always the schedule.

When the draft EIR was finally released, it was obviously incomplete.
For many others,
contain the

no mitigation measures were offered.

The draft

that the PUC said it would contain

All of the air districts that commented said that more
commenced.

that

we were forced to submit

interest because the

of the merger on the
In
due process

in

response, the Commission

a procedure that was driven by the schedule

a desire to review all of the relevant evidence.
refused to wait

more work was needed, the Commission
done.

Instead
al

were not

it s

ished a new mit

of the merger, even

of the environmental
known.

in

It admitted that the

was recommended

EIR, and was neither

Commission

nor

CEQA.
worse,

we

were

compelled

to cross-examine

the consultants

access to their written analysis of the comments
submitted.

's test

Not

without

on the EIR -- excuse me --

were we denied access to these documents in advance
, but we were

-70-

from asking the consultants what

their

responses

be to our comments.

Parties

were forced to rebut the reasoning of
the

was.

We

had to

wrong without
you one

that the draft

could

that

what

the EIR'

concrete
EIR

was

the

was incomplete because it

be

environmental
However

at

the consultants without

evidence

of the merger.
there

was

to see the

I'll
said

the

That

impacts,

did not have any

of the

is, at each
because the

would

be

the draft EIR

the

site.
While

the

the Commission

that

draft EIR and it was

said

was

the

not

not

the recommended

of

we had no idea what

the

not be any cost to

those impacts.

were told there
and we were

We did not

was due.

the Commission was

we

was,

allowed to know before our

while

the

to be the basis of our

Commission's

would

but was not

We were forced to present our case

access to the information which was the basis for

environmental analysis.
While

we have

demonstrated

that the Commission

lacked the evidence

to make its

decision, we were unable to provide the Commission with crucial evidence which it needs
to

determine where

course,
been

the

public interest lies.

was not released until

forced to ask

closed.

the Commission to

the cost

the environment.

the draft EIR,

three weeks after the
re-open

New material has been presented

understates

The supplement to

ve
which

never

have

in the supplement which we

the merger, to the serious

of

been

believe

detriment of the

and to

Yet none of this evidence will be tested before the Commission in the

crucible of examination and cross-examination.
Edison opposes our request to re-open the record, arguing that we should
have

the

evidence before,

even

we could

not have

known what

to the draft EIR would say until it was published after the
of
ished

can
's

far
vote

be described as a
to the

about an analysis

which had not

mockery of due process and a

we can tell, the

dereliction of the

reason for this charade is so

two of its members

are

that the Commission can
the

next Governor.

that is a wholly improper political basis for making decisions.

to the conclusion

been

ic interest.

on the merger before

believe
rise

forced to testify

ended

that

political considerations, rather than

will determine the outcome.
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We

It only gives

the merits of the

dominance of
was

asked

to state for

deadline

the record what

was not met.

The

would befall

take new Commissioners a
would not

review

of 1991.

benefits of the merger to the
the

at

of

made until the

the

answer that Edison could

terms of two Commissioners
it

overdue

he

, and would be, quote,"an embarrassment to

process," unquote.

Of

course, whether or not

the

wi

be

this merger cannot be known until the Commission has
ion
is

al

evidence.

the

of the

More

, we believe

PUC

aside any

semblance of

fair

or concern for the environment of Southern California.
denial of due process
interest
ifornia.

is not

versus another.

It hurts the

receives

clients

hurts

The denial of due process hurts the

because the Commission cannot serve the

of the relevant

evidence on this

case.

unless
We believe

this Committee's concern for due process is a concern for all of the
state.

The failure to adhere to due process
sets

a

chill

precedent

in this

for the

when

he reasserted that

I wou

of

regulatory

in

that Mr. Pickett said.

issues of
statement

visible, highly contested

future of

to three

I'

of

re

. Pickett

, and he

when he testif

about the environmental

The air districts, who

the merger

asked for

and not for any

recirculation of the draft EIR.

frivolous

reasons

That

and not

any

It's a concern over substance.
our comments on the

draft EIR and on
the

raise

c

meritorious

the air districts

the

pages of

of 250
issues, issues which

and issues which are virtual

Coastal Commission,

to the

which obvious

has no

draft E!R,
technical

have been

to

identical to the comments
intention of

the

sake alone.
Final

I

wanted to

Russell was
result of this

to

one of the questions that

Senator Russell asked.

about whether or not there would be any new construction as
ect, or whPther it was just

a small

And Mr. Pickett said that we're just

in generation in some
about a very small

In fact the E!R's own analysis shows an increase of
~72-

in

the

South Coast

by

And this is an increase in

Basin of 30 to 40
source of

the single

stationary NOX emissions.

This is

not a small deal.

This is a big deal.
Thank

you for the

to

I'd

have.
CHAIRMAN

ROSENTHAL:

ALJs

I

have a copy of a

about

to

truncate the environmental

The

letter mentions an IBEW motion to

EIR

has been

which

been handled

the PUC?

MR.

Yes.

JOSEPH:

That

to

upon.

was taken up

where the ALJs were

Can

has

referenced to

to allocate cross-examination time and
asked one of the ALJs what

I

the

would

analysis.

His response was that since they had to go back and check with the assigned

Commissioners

on our motion

that

which we had

At the end of that
be

until the final

you comment on how

at the

Edison's

the

of the

environmental

~ouched

you

20th letter that the IBEW sent to the

on how

they

to wait until

were going

to

we had the

deal with these

environmental

scheduling problems, they

couldn't decide on the merits of the issue until they had made that decision.
the

merits of

decisions

our

on the

motion were going

to be determined

And that, I

schedule.

based on how

think, is another

That is,

they made their

good example of

how the

schedule has controlled decisions on the merits in this case.
CHAIRMAN ROSENTHAL:
MR. JOSEPH:
CHAIRMAN

Thank you very much.

Thank you.
ROSENTHAL:

I have copies of my prepared statement.
Yes.

Can

we

have

sergeant.

the

Environmental Health Director of the American Lung Association of California.
MS

GLADYS MEADE:
I

you, Senator.

think we have but a small vignette

that you've
As

Thank

We're

pleased to be

before you today,

to add to some very excellent testimony

heard, and other testimony throughout the morning.

you now, the American Lung
in

increased
South

Coast

non-attainment areas.

Association is concerned with lung

the merger

, which
the

would
Air

process is

based on

increase the air

Basin,

and

San

in the

health, and our

the environmental

pollution in areas

Diego

County,

all

of

like Ventura
of

which

are

Although I should take San Diego County out of it, if we believe
But there would be

the draft EIR, there would be no increased pollution for San
South Coast area and for Ventura.

It's
PUC,

Welcome

not usual for the

it s

(Laughter)

rare.

And

American Lung Association of

after

our

experience

this time

The draft EIR on the merger impacts prepared

our attention because of

California to deal with
I

hope

be unique.

at the direction of the PUC,

this possibility of increased
-73-

it will

the

air pollution.

local American Lung Associations in Ventura and
wanted some

San

were

concerned

from the State American Lung Association.

But in the midst of evaluating the air quality impacts of the draft EIR, we learned
mit

ion

the Board of

of Southern California Edison.
unanswered
District.
determined

Ventura
was

The

ions on the draft EIR submitted
This

when all

to be a

and every

at the

Ventura County Air Pollution

of the EIR process.

environmental impact

is known

and the

final EIR

is

ified.
unction with our local
Ventura

Association in Ventura, we wrote the

their precipitous

the

package because

we deemed

action.

We requested reconsideration

the action

and
who

A small footnote to that is that with all of our discussion of

after decisions are made, my understanding is that there were two members of
the

Board of

in Ventura who disappeared after

election and so forth.

But they're not around to suffer the consequences.

of this letter
District

Board

California

the decision was made -- an

because

were then sent
it

Edison to agree

was
to

to the South

evident that

Coast Air Quality

they too

would be

a mitigation agreement.

It

urged by

Southern

was obvious that Southern

California Edison wanted to present the PUC with mitigation agreements from the two air
lution
air
the

control districts identified in the

lution resulting from the merger.
desired effect on the South

draft EIR as adversely impacted

the

This exchange of correspondence did not have

Coast District Board.

They too

a

It is irrelevant for the purposes of this hearing to detail our
the content of the mitigation package.

Instead,

we point out the incongruity of

ime sequence.
South Coast District and Ventura County District had both submitted comments on
draft EIR.

These

comments raised serious

EIR to address all air

ity impacts.

questions on the

Yet without waiting for answers to these

from the PUC, the mitigation agreements were signed.
ask is

completeness of the

The simple questions we

What pressure was brought by Southern California Edison on these
What was the role of the PUC

in accepting the

when the EIR

not
California Edison wanted to deliver the signed
the districts to approve

them as the best

lution attributable to the merger.
after

the

to the PUC and

possible mitigation of the

increased

The PUC indicated that additional comments would

July 13th deadline.

Southern

California Edison used that

deadline with the districts to promote acceptance of the mitigation package as
-74-

the

best of all

take

It became a

the chance that the final EIR from the PUC will

less

of air
The

this

was done in

lese

and
of test

from American

urge you and this Committee

PUC encourage the
accepted

the

of t.he EIR process with

from

California Edison

to the final EIR?.

reinforce a

from

and thus

flaws and the inadequacy of the content of the

We

PUC

now, or

or reduction of emissions.

district boards

out the

comments

because

local air

control districts and others

deadline?

is

the

would not be

after the

wrong in

the

from Southern California
The

that

American

Association finds some small measure of satisfaction in the fact

after almost 20 years, Southern California Edison at

the

need to control oxides of

are

faced with the unfortunate

agreement

least now agrees with us on

from utility boilers to
result that the Southern

was accepted by local air quality districts

Southern
of

of take this

reduce ozone.

Yet we

California Edison

because the PUC, as depicted by

California Edison, would require after the final EIR possibly less mitigation

air pollution impacts than

what southern California Edison

was now so

to

propose prior to the final EIR.
We urge you to examine
Act.

the

of the California

Surely it did not intend t.o promote or

even allow what has

between the

PUC, Southern California Edison, and the local air pollution control districts.
is needed,
administrative

we

offer to

work

with you and

your staff to

remedies are

If new

draft it.

If

involved to

the
Thank you very much.
CHAIRMAN

ROSENTHAL:

you

hear from Pat and Russ

, Ms. Meade.
Board

have no

11

Members of the Environmental coalition

of Ventura

MS. PAT BAGGERLY:
CHAIRMAN

Good afternoon.

ROSENTHAL:

Good afternoon.

Welcome.

You

may do it which ever

way you

like.
MS.
They're
So

I

BAGGERLY:

Thank you, Senator Rosenthal, for inviting us here to speak to you.

a lot of things I would like to address to Senator Russell, but he left early
he'll read this.

Some of these comments

ions he
-75-

are directed to answer some of the

that this

to
extend

over the world's

another

like

shed.

When

that
landfi le

region.

Mexico

with

a

Edison

about
information

ion

When our
with

Edison, we

out tomorrow on

asked,

could we

I

Board

asked that

as soon as possible so that we would have time.

coming

get

sizes

three months was intended.

our supervisor called us on a Wednesday

afternoon.

you

to Senator Russell

start with the

mit

And

This has to do with

information

CEQA year
1

So to discuss the issue of

idea that this could have

there's more

guess

not

review

ect of this size to be, you
to us.

ects that

to

ect,

lature intended a

take

to have

about CEQA and a

year is real

of

we felt the

take two years in the CEQA process,

the

known

And since these

to the south,

start

to

say

ect

Thursday.
a copy

of

the
What

was an aide

afternoon saying the mitigation

I

said, can we

it?

They said,

get a copy of
no, you can

it?

is

Actual

, Russ

only get it

And we were really surprised because it just popped out there.

called our Supervisor, Susan Lacy (?), to ask if we could get a copy

so we'd

more time, because this only allowed us two and a half days before it

to the

for

She said she hadn't seen it yet, so I asked to have a
the meeting of my

, not the district.

aide

And she
won'

is responsible, who's working with this, will be out of town

And so we'll

set

up this meeting on

I

before

Monday, the

'til
it went to the

Board the next morning.
And the Environmental Coalition
inuance of
the

this

the City of Oxnard, the

mitigation agreement going

Board at

all because

of the

that

'd

ike to

pressure from

retired
full time

Edison.

was

And

air in our

county;

City of

up another little side

hear hearings on
who got up
to talk because

now

and talked.

who
San

I'm sorry

're

Buena

so

In the hearings, when the PUC came

the EIR, Edison

did pack those

The citizens who

Edison had brought
-76-

the

Ojai; and the

issue.

not

it's very

and that's the

but I want to bring them to your attention.
Ventura County to

and

mitigation

the merger in Ventura County:
luted

before the Board,

to that, we've been

County to hear about the

the most

of Ojai

people.

hearings with

wanted to
And in

did

from
of

Buena

the merger when in

councils had taken

't

know -- and that was an
letter

that

and that

were not in

council member had
One
Edison

while in

never ran

San

newspaper

San

Ventura

that

Well, we never

are

wonders

there wasn'

not run

in
the

Board

agreement
we

to

-- they are not going

Baldwin,
before
has

the Air Pollution
the Board and ask

not been a

life.

for a continuance.
process.

d like to

He

refused to do that.

And I ve never seen

And so this
my

like

<.wer.

, Ms.
RUSS BAGGERLY
come

here and present

many of the

been said
end

't want to take a

say to you

that
lot of your time.

We are at

the
I

think that

, one
I

said

the
to relate to

would have

was
the last

was very clear that

you about the

last witness.

the

the information in
close the

measures

-- and the cost of the

the cost-benefit of the
That

measures

-- to make their determination on

merger.

in itself seems to me to

be an abuse of process
the information

to close the

in front

you.

The

air

a

model to

Rule 59,

which is

create

is

a

dramatic decrease

rule,

there's

that that dramatic decrease in emissions
decrease
seen in Ventura

emissions has been
of a

as

We ve
up with the
process.
you very
CHAIRMAN

It has been difficult for us

for

ROSENTHAL:

Thank

ua to appear.
you very

and three persons have
haven t

much, Mr.

We

now have

indicated an interest in

heard.

Tom 0

Would you identify yourself.

TOM

name is Tom 0'
90277.

, I

1

late?

, and I live at 524 North

And my telephone number is

to ask you what are my limits in
And

you laid out

some

with process.

We are

or whether

or should not take

, let's talk about the process.

The first

very

that it
where there is an
and the
driven --

Edison power

bureaucrats and the decisions

, Edison driven.
entire

most, if not all, of the
So
felt.

decisions

that process continues

wherever the Edison

Its power and its influence are so obvious that I don'

out any of the unsavory details.
back to process, some of your
-78-

-- the first

bore

the

the

and

and

for

process

can

understand it,

no

correct

for

that has been to date
There is

as far as I
And

no

there

because the process does
must

be

The

process

as you

it, does

not

environmental
The

of Redondo Beach

by all manner of difficulties caused
a half

a

now harassed

one
the Edison

made

a noise for

in

10 minutes at

that caused
have been
are

law in Redondo Beach for seven weeks or more, and

now

in a Torrance court for
two

communities

the

the Edison law.
introduction

have

of

ammonia.
And if the merger is
merger is

the

particulate
they

approved,

evils of the

all the other

Edison presence --

the noise, the

evils that I won't bother to

five hours have been

list for you

taken up, and

've

all been

It's in all the newspaper for the last seven weeks.

all the evils that Edison is

will be worse

if

colossal

merger

to the

is

nerve and brass

considered

if

So to sum it all up, in Redondo Beach there•ve been four

meetings where four and

televised.

Of

all of the

fallout, the

will all increase.

council

and as the labor union

of Redondo

And
(?)

evils will increase.

And thank you for

even be

the

to even

to

which would

without a site-specific environmental

what extent these

the

how anyone

me.

It s

to

CHAIRMAN

Aaron

Jones

Please

the record.
I'm an associate

AARON JONES

Beach.
As
Edison

• Chairman, for

• 0'

has mentioned,

the

and Edison-associated

delve into that, I

of Redondo
for a number

1

the draft
the

of years

However,

rather than

concerns

the environmental documents
environmental

Beach has been

comments to the EIR.

of

the

me to

to date

report preparation,

the noise.
the notice of

The notice of
the notice on

have been not forwarded in an appropriate fashion, in staff's
which

these

are located.
-79-

There are

to
32

32

It

would seem

are located would at least
the

in

have the

, or should

to

We

to receive these

and we ve devoted a

environmental

information

deal of
We

time

have hired

our

It

is

somewhat unreasonable,

of this

in our

documents -- and in fact direct conversations with

Stoakes

the

feel

to conclude

could be considered on such a short schedule.

of
the

environmental

indeed

are

what we feel

a needed

commented to the draft EIR, the
unl

have been

fashion

a

have been

ect

the

agency, the Public Utilities

informational notices
We

that

that within this

limited

responses.
environmental
Now

time that a consultant

've

report,

measurement.

draft

full

to

for

do

example, in the

acoustical

analysis

However,

could prepare

this.

Their

noise

would

contains

be

there are so few of these power plants,

one noise

the

and

it would not seem unreasonable to

delve further inro the expected impacts.
dealt earlier

in

this meeting

relies

the

of

fish

and recreational

five
increased

with

The

local fish population reduction would be created

cooling water intake.

Throughout the study

have occurred for a
program

of 11 years.

The

very distant

from our

We have provided

any final

the location of

from our economic

and Huntington Beach --

ROSENTHAL:

those comments to the PUC

responses, it is our
if it does not

and do

responses.

that the

include this

is

Thank you very much.

Mr. Herriott.

Please

the record.
PARKER HERRIOTT:

re

other issues, which I shall

you.
CHAIRMAN

these

this.

EIR further goes on to lack analysis of 16

do not receive such

Well,
and

For example, Ventura

are many miles
now.

goes on further to say that

wetlands.

involves

recreational fishing.

a four

Yes.

Parker Herriott,

-so-

Hermosa Beach.

address is

to
before

any

between Edison and
CHAIRMAN

MR. HERRIOTT:

Edison and Pacific

CHAIRMAN

No.

Sart

MR.
Fine.

Thank
may be next

CHAIRMAN

MR.
you for
I'd
that
I

like

there was notice in

guess,

know

in March of

-- it

newspaper

this last year.

seems like

was sent

to

never noticed

it is difficult sometimes to

because it can be of small
that

or

But we were

us.

catch a notice in the

paper

to have been noticed in the bill

remember ever

about

merger.
Okay, so once
to

I

have concerned citizens

also

our cities

Torrance
were
to

that we have

m

of

come

lost out an

before whatever

And

Hermosa

none

even

the merger.

do what they should have done, and also the

the cities

PUC in not

that
were
another
come to
a

reason
And
me

merger.
I

It

able to come here to this

at least a chance to say

that I would not have
, and

everyone
-81~

had before

you didn t

very much.

else

one minute with us?
the air districts as it

before this
and comments
to re-open

reform the
the idea that the

and the environment were

But

s a

case, I guess that

'm

be too late to
so that
may

have to take some critical
December

has

to consider new

should re-open the
with
ALJs more time

with

the
EN BANC

after

And then third,

I

the

Governor, whoever he

for

in

I

PUC

think that

Seems to me that

that 60

is shorter

I believe that the PUC should hold

at least have some

think that the

Commissioners who can
with those

as

And the Commission should not interfere with

the ALJs decision to

first hand.
in

of paper in this case,
cases.

of the ALJ decision.

I

their proposed decision.

as many hours and as many

less

an

SB 52 and CEQA.

to

this

comments from the

President of the

or she is, to

should
attention

in making the final merger
declare this

Thank you.
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over.
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PUBLIC

88-12-035
1
1988:
17

19

ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JU[X;E 'S RULING ADOPI'ING GENERAL

FOR CONFIDENTLAL INFORMATION
AND CONFIRMING ORAL RULINGS ISSUED UNDER

on

discovery conference was

1989 the

21

discovery dispute resolution
Law Judges'
Two issues were considered:

1989.

(ALJ) ruling of

(1) applicants'

motio~

of a general protective order to cover
, and (2) the confidentiality of certain
1 that were

concern

informat
relat
to the SERASYM computer
ly released by applicants to several

rul
resolves
' motion for
on of a general
order, and
zes oral ru1
made at the
scovery conference
the SERASYM documents

I.
, 19 9 f

1

order that would

to a broad class of
f denti 1
s
would al
sens
and
transf
be
s

intervenors

st

such informat on wh

-

e at the same t

1

6

,....

\

\

the same
discovery in the
Diego Gas &
No. EC89-5-000)
(FERC). It
order adopted

-san

Code § 583;

we

3)

btr

rea

with

conference applicants
to
d con
proposed order, in
order previously adopted for application to the business
' subsidiaries and affiliates. More
agreed
the general
ive order
ORA, given
prov ions
PU Code § 583.
s
Similarly applicants
consistent w
not
, that
from us
in format
covered
related FERC docket.
that nand sclosure forms
the
consultants to
icants' counsel
the June 1 , 1989 ALJ
(4).
Issues (1) and (5),
sed

A

to Invoke

The
nt
retion by

issue wh
rely

di
s
the
a document to be con

lar

-

3 -

er
r

i

e

applicants

conf
protective
initiative to vacate
applicants or through
2 of the order
meet their

the AG's

a

of

treatment.

more
' opponents to consent to
same
the proposed order
of
, and are even more

concern.
necess

The breadth, complexity, number
associated
this case are however,
that the issue be given care
of

1 mater

1

the future.

, and amount
and
this

\

recons

1

the amount

\
88-12-035

cons

advance
deprive
of
might otherwise have.
ect to
advance
automatically

use
As

their use
these
ect

not be
TURN that it
ide advance notice of intent to use
We
require at least
intent to use protected information as a general
11
shorter notice, including oral notice prior
to use in a hearing, provided good cause is shown and provided
applicants, or the party from whom the information was obtained,
has a reasonable opportunity to review the material and assert and
defend
claims of privilege which may be applicable.
We also agree with ORA and TURN that it is against public
to adopt any rule which would automatically result in nonThe ALJs retain the latitude to
the
facts and circumstances involved in any proposed use
protected
information in Commission hearings and the flexibility to respond
whatever
most appropriate under the
We agree
irable, to

II.

SERASYM Documents

matter arose as a result
the inadvertent release
1 informat
1 by Edison to several part
to this proceeding.
's agreement with Sierra Energy Risk Assessment, Inc. (SERA),
the vendor of
SERASYM model, requires Edison to limit
of certa
allegedly confidential
to
ies that have signed a nondisclosure agreement drafted to

- 7 -

.a

SERA

as
return

AG

information at
, thereby
confidentiality and the propriety

's nondisclosure form.
SERASYM

11

1

ef

(
.SS-12-035

IT IS RULED that:
1. The general protective
as
A is adopted for application to confidential documents
ing, cons
with the
ect to discovery in
preceding discussion.
~
2. The Attorney General, the City of San Diego, and
and
1 of their employees arid consultants are directed to maintain the
iality of
SERASYM documents d
herein, and to
re
any further distribut
such documents.
3.
Any and all
concerning
confidentiality of the
SERASYM computer
1 be considered at the discovery
conference scheduled for September 7, 1989 in this proceeding,
unless noticed by agreement of the parties for an earlier
conference.
Dated August 14, 1989, at San Francisco, California.

/s/ EDWARD W. O'NEILL

Edward W. O'Neill
Administrat
Law Judge

LYNN T. CAREW
Lynn T. Carew
Administrative Law Judge
/s/

-

9 -

by LTC

CALIFORNIA

5

3f, this
produced
order
specifically modi

any
1

iding Administrative

Law
2.

A

customari

means

a

materials

to th
Protect

the

A.SS. 2-035

ATTACHMENT A

Page 2
sensitive" portions of business plans, specified in
include
Law Judge's Ruling dated June 16, 1989. The
the
specified "h
sens ive" information shall be made available
rev
pursuant to the terms of that Ruling.
(2
The term "notes of protected materials" means
handwritten notes or any other form of information
or
scloses materials described in paragraph 3.a(l
3) Protected materials shall not include (
any
the files of the Commission
or document contained
or any other federal or state agency, or any federal or state
court, unless said information or document was provided to the
agency on a confidential basis and is not a public record, or is
subject to a protective order of such agency or court; or (b)
information that is public knowledge or which becomes public
knowledge as a result of publication or disclosure by the party
furnishing the information.
b.
The terms "party" or "parties" means any person or
ent
on whose behalf an appearance has been
led
the
proceeding.
The term "reviewing representative" is a person
described in paragraph 8.
d
The term "Commission" means the California Public
ities Commission.
e.
The terms ''party," "parties," and "reviewing
representatives" shall not include the Commission, and its
employees and staff divisions (including the Division of Ratepayer
Advocates), whose duties and obligations with respect to the
treatment of utility-provided confidential information are set
n Publ
Ut 1 ies {PU) Code § 583. The Commission and
staff are exempt from the provisions of this protective order.

•\

\

/

ATTACHMENT A

Page 4
the notes or shall
maintained in
With
such
period each
shall
so
affidavit stating that
1
or
thereof are be
notes of.protected materials have
in
w
paragraph 6.
of
11 be
such
providing the materials.
(Such
of
that the materials were or are subject to a
protective order in other administrative or judicial proceedings.)
1
s
1 be maintained by the recipient in a
secure manner. Access shall be limited to those reviewing
representatives specifically authorized pursuant to paragraphs 8
9.

7.

Protected materials covered by this Protective Order
1
as confidential by each party and by the reviewing
accordance with the certificate executed pursuant
to paragraph 9. Protected materials shall not be
except as
for the conduct of this proceeding or the FERC proceeding
merger of Southern California Edison Company and San
&
Company; nor shall they be disclosed in any
a reviewing representative who is
conduct of these proceedings and who needs to know
carry out· that person's
in
proceedings. Reviewing representatives
materials.
8
representative is an individual who is:
(i
, addressee, or originator of
protected materials, but
person shall be a reviewing
representative only with respect to

i

)

ATTACHMENT A
6

a person not
11 seek agreement
If no
designation to the

reviewing
(.Of th

(a)

shall not be permitted to
or otherwise be
the protected materials pursuant to this order
unless
has first executed, and there has been
delivered to the presiding Administrative Law Judges, a nondisclosure certificate in the form set forth in the Appendix 1 to
this order.
(b) Attorney3 qualified as reviewing representatives are
responsible for ensuring that persons under their instruction,
supervision or control comply with this order.
10
Any reviewing representative may disclose protected
materials to any other reviewing representative as long as
disclosing reviewing representative and the receiving reviewing
both
and delivered a non-disclosure
icate to the presiding Administrative Law Judges prior to
In the event that any reviewing representative to whom
the protected materia
are disclosed ceases to be engaged in these
ings, or
employed or retained for a position whose
s not
lif
to be a reviewing representative under
8, access to protected materials by that person shall
terminated. Even if no longer engaged in this proceeding, every
person who has
reed to a non-disclosure certification shall
cont
to be bound by the provisions of this Protect
the certification.
(a)

A

ATTACHMENT A
7
f

0

any manner.
If
or examine
s, such party must
to

If the des

ing party fails to file
s
, they
11 be construed
otherwise
al
wh
at issue. In certain circumstances, a
notice prior to use in a hearing,
cause is shown and provided the des
e opportunity to review the
claims of privilege which
Law
evaluate the facts and c
use of protected information
whatever
the
Order
1
to
use of
Protective Order shall
istrat
Law
, the Comrn
th
ate
to find
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ATTACHMENT A
Page 8
Protective Order should not apply to all or
as
s
uhis Protective Order.
d
shall resolve
15.
The Administrative Law
under this Protective Order.. Prior to presenting any
dispute
this order to the Administrative Law Judge, the
parties to the dispute shall use their best efforts to resolve it.
party who contests the designation of any materials as
protected, shall file an objection no later than 7 days prior to
the date on which the hearing on the Merger Application is
scheduled to begin. Any objection to the designation of protected
materials, and any response to the objection, shall be filed in
writing with the Administrative Law Judge, and shall be delivered
to the designator cr the objector, as applicable, or their counsel
within 24 hours of filing unless otherwise ordered by the
Administrative Law Judge. This Protective Order shall cease to
to
s 15 business days after the objection is
filed with the Administrative Law Judge unless the designator,
within said 15-day period, responds and asserts that the materials
should
to be protected.
In any challenge to the
ignation of materials as protected, the burden of proof shall be
on
party seeking protection.
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ATTACHMENT A

Page 9
16.
Nothing in this Protective Order shall be deemed to
preclude any party from independently seeking through discovery
a~y other administrative or judicial proceeding information or
materials produced in this proceeding under this Protective
IT IS SO ORDERED.

Dated August 14, 1989, at San Francisco, California.

/s/ EDWARD lv. O'NEILL
by LTC
Edward W. O'Neill
Administrative Law Judge

/s/

LYNN T. CAREW
Lynn T. Carew
Administrative Law Judge

(END OF ATTACHMENT A)
.;;..--
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APPENDIX 1

BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF THE STATE OF
Matter of the Application of
SCEcorp and its public utility
subs iary SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA
EDISON COMPANY
338-E) and SAN
DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY
~
902-M) for Authority to Merge
DIEGO GAS &
C COMPANY
SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON
COMPANY.

)
)
)
)
)
)
)

Application 88-12-035
PROTECTIVE ORDER

NON-DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE
certify roy understanding that access to protected
materials is provided to roe pursuant to the terms and restrictions
of the Protective Order in Application 88-12-035 and that I have
been given a copy of and have read that Protective Order and agree
to be bound by it. I understand that the contents of the protected
materials, any notes or other memoranda or any other form of
information which copy or disclose protected materials shall not be
disclosed to anyone other than in accordance with that Protective
and shall be used only for the purpose of the proceeding in
Application 88-12-035 before the California Public Utilities
Commission, or in the comparable docket before the Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission.
I acknowledge that a violation of this
certificate constitutes a violation of an order of an
Administrative Law Judge of the California Public Utilities
I

Cow~i~sion.

By:
Title:
Representing:
Date:

(END OF APPENDIX 1)
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
I certify that I have by mail this day served a true copy
of the original attached Administrative Law Judge's Ruling
Adopting General Protective Order for Confidential Information and
c6nfirming oral Rulings Issued under Expedited Discovery Dispute
Resolution Procedure on all parties of record in this proceeding or
their attorneys of record.
Dated August 14, 1989, at San Francisco,. California.

Js[ BERNADETTE T. RIVERA

Bernadette T. Rivera

88

2-035

EWO/btr

Parties should notify the Process Office,
Public Utilit
Commission, 505 Van Ness
Avenue, Room 2000, San Francisco, CA 94102 of
change of address to insure that they
to receive documents. You must
icate the proceeding number of the service
list on which your name appears.
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THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF THE STATE OF CALIFOftN!A
the Matter of the Application of
and ~ts public utility
subsidlary, SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA
EDISON COMPANY (U 339-E) and SAN
CAS & EL!CT~IC COMPANY
902-M) for Authority to Mar;e
DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY
SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON

SCEco~

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

,

Application 88-12•035
(Filed Decemb•r 16, 1966:
~mended April 17, 1989)

_______________________________)
COMPAN~.

we isaua this Ruling in the interest of ensurin9 a timaly
commission decision on the propos•d Southern California Edison
· company (·Edison) ;san Dieqo Gas & Electric Company (St>G&E) merger.
since early 1989, we have wor~acs closely with the assi9ned
Administrative Law Judges (AI.Js) to d-evelop a workable sc:hat1ule !or
completing this proceeding in a manner that accommodates both th~
TiQhts of the =any active partios an4 tha decisionmaking nee~s o~
this Commission. Their reports to us concerning the unsatisfactorv
..........
E~ca of discovery make it clear that litigation of the leqal issues
underlying thaae discoyer¥ dicputaa will ~•k• !t virtuelly
impossiblt to rend•r a dtciaion ~y year-end 1990. In view of these

concerns, we believe we must aet now to ensure at a ~ini~um that
the Commission is able to maintain and possibly accelerate ita
existin9 achedule, assumin; full cooperation with this ruling and
future 4iscovery •ndaavora.
We are pro~pted to act for 5everal raasons. First, we
wish this Commission'• decision on the proposed merger to bG
publicly available prior to the time the rt~C is ready to isa~e its
m•r;ar deoiaion, so that Calitornia 1 9 concerns will have the
maximu~ pos&ible impact on FERC's aeliberations.
Second, we wish
ensura that all commissioners who have followed this proceeding
from its inception are in a position to vot• on the final outcome

.

'

1 l
l
the decision here would be delays~ oonsi~erably
if Commissioners unfamiliar with the proceeding hav• to del1berct~
vast record that will be created. Finally, we wish to
itate the Commission's merger decision in order to eli~inate
inty, both for SOG&E and !dison employees an~ their famil
and for the utilities themselves in undertaKing day-to-d~y
and resource planning. Obviously, d~l~y~ in turning
document• to othar parti~s who are att•mpting to conduct
scovery for preparin9 their-evidentiary showinqs threaten these
s and the und•rlyin9 schedule.
Therefore we are ordering both Edison and SOG&E to
ever to all requestinq parties the following documents:
1. All ~ocuro~nts subject to Motions for
Protective Orders and Motions to to~pel in
connection with the depositions of former
SDG&E directors Sievert and Scott. The
only exo•ptions to this requir•ment are the
ao-callcacl "TEP" documents whose claimed
confidentiAlity i1 currently bein9 reviewed
by the ALJs. The now~a~journed Sievert and
Scott 4epositions may be ra~umed, and any
future confidentiality issues that arise in
connection with those depoeitiona may be
~ubmitted for resolution undar existing
mechanisms ~mbodied in the Auguat 14, 1969
General Protective Ord&r.
2.

All

3.

All documents subject to DRA's DRs 23, 24,
and 25.

document~

Ratepay•r
(Dl<) 44.

subj•ct to the Division of
(ORA) Oat~ Request

Advoc~tes'&

We note that SOG&E and Edieon may avail

the~selves

provisiQns of the August 14, 1989 General Protective Order in
connactiQn with the documents responaiva to these ORa.
We also place parties on notice that we vill not
itigate the Edi~on holding company decieion in the merger
proeeedinq. Whila parties are tre• to discover
l inrormat

... 2 -

of

=''"'(''.111-'-'"' ............ '""

.·-·
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;

.. t.. • ....,

both retrospective and prospective, Which i$ relevant to th~ ~erger
proceeding or rea~ona~ly calculated to lead to the diseovsry of
admissible evidence, we will not consider testimony besed on sueh
discovered materials whicb merely relitigates thii prior decision.
Furthermore,
we fully a~pect that parties may seek historical or
\
recorded data about SDG&E anq Edison ~f!iliate~ (including Miss
Ener9y) in the course of di~covery b•cause such data may ttlaad to
discovery of ad.missible evidence," on e. vari•ty of iaDues,
inq possible con~itions to the merger. We do not intend to
restrict the ri9ht$ of parties to obtain auch discoverable
information, but we place them on notice that we will not consider
in our review of the propose~ ~er9or, testimony that beara aolaly
on the prudency issues normally coneider•d in an !CAC
reasonablenesa review. Wa CAution parties that our statements hera
as to the limitAtions on issues to be conaidared in tastimony in
this proceaoing are not intended to put new strictures on
di&eoverabla information. They are, instead, intended to quide ~ha
parties in preparin~ testimony ana to ~ssist in focu•in9 the
hearin; proceaa.
The materialc subject to this ruling shall be released by
the applicants as •oon as possible, but in no event later than
November 9, 1989. We do not anticipate that this r•qu!rement will
present an undUQ burd~n, since applicant&' counsel has a4vised the
ALJs that applicant• intend to comply immediately with the
require~ents of this rulin;.

... 3 ..
.1

i

i.r,L STANLEY

Stanl~y

w.

w.

HYL~l':t

Hulett

Commissionar

)?y

CLH

...
TO
I,
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CERTifX~

OP

SEBYlQI

I certify that I have by mail this day &erved a tru• copy
of the original attached Assiqna~ Commissionars' Rulin9 on all
parties of record 1n thi~ proceeding or their attorneys of record.
Dated November 7, 1989, at San rranciaoo, c~lifornia .

• {s /. CHERYL A. CUEI.T.O>R

Cheryl A. CUellar

LTC/tcg

'·
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'· THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
'- BEFORE
In tho Matter of the Application of
SCEcorp and ita public utility
subsidiary SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON
COMPANY ( U 338-E) and SAN DIEGO GAS &
ELECTRIC COMPANY (U 902-M) for
Authority to Merge SAN DIEGO GAS &
ELECTRIC COMPANY into SOUTHERN
CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY.

)
)
)
)

)
)
)
)

Application 88-12-035
(Filed December 16, 1988;
amended April 17, 1989)

-------------------------------->

ASSIGljBD COMMISSIONERS' RULING

.§u.,•a

of Ruling

In this Ruling we deny (1) San Diego Gas & Electric
Company's Motion for an Order Clarifying our Ruling of November 7,
1989 and (2) Southern California Edison Company's Emergency Motion
to Modify the same ruling.
We also confirm the existing schedule for this
proceeding, adopted May 26, 1989, while accomodating some slippage
in the due date of the draft Environmental Impact Report. we also
address the timing of the Attorney General's advisory opinion
pursuant.to Public Utilities (PU) CodeS 854(b)(2).
Finally, we dispose of a residual issue pending in
connection with SDG&E's Appeal of the June 16, 1989 ALJ Ruling.
llotioDS Seeking Modification of November 7
A§ signed Comi as loners' Rul.ing

On November 21, 1989, San Diego Gas & Electric Company
(SDG&E or applicant) filed a Motion for an Order Clarifying the
Assiqned Commissioners• Ruling of November 7, 1989. SDG&E seeks to
clarify that materials ordered released by the November 7 Ruling
are "protected materials" under the General Protective Order
adopted in this proceeding on August 14, 1989. SDG&E asserts that,
following the November 7 Ruling, other parties may no longer
challenge the protected status of materials released by SDG&E under
the provisions of the General Protective Order, but that certain
parties continue to make such challenges.
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on

November 22, 1989, Southern California Edison Company
or
1
) filed an Emergency Motion to Modify the
November 1 Ruling. Edison maintains that the discovery process
must be limited in areas relating to unregulated affiliates, given
our rul
that we do not intend to consider testimony which merely
itiqates the holding company decision, or which bears solely on
the prudency issues normally considered in an ECAC reasonableness
The motion was made on an emergency basis due to ORA's
of eight depositions of SCE Corp personnel beginning
9, 19~9. Edison asserted that "[a]ll of the depositions
be devoted exclusively or largely to matters related to
unregulated affiliates~ and that •[u]nless this motion is resolved
prior to their commencement, the depositions are likely to be
unduly lengthy and highly contentious. " {Edison ~lot ion, p. 2. )
In the interests of facilitating timely resolution of the
issues presented in the applicants' motions, the time for filing
responses to these motions was shortened to December 4, 1989, by
ALJ Ruling dated November 27, 1989. The scheduled depositions were
also taken off calendar pending resolution of these motions. By
December 4, 1989, the following parties had filed opposition
pleadings: Utility Consumers Action Network {UCAN), the City of
San Diego (San Diego), Attorney General John K. Van De Kamp (the
Attorney General), the Division of Ratepayer Advocates (ORA),
Toward Utility Rate Normalization (TURN), and the Southern Cities.
On December 6, 1989, Edison filed a formal reply to these
opposition pleadings.
As UCAN and San Diego correctly note in their opposition
E's motion, the November 7 Ruling did not imbue the
which the applicants were required to release with
1 confidential statuR. The Ruling clearly contemplated
the provisions of the Auqust 14, 1989 General Protective Order
still be available to those parties who challenged the
iqnation of certain materials, as well as to the

- 2 -
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designating parties, such as applicants, who might wish to
challenge a particular use of such materials by other parties in
thi~ proceedinq. (November 7, 1989 Ruling, page 2; General
Protective Order, Paragraphs 11, 13, and 1~). The November 7
Ruling did not explicitly or implictly revoke the existing
provisions of the General Protective Order, and we are at a loss to
understand how SOG&E could read the November 7 Ruling otherwise.
We find no merit in SDG&E's Motion for Clarification of the
November 7 Ruling, and the Motion is hereby denied.
We agree with the opposing parties' observations that
Edison's emergency motion does not accurately characterize the
November 7 Ruling, which draws a clear distinction between the
broad scope of allowable discovery and the more limited scope of
testimony on certain issues to be considered in this proceeding.
we reject Edison's attempts to erase the distinction between the
allowable scope of discovery and the permissible scope of
testimony. We do not intend to restrict the legitimate discovery
rights of parties. However, as a corollary to allowing the parties
to engage in a robust discovery process, we will require that
parties' testimony on the issues to be considered in this
proceeding be extremely focused and concise', and consistent with
the guidance provided in the November 7 Ruling.
Based on all the arguments presented, we find that
Edison's Motion is without merit, and we hereby deny the relief it
requests. We further caution applicants and all other parties in
this proceeding that if we are to maintain the schedule and reach a
timely decision on the merits of the proposed merger, parties must
not waste time making meritless motions challenging prior rulings.
We strongly disfavor such litigation tactics, because they distract
the parties and the Commission from the important task of focusing
on the subst~ntive issues which must be decidod in this proceedi~g.
We have made serious attempts to expedite the schedule in
this proceeding, but, after much thought, we have concluded that

- 3 -
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original schedule adopted on May 26, 1989, is demanding ~nough
the parties, and that the parties who are attempting to plan
r par~icipation both before this Commision and FERC have relied
on the original schedule in these efforts, and would be
d!savantaged by any acceleration at this point. This conclusion is
reinforced by the observations of the Southern Cities in their
4 opposition pleading.
While there has been some slippage in a portion of the
schedule related to the Commission's request for a 90-day extension
f time to complete and certify the Draft and Final Environmental
Impact Report (EIR), the existing schedule will be maintained, so
that the Commission is able to decide the merits of the proposed
merger before year-end 1990. 1 We have attached (Appendix A) a
copy of the current schedule to this Ruling so that parties can
assess the ,impacts of this EIR-related slippage. In order to
minimize the burdens caused by these changes, the Commission's EIR
consultant will provide all parties with model outputs as available
in the months prior to release of the draft EIR on March 1, 1990.
The goal is to provide these materials to the parties well before
the March 15, 1990 testimony due date reflected in Appendix A.
While discovery related to the applicants' case in chief
is drawing to a close, we have included additional discovery cutoff
and discovery conference dates to assist the parties who must meet

1 By letter dated November 28, 1989, Edison has agreed, pursuant
to CEQA Guidelines Section 15108, to extend the statutory time for
certification of the EIR from May 17, 1990 to August 17, 1990,
conditioned on the assigned ALJ entering an order that requires
completion of the draft EIR by March 1, 1990 and certification of
the final £IR by July 17, 1990. The attached schedule includes the
March 1 date for completion of the draft EIR and envisions that
fication of the final EIR will occur in the interval between
receipt of comments on June 29, 1990 and the August 17, 1990
$tatutory extended deadline.
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various 1990 testimony deadlines included in the established
schedule.
A recently enacted amendment to PU Code S 854 requires
that the Commission request an advisory opinion from the Attorney
General reqarding whether competition will be adversely affected by
an acquisition such as the proposed merger, and what mitigation
measures could be adopted to avoid this result (PU Code
S 854 (b)(2)).
In the interests of obtainipg the Attorney
General'S opinion in time to benefit the parties and the Commission
in developinq a complete record on the competitive impacts of the
proposed merger, we are requesting the Attorney General to submit
this advisory opinion on March 15, 1990, at the time testimony is
due from the Attorney General and other interested parties. In
conformance with the Commission's Rules of Practice and Procedure,
the advisory opinion shall be filed with the Commission's Docket
Office and served on all parties separately from the Attorney
General's testimony. 2 However, we fully expect that the Attorney
General may draw on his underlying case preparation in rendering
the advisory opinion, and this schedule will allow him to do so,
while at the same time providing the Commission and the parties
with the benefit of the analysis in time to use it in the
development of the record on competitive issues.
"'
In conclusion, we ora committed to meeting our original
tJmeline and wa hays instructed the assigned ALJs to allow no

sliQpage in the existing schedule that would jeopardize oureoal.
]he bLJs will make all necessaty rulings in fu~therance gf tbis
aoal. Consistent with Rule 65 of the Commission's Rules of
Practice and Procedure, we do not intend to become involved in
determinin9 the appropriateness of ALJ rulings on discovery or

2

Testimony is not filed with tha Commission's docket office.
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evidentiary issues until we have the merits of the application
us
deliberations on the final decision.
As stated in the November 1 Ruling, we are keenly
iding this matter in timely fashion for a variety
of reasons, including significant internal decisionmaking needs,
and our desire to eliminate uncertainty for the utilities and their
affected employees. To that end we wholeheartedly support the
ALJs• establishment of discovery cutoffs and other appropriate case
management tools designed to keep the parties focused in their case
preparation and hearing room activities. ~~ are committed to
~ciding this matter before year-end 199Q.
To accomplish that, we
require the cooperative effort5 of all key parties, most
particularly those who have been involved in lengthy discovery
battles to date.
Appeal and MOtions Concerninq
Privilege oocument Disclosure Forms
By ALJ ruling issued June 16, 1989, SDG&E was found to
have waived any attorney work product and attorney-client
privileges that might otherwise have applied to certain legal
advice given to SDG&E's Board of Directors regarding the proposed
merger with Edison. SDG&E was ordered to release documents
reflecting this advice to the City of San Diego. In the same
ruling, SOG&E was also ordered to complete a detailed disclosure
form for each additional document claimed to be protected from
disclosure by either the attorney-client privilege or work product
doctrine, and a procedure was adopted for facilitating the
resolution of privilege claims. Under the dispute resolution
procedure adopted, privilege disclosure forms serve as a basis for
extra-judicial resolution of disputes concerning allegedly
privileged documents. The disclosure forms are designed to require
disclosure of sufficient background And bibliographic information
about allegedly privileged documents to provide a ~easonable basis
for parties seeking discovery to assess the validity of the
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privileges claimed. In this manner, the ALJs have attempted to
preclude the necessity for ALJ review of privilege document claims
in all but the moat exceptional cases. Under the procedure adopted
by the ALJ ruling, ALJ review would only be required if the parties
were unable to resolve a particular dispute on the basis of the
information provided in the disclosure forms. In such cases, the
disclosure forms, and a copy of each document in dispute were
required by the ALJ ruling to be provided to the assigned ALJs for
in camera review.
SDG&E appealed the ALJ ruling of June 16, 1989 to the
Commission, contesting (1) the finding of waiver; (2) the
requirement that disclosure forms be prepared for each document
claimed to be privileged; and (3) the provision for in camera .~J
review of allegedly privileged documents.
Since SDG&E's appeal was tiled, the company agreed to
release documents within the scope of the ALJ's finding of waiver,
and we ordered both SOG&E and Edison to release remaining documents
alleged to be protect~d from disclosure by the attorney-client
privilege and attorney work product doctrine. As a result of these
developments, the first and last of the issues raised by SDG&E on
appeal have been rendered moot. Only the company's challenge to
the privilege document disclosure forms remains to be decided.
In November Edison and SDG&E filed motions closely
related to SOG&E's outstanding appeal of the ALJ's June 16, 1989
ruling requiring the preparation of disclosure forms. On
November 9, 1989 Edison filed a motion for Commission approval of a
"privileged document log" used by Edison in the FERC proceeding on
the merger. In effect, Edison requests that the Commission permit
the company to substitute the FERC "log" in lieu of the more
detailed privilege disclosure forms required by the ALJ's ruling of
June 16. On November 28, 1989 SOG&E filed a pleading joining in
Edison's reques~.
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to be
the ALJ rul
context of this

we concur

judgement of

of

16 is extens
this

requirement is to
ilitate and expedite the resolution of
privilege claims with a minimum of ALJ and Commission involvetnent.
ure
signed to accomplish this
of a considerable amount of
background and b
documents but it

formation
t allegedly privil
formation that parties seeking discovery

have a right to request. Requiring this
formation to be
provided, when the claim of privilege is asserted, is a reasonab
means to accelerate the resolution of disputes over privileged
documents. We will deny SOG&E's appeal concerning this portion of
the ALJ rulinq.
Although the motions of Edison and SDG&E filed in
November.are not entirely clear, it appears that they seek
modification of the ALJ ruling of June 16. To the extent that
Edison and SDG&E do request modificatic1n of the prior ALJ ruling,
the motions are denied for the reasons discussed above.
We are not addressing in this ruling any other aspects
the motions filed by Edison and SDG&E which remain pending before

aaa
IT IS ROLBD that:
1. San Diego Gas & Electric Company's Motion for an Order
Clarifying the Assigned Commissioners' Ruling of November 7, 1989,
denied.
2. Southern California Edison Company's Emergency Motion to
Modify Assigned Commissioners' Ruling is denied.
3. Depositions taken off calendar during the pendency of
these motions
now
rescheduled, but the parties shall make
every effort to
le and complete these
itions ns
dates,
testimony
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4. In addition to providing the ALJs with hard copies of
their testimony, parties submitting testimony in this proceedlng
!~hall provide the ALJs with 5-1/4 inch diskettes (machine readable)
containing such testimony, whenever possible.
5. The Attorney General's advisory opinion pursuant to
PU CodeS 854(b)(2) is due March 15, 1990.
Dated December 11, 1989, at San Francisco, California.

L~l

G. MITCHELL WILK
G. Mitchell Wilk

Assigned Commissioner
_ /s/ STNIT.EY W. IWL~TT by ~LM
Stanley W. Hulett

Assigned
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APPENDIX A
Page 1

MBRGBR CASE SCHEDULE

Schedule.

(See 5/2

Adopted Schedule:
/16/88

89 ALJ's Rul
A.SS-12-035

-Application Filed.

2 3/89

First Prehearing Conference.

4/17/89

Applicants File Direct Testimony and

4/27/99

Scheduling Workshop.

5/11/89

Second Prehearinq Conference.

S/17/89

PEA Accepted as Complete.

6/12/89

Applicants' Supplement Case-in-chief
Competition, Subsidiaries, FERC RO
Format.

6/17/89

Last Day for CACO to Send Notice of
Preparation (NOP), per S 15102 of the
CEOA Guidelines.

PEA.

7/17/89
(or 30 days aftar
NOP sent, whichever
date applies).

6/30

7/28/89

Last Day to Respond to NOP.

Scoping Meetings--EIR.

7/24/89

Applicants Serve Testimony re
"alternatives."

11

Final ORA Discovery re Applicants•
Case-in-chief Due.

1

7/
15

/16/90

9

Final Due Date for
icants'
Responses to ORA Discovery rc Caoein-chief.
ORA Testimony Due.
to EIR activities.

.

(
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APPENDIX A
Page 2

1/31/90

Final Applicant Discovery re ORA's
Testimony.

1/29/90

Final Intervenor Discovery re
Applicants' Case-in-chief Due.

2/13/90

Final Due Date for Applicants'
Responses to Intervenor Discovery re
Case-in chief; Final Due Date for
ORA'S Responses to Applicants'
Discovery re ORA's Testimony.

2/26/90

Applicants' Rebuttal to ORA Testimony
Oue.

*

3/l/90

Draft EIR Notice of Completion (NOC).

*

3/15/90

Interested Parties' Testimony Due
(Including Impacts of EIR
Alternatives); ORA Supplemental
Testimony Due (Limited to Impacts of
EIR Alternatives). Attorney
General's Advisory Opinion
(S 854(b)(2)) oue.

3/22/90

Third ?rehearing Conference
10:00 a.m. Rm. D-109, State Bldg.
1350 Front Street, San Diego, CA.

3/23/90 - 3/30/90

Public Participation Hearings (PPH}
(Specific Dates and Locations to Be
Announced) •

4/2/90

Applicants' and ORA's Rebuttal to
Interested Parties' Testimony Due;
Applicants' and Interested Parties'
Rebuttal to ORA's Supplemental
Testimony Due.

4/9/90 - 6/29/90

Evidentiary Hearings (on All Direct
and Prefilod Rebuttal Testimony).

4/23/90 - 4/27/90

Public Hearings on Draft EIR.
(Specific OateG and Locations to
Announced).

*

•
It

S/4/90

Written Comments Due, Adequacy of
Draft EIR.

Indicates dates related to ElR activities.
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F

nterested Part
to Propound Discovery Requests ln

0

Connection with Applicants' Rebuttal
Testimony.
Final E R Released.
6/22/90

Final Date for Applicants to Respond
to DRA's/Interested Parties'
Discovery re Applicants' Rebuttal
Testimony.

6/29/90

Comments Due on Final EIR.

7/11/90

ORA/Interested Parties' Surrebuttal
Testimony Due.

7/23/90 - 8/3/90

Surrebuttal Hearings.

B/17/90

Completion and Certification of
Final EifL

TBA

Subsequent Events.

The following dates are reserved for Discovery
Conferences, and parties may notice discovery disputes by following
the procedures outlined in the May 26, 1989 ALJ's Ruling:
January 4, 1990
January 18, 1990
. February 8, 1990

re

10s30 am
10:30 am
10t30 am

ted to EIR activities.
t\?PENIJ!X

San Francisco
San Francisco
San Francisco

~
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I certify that I have by mail this day served a true copy
of the original attached Assigned Commissioners' Ruling on all
parties of record in this proceeding or their attorneys of record.
Dated December 11, 1989, at San Francisco, California.

fa/ TERESITA C. GALLARQO
Teresita c. Gallardo
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LITIGATION
BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
ln the Matter of the Application of
SCEcorp arid its public utility
subsidiary SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON
COMPANY (U 338-E) and SAN DIEGO GAS &
ELECTRIC COMPANY (U 902-M) for
Authority to Merge SAN DIEGO GAS &
ELECTRIC COMPANY into SOUTHERN
CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY.

_________________________________

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

Application 88-12-035
(Filed December 16, 1988;
amended April 17, 1989)

ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUI)GES' Rur...:rNG

This ruling memorializes the results of the 4/2/90
Prehearing conference (PHC), and deals with residual scheduling
matters, issue groupings, and environmental issues. The ruling
also provides guidance on such procedural matters as Rule 73
motions, stipulations, motions to strike, and testimony errata.
'l'be Schedule
One of the primary issues addressed at the 4/2 Prehearing
Conference (PHC) was the appropriate scheduling response to the
delayed release of the Draft Environmental Impact Report (DEIR),
now due 4/9/90 rather than 3/23/90. The consensus of the parties,
especially those with limited resources, is that a slight delay in
the start of evidentiary hearings will allow intervenors an
acceptable amount of time to prepare testimony responsive to the
DEIR, and will also spare the parties the gurden of undertaking
multiple tasks during the opening weeks of hearing.
In this ruling, we have modified ~he schedule to allow
additional time for hearing preparation. This additional time
allows parties to concentrate on discovery of ~he intervenors'
testimony filed on April 20. It also allows all parties more time
to evaluate the DEIR and to prepare responsive testimony and
written comments on the draft EIR. It also permits some parties to
participate in the hearings before the Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission (FERC) during this period.

-
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(

(

our
this additional time
permitting it will pay later dividends
more efficient use of the allotted hearing days.
allow us to gain time in
end, and
the Commission's decisionmaking needs. We expect parties to
efficiency in several ways.
time available for discovery
narrow the issues in controversy. Parties
ity
identify the issues that are truly
and to actively seek out stipulations from other
Reducing the nu~er of issues in dispute
1
time needed for hearings, briefing, and drafting
the Commission's decision.
Second, these revisions ensure that more of the FERC
testimony will be available. We strongly urge parties to review
that testimony as soon as possible and to make appropriate requests
for Qfficial notice of pertinent portions of the FERC record.
Because of the considerable overlap in the issues and parties
involved
both this proceeding and the FERC case, liberal use of
FERC record will eliminate_the need for redundant testimony
this case and greatly reduce the time needed for hearing.
Third, additional time gives parties the opportunity to
with other parties. The importance of
stipulations in reducing the time needed for hearings, briefing,
drafting the decision cannot be overemphasized. We continue
all parties to be diligent in seeking, and generous in
to, stipulations.
Fourth, the additional time should ensure that parties
prepared for the hearings. In particular, we expect all
attorneys conducting cross-examination to be focused and thoughtful
We will not hesitate to question the
of inquiry, to halt
on
or to take all
necessary to maintain the pace of the
We

- 2 -

..

(
A. 88-12-035

\.

LTC/BTC/fs

proceedings. In addition, attorneys will be responsible for
ensuring that-their witnesses have been briefed on the procedures
of the hearing. Witnesses will be expected to be responsive and
concise in their ~nswers, and we will be active in keeping a
witness' answers on point.
In short, in exchange for this additional time, we expect
the active cooperation of all parties to make the most efficient
use of the available hearing time. We hope that this concerted,
cooperative effort will avoid the need for further restrictions on
the parties' activities during the hearings, such as the allocation
of cross-examination time that was discussed at the prehearing
~onference.

The specific scheduling revisions designed to achieve
these goals are reflected in Appendix "A." They are briefly
summarized here: We will maintain the 4/23 PHC and PPHs and the
PPHs scheduled for 5/8 through 5/16. However, rather than starting
evidentiary hearings on 4/24, we will begin on 5/16 to hear ALL
testimony in Issue Groups I (Policy and Other General Issues) and ·
II (Competition) theretofore served by Applicants, ORA, and
intervenors. We will not begin to hear testimony in Issue
Group III (Net Benefits) before 6/21 in order to allow for
completion of discovery on the concurrent EIR-related testimony now
due.5/21. During these Issue Group III hearings, ALL Issue
Group III testimony served by May 21 will be considered.
Hearings will be held in San Diego during the following·
weeks: May 8 - 11; May 14 - 18; May 21 - 25; May 29 - June 1;
June 25 - 29; July 16 - 20; and July 23 - 27. These hearings will
be held at the Shrine Temple, 5440 Kearny Mesa Road, San Diego, CA
92111. The remainder of the evidentiary hearings will be held in
the Commission Courtroom in San Francisco.
Issue Groupings
As discussed at the PHC, we will proceed with the
evidentiary hearings issue by issue, based on the following

- 3 -
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of "Policy and Other
Issues"
as
; general
and § 854 issues not covered elsewheree
: quality of
;
ent
; management
shareholders: benefits to state and local
mitigation of
be
the evidentiary
addressed
hearings on Issue Group III); and options to the merger (again,
environmental consequences of some alternatives will be addressed
the CEQA process, unless they are appropriately considered
Issue Group III hearings).
The category of "Competition" includes analysis of market
power: transmission access; proposed transmission access policies;
and issues bearing on affiliated transactions.
The category of "Net Benefits" is residual, in that it
effectively includes all issues not related to Groups I and II.
More specifically, it includes at least the following issues:
resource planning; production costs (including choice of models,
conventions, and assumptions): results of modeling (net
benefits, effect on QF payments, air quality effects, revenue
[specific revenue allocation, specific rate design,
and uncollectibles]); rate base and depreciation;
income
:
; savings in functional
and benefits, payroll taxes)~ and merger and
costs.
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The testimony which has been served to date is allocated
among the three categories, as follows:
ISSUE I:

POLICY AND OTHER GENERAL ISSUES

APPLICANTS

Schlesinger (Exh. 1)
Bryson (Exhs. 2 and 26)
Page (Exh. 3)
Fohrer (Exhs. 4 and 32)
Lester (Exhs. 10 and 27)
Liu (Exh. 12)
White (Exh. 13)
Fogarty (Exh. 14)

Jacobson (Exh. 10,000)
Pulsifer (Exh. 10,100)
Burns (Exh. 10,100)
Price (Exh. 10,100)
Renahan (Exh. 10,500)
Siegal (Exh. 10,600)
FUa (Exh. ·10, 600)
iNTERVENORS

TO BE DETERMINED
ISSUE II:

COMPETITION

APPLJCANTS

Bryson (Exh. 36) 1
Budraja (Exh. 17)
Fogarty (Exhs. 18 and 35)
Gaebe (Exh. 19)
Hughes (Exh. 20)
Pace (Exhs. 21 and 35)
Joskow (Exhs. 22, 34, and 35)

1 We have designated the Supplemental Testimony served 6/89 as
Exhibit 36 rather than as Exhibit 2A, in order to avoid confusion
with possible errata to Exhibit 2.
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24

?)

3 (
35)

1

3}

10 200)
10
)
10 200)
• 10,300)
• 10,30 )
10,300)
• 10 300)
10 300)
10,300)
INTERVENORS

TO BE DETERMINED
ISSUE III:

NET BENEFITS

• 5 and 29)
• 5 and 29)
. 6
29)
(Exhs. 6 and 29)
Budraja (Exhs. 7 and 31)
Krumvieda (Exhs. 7, 9, 28, and 31)
(
• 7
31)
Thomas

Klein

• 8, 9,
• 11)
)

28)

16)

30)

32

])
])
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Price (Exh. 10,100 [III C 4])
Cauchois (Exh. 10,400)
House
(Exh. 10,400)
Toolsen (Exh. 10,400)
Lafrenz (Exh. 10,400)
Dobson
(Exh. 10,400)
Kinosian (Exh. 10,400)
Schultz (Exh. 10,400)
Chaitkin (Exh. 10,400)
High
(Exh. 10,400)
White
(Exh. 10,400)
Dietrich (Exh. 10,400)
scadding (Exh. 10,400)
Sinclair (Exh. 10,400)
Flores
(Exh. 10,400)
Valaitis (Exh. 10,400)
Yager
(Exh. 10,500)
Hartman (Exh. 10,500)
Williamson (Exh. 10,500)
Gilbert (Exh. 10,500)
Fukotome (Exh. 10,500)
Cheung
(Exh. 10,500)
Tang
(Exh. 10,500)
Shankey (Exh. 10,500)
Fowler
(Exh. 10,500)
Lubin
(Exh. 10,500)
Min
(Exh. 10,500)
Han
(Exh. 10,500)
Infante (Exh. 10,500)
Ayanrouh (Exh. 10,500)
Loy
(Exh. 10,500)
Rowe
(Exh. 10,500)
TN"<1'JP(VENOR5

TO BE DETERMINED
CACD's Testimony on the DEIR
As discussed elsewhere in this ruling, in connection with
the Commission's consideration of Issue Group III the testimony of
the Commission's environmental consultants, who are responsible for
preparing the DEIR under the guidance of the Compliance and ·
Advisory Division (CACD) staff, may be required. This is reflected
in the previous listing of witnesses.
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stand at all

submitting
and
page 16)
to exempt CACD
we do not

CACD's

part
an appearance form in a
Commission staff members
•.• and their agents,
21, 1989,

as witnesses, we intend
the ex parte rule, because
the full sense
that
party,
to
designating
as witnesses, which is
open the
input as necessary
this
advocacy
a

california
merger's
environmental issues
this
ion.
(SCAQMD)
, that
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the March 12 ruling violated § 854 of the Public Utilities Code.
SCAQMD's motion was premised on its perception that the ruling
declared environmental effects of the merger not to be part of the
consideration of the public interest required under § 854. SCAQMD
seemed to conclude that § 854 requires evidentiary hearings on all
environmental aspects of the proposed merger, even those also
covered in the CEQA process.
The Ventura County Air Pollution Control District
submitted a response supporting SCAQMD's motion on March 30.
On March 29, Local 47 of the International Brotherhood of
Electrical Workers (Local 47) filed a similar motion requesting
clarification of the March 12 ruling. The Attorney General, the
City of San Diego, and the San Diego Air Pollution Control
District joined in this motion. Local 47 requested clarification
of the distinction between environmental issues that will be
addressed in the CEQA process and those taken up in the evidentiary
hearings. Local 47 urged the Commission to find that several
portions of § 854 required a consideration of certain environmental
issues, that those types of environmental issues would be addressed
in the evidentiary hearings, and that testimony on mitigation of
environmental impacts and the resource plans giving rise to those
impacts should be considered in the evidentiary hearings.
The Commission's Division of Ratepayer Advocates (ORA)
sent a letter to the ALJs on March 28. In that letter, ORA offered
its opinion that all of the likely topics of the draft
environmental impact report (EIR) required by CEQA are also
appropriate for consideration in the evidentiary hearings. A
similar letter was submitted by the Attorney General on March 29.
The letter underscored the Attorney General's support for the
motion of Local 47 and the arguments presented in that motion.
These concerns were discussed at the prehearing
conference of April 2. For the benefit of the parties who were not
present at the prehearing conference, we will again state our

.
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parties' proposed testimony responding to the draft EIR.
Nevertheless, it is possible to provide the parties some guidance
on this point. As a general rule, the environmental issues that
wiil be addressed in the evidentiary hearings are those that affect
the calculations of costs and benefits performed by the various
parties' production simulation models.
The focus on the production cost models arises primarily
because of the difficulty of assessing the changes in dispatch of
generation units and overall production costs that result from even
minor changes in the assumptions that make up the inputs to the
models. Even if the Commission were able to choose between the
parties' positions on these inputs on the basis of written or oral
comments in the CEQA process, it would be unable, without further
presentations by the parties sponsoring the models, to evaluate the
effect of its choice on the calculation of costs and benefits.
These sorts of costs, then, are conceptually different from
environmental costs or benefits that do not affect or are not
affected by the production cost·models.
The line between these categories of costs and benefits,
although still blurry, was illustrated by discussion of several
examples at the prehearing conference, and we refer parties to the
transcript for the guidance these illustrations offer. It was
pointed out that the effect of environmental costs and benefits can
arise both in the first stages of the modeling, in the
determination of the appropriate input assumptions, and at the end
of the modeling. An example of the latter case is a result that,
in a party's opinion, leads to unacceptable environmental costs.
To mitigate those costs, the party may propose steps that may alter
the initial assumptions or may require generating units to operate
in a way that departs from strict economic sequencing.
The discussion at the prehearing conference also pointed
out that some costs not strictly tied to production may also vary
as generation varies. An example of this sort of cost is the

- 11 -

A

5

improper

..

\.

A.SS-12-035

LTC/BTC/fs

moot. Except to the extent granted in this ruling, SCAQMD's motion
is denied.
Taking Official Notice of the FERC Record
As discussed in detail during the PHC, parties may
request that official notice be taken of specific portions of the
record being developed in the FERC's parallel merger proceeding.
Indeed, in the interests of the Commission's decisionmaking goals,
we encourage such motions, as long as they are specific and
sufficiently detailed to provide all parties with the information
necessary to protect their own interests in response.
Rule 73 of the commission's Rules of Practice and
Procedure provides that official notice may be taken of such
matters as may be judicially noticed by courts of the State of
California. In this proceeding we will require that Rule 73
motions be filed and served no later than 14 days before the
witness in question is scheduled to testify, that the moving party
designate exactly those portions of the FERC record which are
subject to the motion, and that the relevant materials subject to
the motion be provided to the ALJs and to parties requesting them.
The moving party has the burden of demonstrating the propriety of
taking official notice of the particular materials in question and
must indicate how such materials are relevant to this proceeding.
Responses to such motions, including counterdesignations of
relevant portions of the FERC record, must be filed and served
within 10 days of the date the motion is served.
We anticipate that this process will avoid significant
duplicative efforts for those actively participating in both
forums, and we will use it to avoid truly duplicative crossexamination by any party. Nonetheless, we also realize that
witnesses whose FERC testimony is officially noticed pursuant to
Rule 73 may still be subject to·cross-examination by all parties on
relevant issues not addressed in the other forum.

- 13 -

.
A.SS-12-035

\

LTC/BTC/fs

The 4/23 Prebearing Conference
At .the 4/23 PHC in San Diego, we will request all parties
to submit a list of adverse witnesses. We will also request from
sponsoring parties a preferred order of witnesses.
Dated April 6, 1990, at San Francisco, California.

Is/ LYNN T. CAREW

Lynn T. Carew
Administrative Law Judge
/s/ BRIAN T. CRAGG by L. Carew
Brian T. Cragg
Administrative Law Judge
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APPENDIX A
Page 2
· 5/10/90

5/11/90

(2 p.m.)

PPH/PH re DEIR
City council Chambers
City Hall (2nd Floor)
532 West Mission Drive
San Gabriel, CA 91776

(7 p.m.)

Council Chambers, Ontario
City Hall
303 East B Street
Ontario, CA 91764

(10 a.m.)

PPH/PH re DEIR
Commission courtroom
State Office Building
107 South Broadway
·
Los Angeles, CA 90012
Final Date for Interested Parties to
Respond to Apps' and ORA's Discovery
of 4/20 Testimony

D

5/14/90

*

5/14/90

(7 p.m.)

PPH/PH on DEIR
Council Chambers
Chula Vista City Hall
276 4th Avenue
Chula Vista, CA 92012

5/15/90

(2 p.m.)

PPH/PH re DEIR
council Chambers
Escondido City Hall
201 North Broadway
Escondido, CA 92025-2798

(7 p.m.)

Carpenters' Hall Local #605
353 E. Broadway Street
Vista, CA 92084

(7 p.m)

PPH/PH on DEIR
Shrine Temple
5440 Kearny Mesa Road
San Diego, CA 92111

*

5/16/90

••• indicates dates related to EIR
•o• indicates dates related to discovery activities.

9

9

5

9
90

D

6

D

6/4/90

D

6/20/90

on
Discovery on

6/21/90 - 7/
D

22 90

*

6/29/90

I

9

I

90

EIR
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APPENDIX A

Page 4

*

8/17/90

Completion & Certification of
Final EIR

TBA

Subsequent Events

The Following dates are reserved for Discovery Conferences, and
parties may notice discovery disputes by following the procedures
outlined in the May 26, 1989 ALJ ruling:
April 12, 1990
April 19, 1990
April 26, 1990
May 3, 1990

10:30
10:30
10:30
10:30

a.m.
a.m.
a.m.
a.m.

San
San
San
San

Francisco
Francisco
Francisco
Francisco

*****

••• indicates dates related to EIR.
•o• indicates dates related to discovery activities.

(END OF APPENDIX A)
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BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
In the Matter of the Application of
SCEcorp and its public utility
subsidiary SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON
COMPANY (U 338-E) and SAN DIEGO GAS &
ELECTRIC COMPANY (U 902-M) for
Authority to Merge SAN DIEGO GAS &
ELECTRIC COMPANY into SOUTHERN
CALIFORNIA EDISON COMPANY.

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

Application 88-12-035
(Filed December 16, l98S;
amended April 17, 1989)

------------------------------------->
ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGES 1 RULING

Preliminary discussions have been held among parties
attending the Issue Group II evidentiary hearings on the general
topic of briefing (24 RT 3271-3272). This ruling outlines the
briefing issues which have been identified in these discussions and
solicits the comments of all parties prior to a ruling on these
matters. In addition, this ruling discusses certain procedures
necessary to the scheduling of EIR-related cost data to be heard
during the Issue Group III evidentiary hearings.
Briefing Xssues
The applicants have suggested that parties agree on a
common outline for briefs. During preliminary discussions among
the parties, it became evident that there is a diversity of
viewpoints on exactly what this means. Some parties have indicated
that a "common outline" may be no more than a common table of
contents, while others have stated that it may be feasible to
develop a "common outline" on the basis of major subject matters.
We find it useful for purposes of decision-writing for the parties
to develop such a "common outline," but recognizing that there is a
diversity of opinion among the parties, we will solicit comments
regarding {1) the usefulness of such a "common outline" and {2) its
scope. Once we have received and reviewed these comments, we will

-
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issues presented by the parties. We do not intend to include sucl
proposed findings and conclusions of law in any page limits which
may be imposed.
A final issue which is somewhat related to "briefing"
the question of holding an en bane oral argument in this
proceeding. Most parties have indicated that such an argument, i:
held, should be scheduled after the Proposed Decision is publishec
and after the comments are filed. In accordance with this ruling
other parties should indicate whether they favor such an argument
and, if so, they should indicate their scheduling recommendations
Scheduling Conference
Several developments make it difficult to arrive at a
reliable schedule for the hearings on Issue Group III.
First, the period for responding to discovery on the
testimony filed on May 21 was extended to June 27. If we follow
the logical course of completing discovery before hearing the
testimony of the witnesses subject to discovery, the hearings in
Issue Group III could not begin until discovery is completed, or
earlier than July 27.
Second, the testimony on Issue Group II has proceeded
faster than expected, and it may be possible to conclude hearings
on Issue Group II, including related rebuttal, or or before
June 27. This acceleration resulted largely from the examining
parties' reliance on the transcripts and exhibits of the FERC
proceeding. The topics of Issue Group III are not as susceptible
to this treatment, and the greater number of participants in this
area suggests that any time made available due to the acceleratio
of hearings on Issue Group II will be needed to cover Issue
Group III. Thus, we will attempt to move from Issue Group II
immediately to Issue Group III without a gap in the hearings.
Third, it now appears that the responses to the comment
• on the Draft Environmental Impact Report {DEIR) will refine the
report's analyses in ways that could affect some parties' testimo

II

I
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
I certify that I have by mail this day served a true copy
of the original attached Administrative Law Judges' Ruling on all
parties of record in this proceeding or their attorneys of record.
Dated June 13, 1990, at San Francisco, California.

/s/

FANNIE SID
Fannie Sid

Parties should notify the Process Office,
Public Utilities Commission, 505.Van Ness
Avenue, Room 2000, San Francisco, CA 94102, of
any change of address to insure that they
continue to receive documents. You must
indicate the proceeding number of the service
list on which your name appears.

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

*

* *

The Commission's policy is to schedule hearings
(meetings, workshops, etc.) in locations that
are accessible to people with disabilities. To
verify that a particular location is
accessible, call: Calendar Clerk (415)
557-0460.
If specialized accommodations for the disabled
are needed, e.g., sign language interpreters,
those making the arrangements must call the
Public Advisor at {415) 557-0890 or TOO# (415)
557-0798 five working days in advance of the
event.
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owner would give up something of $2,000 to $60,000

3

value for a fraction of their value which would be th

4

incentive payment to them from Edison under these

.6

7
8
.. :.-

Well, I'm curious, then, why an IC engine

2

.5

·~

Q

9

mitigation plans?
that?
A

No.

I've tried, on behalf of clients, to

predict the behavior of offset buyers and sellers
_unsuccessfully.
You could ask the same question as to why

10
11

Can you give me your opinion on

t!OT

everyone isAout there selling NOx offset credits when

),

··:';.

.-.

12

potentially they could get $60,000 per ton.
There are a number of intangibles I find go

13
14
15

into these transactions and, no, I could not explain
to you why they might do that.
MS. YACKNIN:

16

Rubenstein.

17
18

19

I have nothing further.
AI.J CRAGG:

MS. BERGER:

20

21

All right.

Ms. Berger?

Thank you, your Honor.

Deborah Berger representing the City of San
Diego.

22

I would like to state for the record at this

23

time, if I may, that the City's joining with the other

24

parties in the ongoing objection of the limited scope

25

of cross-examination being permitted in these

26

evidentiary hearings on the potential cost of

27
28

·-

Thank you very much, Mr.

I

BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
OF THE
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

G. MITCHELL WILK, COMMISSIONER,
ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE LYNN T. CARE~, and
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I think this is an exceedingly important
proceeding, perhaps one of the most important
proceedings ever to be before the California Public
Utilities Commission, and I think just by virtue of
the fact that you see two Administrative Law Judges
and we now have two assigned Commissioners -- I asked
stan Hulett to join me as an assigned Commissioner to
assist me and provide his guidance in this case as
well -- demonstrates the level of commitment that this
Commission has devoted to this case.
Indeed I think we also have in place a task

[

force, a full time task force in our Division of

-

Ratepayer Advocates that will be dedicated completely
to this case to represent the long run interests of
ratepayers.
There will also be no rush to judgment as I
think we will all

he~r

this morning.

We want the

facts and we want to take as much time as will be

--·---

needed to get those facts.

However, the ratepayers

deserve a timely decision as well as the employees of
these companies.
So there will.be hopefully_very.little room
for delay, certainly no room for intentional delay.
--- ·----------------·=· .-

And I would ask all the parties once we set
this schedule to stick to it.

It's going to be a

long proceeding, and I think we want to try to get it
concluded within a timely fashion.
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ers of San Diego deserve the facts and a fair forum in which to evaluate
them.

This is the constitutional obligation of the CPUC and,

pledged

the Commission would deliver.
And he told

San Diego Chamber that he was aware of the

impact that the merger would
al

d

on San Diego.

He promised

to assess t

f

These pledges were reiterated and a new one was made on

lk.

Pres
lso

al

s first public hearing

stated,

11

"There will

no
None of these four pledges to San Diegans made by President Wilk
came t

pass.

Commi

pledges by the President.

1.

ettered

on decisions negated most, if
For example:

scretion to
the
rings was
On November 7, 1989 the Commission
reneged on President Wilk's pledge by stating that the
ly revoked.

1

decision on the merger was to occur by the end of 1990. It
issued an order speeding up discovery so that a year-end
1990 decision could be achieved.
2.

The hurried hearings precluded a truly fair forum. Instead,
the Commission delivered the fairest possible hearings that
could be managed in an inadequate and contrived hearing
schedule.

3.

The ramroded hearing schedule that specifically prejudiced
the ability of San Diego intervenors to address the special
concerns of San Diego.
Sadly, If these hearings were a book or play, they would be

properly entitled "Rush to Judgment"

the exact thing that

President Wilk hoped would not occur.

Whether intentional or

not, the Commission's procedural lapses in its handling of the
merger hearings has raised serious questions about the fairness
of the merger hearings.
UCAN welcomes this Committee's scrutiny of the merger hearings for
purposes of oversight of the merger case.

We also hope that the findings

will buttress support for future reforms of the PUC hearing process.

II.

PROCEDURAL SHORTCOMINGS OF THE MERGER HEARINGS
It is UCAN's position that the record before the Commission

on the present application is deficient.

The major contributors

to that deficiency are the result of a series of procedural
shortcomings.
More than anything else, I believe the Commission did not appreciate
the importance of the evidentiary hearings to intervenors, who did not
have the formidable resources necessary to present the entirety of their
cases in direct and rebuttal written testimony.

Intervenors needed the

opportunity to cross-examine utility experts in order to construct their cases.
2

on

s 1

ly

intervenors.
1

ng

11 attest to the

However, I can

ative
iary
process pre
UCAN and other merger opponents to

ced

precl
UCAN and
articulating the basis for
The prejudice suffered
UCAN and
opponents was far
greater than that suffered by the utili
In fact, it is
likely that Edison benefited from this
to judgment,
although at this time, it is difficult to judge whether this
artificial advantage will permit Edison to prevail.
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III.

IMPACTS OF THE ACCELERATED EVIDENTIARY HEARING SCHEDULE
The schedule ordered by the Commission curtailed the cross-

examination of expert witnesses by a number of intervenors.
UCAN

cross-

ion of

least 5 or more

nesses due to the compression of time and clear directive
ALJs that

s

le was inviolate.

the

pressure

The unrel

days of cross-examination, six days a week, made
preparation and follow-up
le breaks in

hea

fficult, if not impossible.

The only

ngs occurred on July 4th and the

onal weekend,
ervenors were also hampered by an almost Machiavellian
son's team of attorneys in which

on

cross

tnesses

t

for oppos

canceled or restricted their cross-examination

last
3

In at least two instances, I personally arrived at the
hearings to cross-examine an expert witness only to learn that
the witness had been dismissed because a lengthy scheduled
cross-examination by Edison had been canceled or severely abbreviated.

This tactic made preparation for these and subsequent

witnesses extremely difficult.
The schedule compression and legal maneuvering exacerbated
the problems caused by a clearly inadequate schedule.

My conclu-

sion that the schedule was inadequate is supported by a comparison of the merger hearing schedule to that of a Commission general rate case.

According to the Commission's General Rate Case

Plan (D. 89-01-040) the evidentiary hearing time allotted to a
General Rate Case is roughly 100 days

(Days 98 - 194)

whereas

the hearing schedule for the merger case was a mere 79 days.

In

sum, a larger, more complicated case was compressed into less
time than afforded a General Rate Case.

IV.

INAPPROPRIATELY SHORT BRIEFING SCHEDULE
Parties were permitted only four weeks to draft opening

briefs and two weeks to construct reply briefs.

To fully appre-

ciate the paucity of this schedule, I again compare the briefing
schedule for a Commission general rate case.
The CPUC Rate Case Plan cited above requires hearings to end
on day 194 and opening briefs to be filed on day 234.

Thus the

rate case affords at least 40 days for preparation of an opening
brief.

Whereas opening briefs for the more demanding merger

case were filed less than 30 days after the close of hearings.
4

brevi

period limi

UCAN to focusing upon

issues UCAN had

ee

Ins

0

, we were forced to reference

i

parties.
to
pressure

upon the ALJs to issue a proposed
to

on s

sion.

Rate Case Plan, an ALJ has

from
decision.

undue

is

1

whi

In this case, the ALJs are allot

to write a

less than 60 days

to produce a reasoned, comprehensive decision in a larger and far
more complex case.
V.

COMMENT AND DECISION PERIOD PRECLUDES REASONED FINAL DECISION
As UCAN understands it, the Commission is expecting a pro-

posed decision by the ALJs no later than November 2
would give

ssion a 30-day window

This

which to render a

final decision by year's end.
This 30-day period, the Commission would give the ALJs and
Commission

f less than

days to review and incorporate the

comments offered by parties after the 20-day comment period for
parties into a comprehensive and final decision.
the Christmas

All of this

i

Commissioners' may be putting undue pressure on themselves to issue

sion on a matter as complex and profound as
year, the

ewing and deli

on

96

ing over the ALJ's proposed decision on

5

the reasonableness of the KRCC contracts between Edison and its
unregulated affiliates.

(App. 88-12-016)

The KRCC had far less

significance, in the scheme of things, than does this merger
case.
Moreover,

I expect that requiring all of the parties to

review and submit written comments upon a proposed decision that
should be voluminous is unrealistic and unfair, especially to
intervenors.
If the Commission adheres to this decision schedule it is
literally impossible to give serious attention to any comments on
the proposed decision.

The comment period that is mandated by

Commission rules would be rendered meaningless and a final decision, whether for or against the merger,

would be rushed and

ill-conceived.

VI.

RESOURCE DISPARITY GAVE ADVANTAGE TO APPLICANTS
The time pressures imposed upon the parties gave a clear

advantage to the utilities.

Their team of attorneys and support

staff was capable of handling the substantial workload.

And

their case did not rely upon cross-examination.
To the best of our knowledge, the utilities had at least 20
attorneys sponsoring and cross-examining witnesses, with untold
numbers of associates and support staff writing testimony,
briefs, motions etc.

The capability of this formidable team

dwarfed the capabilities of the one UCAN attorney, two City of
San Diego attorneys, three deputy attorney generals, and five DRA

6

admitted

an
$95

Ilion for
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PUC s

son's daunting resource advantage enabled it to present
i

rect,

case

y unnecessary

ion was 1

ion

most
ssion (

Cross-exami-

1

as evidenced by its waiver of

the

Energy Regulatory

CPUC merger hearings.

All of the intervenors, save for perhaps the DRA, were fully
dependent upon cross-examination in order to build a complete
evidentiary record.

Thus, by compressing the schedule, the

Commission unwittingly created a record that works in the favor
of the utilities.

VII.

IMPACT UPON THE ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGES
the Commi

UCAN

to present their

Judges are
employees, they are
if present.

y

on Admi
ews.

And that is a serious concern of UCAN's.

ALJs adequate time to

the hearing
their job.

And it

the Commission unduly interfered with

ALJs

cess aff

As Commission

not free to express their views even

must seriously consi

must a so cons

strative Law

a

to all parties.

7

compl

with due pro-

If nothing else, the Committee may wish to reconsider the
merits of the ALJ divisions' current connection to the PUC.
Other state and federal agencies have avoided the potential for
Comm:ssion interference in hearings and decision drafting by
maintaining an independent adminstrative law judge department.
The handling of case warrants legislative action to bring PUC
practice into conformity with that of other administrative agencies.

VIII.

CONCLUSION
For all of the reasons above, UCAN believes that the Commis-

sion's procedural activities have compromised the thoroughness of
the administrative record, prejudiced intervenor participation
and indelibly tainted the final decision.
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, CA 95814

Dear Senator Rosenthal,
Thank you
inviting TURN to participate in today's
hearing on procedural questions related to the proposed merger of
Southern California Edison and San Diego Gas & Electric Co.
Enclosed is a written version of my comments, which I would like
included in the record of this hearing.

Audrie Krause

consumer
Fn1 mrlcu-i in 1

· contributions are tax deductible.

COMMENTS OF TOWARD UTILITY RATE NORMALIZATION
SENATE OVERSIGHT HEARING ON THE SCE-SDG&E MERGER

The procedural violations that the California Public
Utilities Commission has allowed to occur during the review of
southern California Edison's proposed takeover of San Diego Gas &
Electric Co. are almost beyond belief.

TURN shares many of the

specific concerns being raised by other parties who oppose the
proposed merger.

Since there are other speakers addressing the

specific due process and Environmental Impact Review issues,
TURN's comments will focus on Southern California Edison's abuse
of the public witness hearing process.
As the committee members know, public witness hearings are
intended to provide California ratepayers with a forum for
expressing their views on matters pending before the CPUC.

These

hearings are vastly different from the more technical evidentiary
hearings at which lawyers for the various parties can cross
examine expert witnesses.

Unfortunately, Southern California

Edison used the public witness hearings on the merger issue as a
forum to promote itself as a "good corporate citizen."

This is

not the purpose for which the hearings were scheduled.
By recruiting dozens of elected and appointed officials
and other community leaders to speak in support of the proposed
merger, Edison effectively sabotaged public participation in the
hearing process.

In many cases, individuals in geographically

separate communities used identical words to express their
support for Edison -- which strongly suggests that these

, even

(

1

.)
of
on
of Congress, 23 current and
, seven

and

In addition,
officials

were numerous

representatives from agencies such as the United

Way. (Regarding the United

, TURN was appalled to hear United

Way representatives giving credit to Edison as a corporation for
the generous contributions made by its employees -- who have
opposed this merger through their union representatives!)
to understand why so many publ
a

-- if any -- benefits for the people they were elected or
explanation can be found in Edison's
's office in

on

the Secretary of State indicate that
pol

$372,840
87

June 30, 1990,

the
appears to

campaigns in
most recent reporting

of 1988 and 1989.

that Edison's support comes primarily from
•s

generous political contributions.
Edison's manipulation of the public hearing process for
corporate public relations made a mockery of public involvement
in the process of reviewing the proposed merger.

In some cases,

TURN members who attended the hearings were outraged to discover
that the local officials they had helped to elect were there to
speak in favor of a proposed merger that they objected to.
Obviously, these officials didn't consider the views of their
constituents before taking a position in support of the merger.
In TURN's view, much of this so-called support was merely
repayment for political contributions and years of being "wined
and dined" by Edison's army of corporate representatives.
In San Diego, where public awareness about the proposed
merger is high, many individual citizens attended the public
witness hearings and commented on the merger -- both opponents
and supporters.

North of the San Diego County border, however,

the hearings were attended by only a handful of individual
citizens and dozens of public officials who used almost identical
words to describe Edison as a "good corporate citizen."
Since this is not the first time that a major California
utility has abused the public witness process during an important
CPUC proceeding, TURN believes it is time to re-evaluate the way
in which the CPUC conducts public hearings and consider

rules to

prohibit utilities from subverting the process. As the committee
members may recall, Pacific Gas & Electric Co. engaged in a
similar public relations effort during the public witness
hearings on the Diablo Canyon rate case.

OF
MARC D. JOSEPH
ADAMS & BROADWELL
ATTORNEYS FOR LOCAL 47 OF THE
INTERNATIONAL BROTHERHOOD OF ELECTRICAL WORKERS
before the
SENATE

ON ENERGY AND
26,

9

UTILITIES

MARK N.AARONSON
THO ... AS Fl. AOAMS
ANN BROAOWEI.L.
DANIEL L.. CARDOZO
MAFIC O . ..JOSEPH
..JANIS A. L-AROCHE
CHRIS R. REOSURN
OAVIO H. SIL.VERMAN

ADAMS 8 BROADWELL
A PROF"ESSIONAL COAI='OAATION

ATTORNEYS AT L.AW

TELEPHONE

P.o. eox 5049

(4151 573·1660

1875 SOUTH GRANT STREET. SUITE 60D
SAN MATEO.CAL.IF"ORNIA 9-02

F"ACSIMIL.E

(4151 573·5559

0,.. COUNSEL
CARL L.McCONNEL.L.
PACKARD. MEL.L.SERG
& "'cCONNEL.L.

Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee, my name is Marc Joseph. I am
a lawyer in the firm of Adams & Broadwell of San Mateo.
We represent Local 47 of the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers.
Local 47 is the bargaining agent for more than 5,000 employees of Southern California
Edison.
We appreciate your invitation to present our views to you on the procedure that
the Public Utilities Commission has followed in its examination of the proposed merger
of Edison with San Diego Gas & Electric.
As you are well aware, if approved, the merger will have a profound effect on
the electric utility industry in this state. The proceeding now before the PUC is the
most important that Commission has had in many years. The issues are complex and
the potential effects on the ratepayers and the environment will be far reaching and
long lasting.
Yet, despite its importance, we believe that the proceeding has been prejudiced
by the Commission's rigid adherence to its goal of issuing a final decision by
December 1990.
Virtually every important ruling in the case has been affected, and due process
has been distorted. In fact, the Commission has virtually admitted that adhering to the
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consequences. The PUC's

a short delay in filing its testimony because

Edison had been obstructing its discovery. The

wrote that "in ruling on ORA's

to allow any scheduling changes (if any are

motion, we do not

arguments)

a

threaten

That is, even if
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would

to

be changed.

controlling

outcome of

under

a

a

included in the analysis of whether the merger was in the public interest, as required

by section 854.
Initially, the Commission agreed. The time for submitting testimony was to be
almost two months after the Draft EIR was published. We and the Commission
assumed that the EIR would come out on time and would analyze all of the
environmental effects of the merger.
As it turned out, publication of the Draft EIR was delayed four times, and when
it was finally published, it was still incomplete.
What was the reaction of the PUC? Did the Commission take the logical step,
and say that each week delay on its part in publishing the Draft EIR meant that our
testimony would be due a week later? No. That would jeopardize the schedule.
With each successive delay in publishing the Draft EIR, the Commission tried to
shorten the time for submitting testimony. Time and again, we had to file papers and
make arguments, pleading for an adequate interval. Time and again, we were offered
inadequate time to prepare and present testimony. And the reason was always the
schedule.
When the Draft EIR was finally released, it was obviously incomplete. Many
impacts were not analyzed; for many others, no mitigation measures were offered.
The Draft EIR did not even contain the analyses which the PUC itself promised in its
Seeping Report. All of the air districts that commented said more analysis was
necessary.

3

were not yet
known. It

=...:..:.:..::;=

the EIR

were

stations, there could be environmental impacts because the generation would be
increasing substantially. However, the Draft EIR only analyzed the regional impacts,
not the impacts at each site.
The Commission eventually agreed that the site-specific analysis was needed.
But it was not in the Draft EIR, and it was not in recommended mitigation plan which
the Commission said was supposed to be the basis of our testimony. Ouite simply,
we had no idea what the Commission's analysis of the site-specific impacts was. Yet,
we were told that there would not be any costs to mitigate those impacts.
Why? We did not know, and we were not allowed to know before our
testimony was due.
We were forced to present our case while the Commission was denying access
to the information which was the basis for its environmental analysis. While we have
demonstrated that the Commission lacked the evidence needed to make its decision,
we were unable to provide the Commission with crucial evidence which it needs to
determine where the public interest lies.
The Supplement to the Draft EIR was not released until three weeks after the
hearings ended. And now we have been forced to ask the Commission to reopen
hearings which never should have closed. New material has been presented in the
Supplement which we believe woefully understates the cost of the merger to the
serious detriment of the ratepayers and the environment. Yet none of this evidence
will be tested before the Commission in the crucible of examination and cross-
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it

decisions. It

considerations, rather

over

all

More importantly, we believe that the real embarrassment is the sight of the
PUC casting aside any semblance of fair procedure or concern for the environment of
Southern California.
The denial of due process is not something that hurts our clients or hurts one
interest group versus another. The denial of due process hurts the people of
California. It hurts the people because the Commission cannot serve the people
unless it receives all the relevant evidence on this vitally important case.
We believe that the Committee's concern for due process is a concern for all
the people of this state. The failure to adhere to due process in this highly visible,
actiVely contested proceeding sets a chilling precedent for the future of regulatory
government in California.
Thank you for the opportunity to testify.
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